% Quess

U74740KA2007PLCO43 909

Quess Corp Limited
Annual Report 2015-2016

Contents

*  Board & Board Commitlees
* Notice
*  Directors’ Report & Management's
Discussion and Analysis
- »=  Standalone Auditors Report
»  Standalone Financials
*  Consolidated Auditors Report
* Consolidated Financials

, \
F%Sﬁ;%%orp lelted ﬁaﬂ

C;n\‘/l;aéy S%‘i'eta§ )Q‘W*a«“




Board of Directors

Ajit Isaac
Chairman & Managing Director

Chandran Ratnaswami
AdditionalDirector{Nominee)

MadhavanhMenon
Nominee Director

Pratip Chaudhuri
Independent Director

Pravir Kumar Vohra
Independent Director

Revathy Ashok
Independent Director

Sanjay Anandaram
Independent Director

Subrata Nag
Wholatime Director&CFO

% Quess

U74140KA2007PLL043 909
Board Committees

Administration Committee

= Ajit saac
*  Subrata Nag

Audit Committee

= Pratip Chaudhuri {Chairman of the Commiltee)
*  Pravir Kumar Vohra

*  Revathy Ashok

*  Chandran Ratnaswami
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*  Revathy Ashok (Chairperson of the Committee}
v Ajitisaac
*  Pravir Kumar Vohra
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*  Ajit Isaac (Chairman of the Committee)
s Subrata Nag

»  Madhavan Menon

»  Pratip Chaudhuri

»  Revathy Ashok

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

*  Pravir Kumar Vohra {Chairman of the Commiitee}
*  Pratip Chaudhuri
*  Chandran Ralnaswami

Stakeholder Relationship Committee

*  Madhavan Menon (Chairman of the Commiltes)
= Ajit Isaac
*  Revathy Ashok
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Notice to the 9"Annual General Meeting

Not:ce is hereby given that the 9%Annual General Meeting of the members of Quess Corp
Limited will be held on Monday, the 23" day of May, 2016 at 02.00 P.M.(IST) at the Registered
Office of the Company at Quess House at 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road,
Bangalore-560103, Kamnataka, India to transact the following business:-

item No.1: Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended as on March 31, 2016 including audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016
and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports
of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Item No.2: Appointment of nirectcrs

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Madhavan Menon (holding DIN 00008542), who
retires by rotation, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Item No.3: Appointment of Auditors

To appoint M/s. B S R & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
116231W/W-100024), as Statutory Auditors of the Company from the conclusion of the
ensuing {Sth) Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next (10th) Annual
General Meeting of the Company and fix their remuneration.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and their corresponding rules
and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, W/s. B S R & Assaciates
LLP., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 11623 1W/MW-100024),who have offered
themselves for re-appointment and have confirmed their eligibility in terms ‘of the
provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors} Rules, 2014, be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing{9th) Annual Generai
Meeting untii the conclusion of the next(10th) Annual General Meeting of the Company
and fix their remuneration at a remunsration as may be decided by the Board of
Directors(Board Includes the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors)of the
Company.
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Item No.4: Appointment of Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami as a Director
= To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section{s)152, 160 and 16tand other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and their corresponding
rufes, Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami {DIN: 00109215) who was appointed as an
Additional Director in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 45
of Article of Association of the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company held on January 18, 2016, who shall hold office up to the date of the ensuing
annual general meeting and in respect of whom a notice has been received from a
member in writing, under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with requisite
deposit, proposing his candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby
appointed as Director liable to retire by rotation.”

Place: By Order of the Board of Directors
of Quess Corp Limited
3/3/2, Bellandur Gate,
Sarjapur Main Road,
Bangalore-560103,
Kamataka, India
. Ajit Isaac
Date; May 17, 2016 ‘ Chairman & Managing Direcior
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NOTES:

1. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of thé Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
ordinary business and special business respectively, set out in the Notice is annexed.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy, or where proxy
is allowed, one or more proxles, to attend and vote instead of a member, and that
proxy need not be a member. The instrument of proxy in order to be effective at
the Annual General meeting, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours hefore the meeting.

3. Corporate members intending io send their authorised representatives fo attend the
Annual General Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at
the Meeting.

4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, 2 member would be entitied to
inspect the proxies lodged with the Company, at any time during the business hours of
the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the
Company.

5. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for
inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting.

6. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, will be available for inspection by the
members at the Annual General Meeting.
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Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013(for item no.5 of the
Notice) & Statement pursuant to Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013

Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215) was appointed as an Additional Director (Nominee
of Thomas Cook {India) Limited) in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article
45 of Article of Association of the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Company held on January 18, 2016, who shall hold office up to the date of the ensuing annual
general meeting.

In this regard, the Company has received a notice from a member along with the deposit of
requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature of Mr. Chandran
Ratnaswami (DIN: 00169215) as a Diractor of the Company who will liable to relire by rotation.

The Company has also received an intimation from Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215)
in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014 to the effect that he is not disqualified in accordance with sub-section {2) of Section
164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Save and except Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215) and other nominees of Thomas
Cook India Limited on the Board of the Company and the Holding Company i.e., Thomas Cook
(India) Limited to the extent of the shareholding held by it, none of the other Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel of the Companyitheir relatives are, in any way, concemed or interested,
financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in the item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of
the members.

Profile of Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215)

Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami is a nominee Director of Thomas Cook (India) Limited on the Board
of the Company. He is a non-executive Director on the Board of the Company. Mr. Chandran
Ratnaswami holds a Masters degree in Business Administration from University of Toronto,
Canada. Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami has 23 years of experience in the field of investment
management.

- Apart from Quess Corp Limited, he serves on the Boards of the following companies:
1 Thomas Cook {India) Limited
2 ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Limited
3 “JIIFL Holdings Limited
4. Nationat Coliateral Management Services Limited
5. Fairbridge Capital Private Limited
6 Zoomer Media Limited,
7 Cheran Enterprise Private Limited
8. First Capital Insurance Limited
9, HWIC Asia Limited
10.  ORE Holdings Ltd
11.  Fairfax Asia Limited Corporation
12,  Thai Reinsurance Public Company Limited
13.  Fairbridge Capital (Mauritius) Limited




- 14,
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Fairfax india Holdings Corporation
FIH Mauritius Investments Lid
FiH Private Investments Lid
Union Assurance General Limited

. Primary Real Estate Investment

H Investments Lid.
| Investments Lid.
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PROXY FORM
In line with Form No. MGT-11 Proxy form [Pursuant to section 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013
and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : UT4140KA2007P1L.C043909
Name of the company : Quess Corp Limited
Registered office : 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main

Road, Bangalore-560103, Karnataka
Name of the member (s} :

Registered address

E-mail Id: Folio No/ Client Id

PP ID

/W8, being the member (8} of ............. ccceevvvevsvieace oo Shares of the above named company,
hereby appoint :

Name : AAIBSS . i iitiin r cor e e e e e e anr e v sk ek ek e raabe
E-mail Id : Srgnature .., or failing him

Name: ......cooivvmriennnnns Address
E-mail Id : Signature ;.. orfa:ling him

Name: Address:.. .

E-mail Id : S:gnature vererry @S mylour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on

my/our behalf at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on Monday, the 23" day of
May, 2016 at 02.00 P.M.(IST) at the Registered Office of the Company at 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur
- Main Road, Bangalore-560103, Kamataka and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions -
as are indicated below :
*  To consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2016 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
= To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Madhavan Menon {holding DIN 00008542) who retires by
rotation, being eligible, seeks re-appointment,
= To appoint Mfs. B S R & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants (Registration No.
116231W/W100024), as Statutory Auditors of the Company
= To appoint Mr. Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami {DIN; 80100215) as a Director of the Company

This form of
proxy In ofder
to be effestive
Affix Revenue

Stamo

Signed this........ ., 62y Of..v..... 2016Signature of shareholder  Signature of Proxy holder(s):
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QUESS CORP LIMITED
(CIN: U74140KA2007PLC043909)
Registered Office:3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore-560103,
. Karnataka
Telephone: +91 80 61056000, Fax: +91 80 6156406

ATTENDANCE SLIP

9TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Date: 23.05.2016(Monday) Time: 02.00 P.M.
Place: 3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur Main Road, Bangalore-560103, Karnataka

..........................................

Member s Folio/DPID-Client ID No Member's/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member® slexy s SIQnatura T

Note :

1. Sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the attendance verification counter at the entrance of
meeting hall,

2. Bedies Corporate, whether a company or not, who are members, may attend though their authorised
representatives appointed under Section 113 of the Companles Act, 2013 A copy of authonsaﬁon
should be deposited with the Company.

3. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2015-16 and Notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
along with attendance slip and proxy form is being sent to all the members whose email address is
registered with the Company/ Depository Participant unless any member has requested for a hard
copy of the same. Members receiving electronic copy and attending the AGM can print copy of this
Attendancs Slip.

4. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2015-16 and Notice of the AGM along with the attendance slip
and proxy form Is sent in the pemmitted mode(s) to-all members who have requested for a hard copy.




% Quess

U74140KA2007PLCO43909

Board’s Report

To the members of Quess Corp Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the 9"Annual Report and the audited accounts for the
financial year ended March 31, 2016:

evenue from S
operations 2,918.18 2,373.28 3,435.01 2,567.06
Other income

8.36 6.58 843 7.74

Oper?‘fsigg 2,761.32 2,242.18 3271.27| = 2438.06

Depreciation & | 1 ‘ | e
Amortization 16.45 : 16.02 10.14
Finance Cost 27.09 20,93 ) 30.79 21.83

Tax Expensés

-Lesgs:
g{gm’: tax / . 6135 29.73 62.45 20.08
Current tax
-Less: Tax
chal !

(aei%% for (6.46) - (6.46) -
earlier years
-Less:

Deferred  tax _
charge/{credit) (18.81) 6.93 (20.35) 6.80
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-Less: Minority
interest

Basic EPS

{(Rs.) 7.56 7.55 7.92 8.16
EPS fully ‘

diluted {Rs.) 742 5.98 7.77 6.48

Management's Discussion & Analysis (Statement of Company’s Affairs and material

Qur results in 2016 were the best in our 9-year history, with higher profitability backed by strong
revenue growth. Our revenue and profit grew in absolute terms over the previous audited

.. period, despite the previous audited period encompassing 15months (compared fo the current

" 12 month period).

. Qur consolidated revenue grew by 34% from INR 2,575¢r in FY'15 {15 months) to INR 3,443¢r in
‘FY16. Earnings per share increased 20% to INR 7.77per share (on a fully diluted basis).

Over the past 7 years, our employee headcount has increased by a CAGR of 59% from ~4,700
in 2009 to ~121,500 in 2016.

Here’s how each of our businesses performed in 2016

Revenue Performance {(in INR cr):

Business Segment 12 Month 15 Month Revenue
Period ended Period ended Growth %
Mar 31%, 2016 | Mar31%, 2015
People & Services (P&S) 1,949.86 1,403.60 39%
Global Technology Services (GTS) 921.69 738.10 25%
integrated Facility Management (IFM) 372.42 302.66 23%
Industrial Asset Management (IAM) 193.40 120,69 - 49%
Unallocated Other incoma 6.07 0.75 -
Total 3,443.44 34%

2,574.80
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Profitability Analysis (in INR cr):

Business Segment | 12 Month Period ended March | 15 Month Pericd ended March 31, |
31%, 2016 2015
EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA EBITDA Margin
Margin
P&S 67.92 35% 39.07 2.8%
GTS 6668 72%] - 6294 8.5%
IFM | 22.67 6.1% 20.83 6.9%
IAM 9213 11.4% 18.28 14.1%
Unallocated (7.22) _ (4.38)
Total 17247] ___ 5.0% 136.74 5.3%

As you can see in the table above, all of our business segments registered revenue growth in
excess of 23% on absolute terms. Our GTS segment registered decline in margin due to
acquisitions of Brainhunter. Setting aside the impact of Brainhunter, the GTS EBITDA for FY16
would have touched INR 72 ¢r with an EBITDA margin of 13%. We remain confident that the
acquisitions of Brainhunter will soon bear fruit. The out-performance in terms of revenue growth
and earnings-quality is the direct result of the top quality management helming each of our -
business segments and our client focused business model.

One of the key reasons for our success is our decentralized structure where each President is
responsible for the success of his or her operations. There is no beiter way to empower people.
The leaders of our profit centers, in effect, are presidents of their own operations and are
responsible for providing outstanding customer service, looking after their employees and
providing superior returns on capital employed. This is a very important, empowering structure
for our company, and we are excited about its possibilities.

Our clients are the sole reason for us being in business and our entire business model is
focused on keeping them happy. We position ourselves as partners of our clients who manage
the SG&A side of their income statement. Each business segment of ours is geared towards
handling a specific SG&A element of our client in an effective and efficient manner. Our clients
have responded well {o our “partnership model” and have in fact taken us along as they have
expanded globally. Our operations in Manila (commenced in 2014) and Kuala Lumpur (started
in 20185), in response to requests from our IT Staffing clients, are good examples of this.

Our relentless focus on margin expansion means that keeping G&A costs under control and
optimizing operational leverage across the group is a key focus area for us. Our250 people
strong Shared Services Center (“SSC”"), which houses common group level functions including
finance, admin and payroll under a single roof, is designed fo drive’ economies of scale and
provide us with significant operational leverage. We have recently embarked on benchmarking
our SSC operations against industry best practices, in order to drive higher efficiencies and
keep our G&A costs under control,
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Balance Sheet Analysis:
42 Month Period { 15 Month Period
ended March 31% | ended March 31%,
2016 2015
Net Worth 345.58 | 250.73
Debt = 374.48 220.43
Other Non Current Liabililies 48.47 9.18
766.53 480.34
Fixed Assels 52.92 18.88
Intangibles 204.55 110.42
Other Non Current Assels 113.05 _ 57.36
Receivables 428.20 254.83
Cash 108.35 81.83
Other Current Assets 328.79 194.57
Payables and Other Current Liabilities (471.33) {237.55)
' 766.53 480.34
. { Leverage Metrics (on an annualised
. | basis)’
. Debt: Equity 1.08 0.9
| Debt: EBITDA 22 1.6
Working Capital Metrics (on an
annualised basis)’ :
Recelvables DSO ' 45 days 45days
Return Metrics (on an annualised basis)*
RoCE (pre tax) 29% 30%
RoE (post tax) 30% 25%

# Ratios for 15month period ending March 31, 2016 calcidated on twalve month revenue base of Rs. 2,176 cr

Quess continues to be financlally conservative with focus on keeping leverage levels under
control, We believe that revenue growth, margin expansion and acquisition should not be at the
cost of the balance sheet. As can be seen from the table above, key leverage metrics continue
to be under control despite the acquisitions undertaken in the year concluded. Similarly, the
receivables position continues to ba under confrol with the average DSO remalining around 45
days. This in tum is indicative of the high quality and sustainable nature of revenue growtb that
wa have achleved across our business segments.

Qur focus on strengthening our balanee sheet even while sustaining market leading growth is
beginning to be recognized extemally as well. Our long term credit rating continues to remain at
[ICRA]A+, a clear validation of our focus on responsible and sustainable growth.
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Acquisitions and New Additions to Quess:

Financial year 2016 was also an eventful year on the acquisition front with Quess with the
closing 3acquisitions — Aramark India in April 2015; acquisition of residual 51% stake in MFX in
January 2016; and acquisition of Randstad Lanka in April 2016, furthering our strategy of
expanding presencs in south-east Asia.
= MFX
- o Based out of Morristown, NJ (US), MFX is a leading provider of hosted
information technology applications and outsourcing solutions for the U.S.
commercial property and casually insurance industry. )
o Quess acquired significant stake (49%) in MFX from Fairfax in November 2014,
and residual 51% stake on January 1, 2016

* Aramark India; ‘

o Headquar:ered in Mumbai, Aramark India (renamed as Aravon) is a facility
management company with operations in more than 80 sites pan-India. The
company has a workforce of over 2,500 employees spread across 9 states.

o Quess acquired Aravon from Aramark in April 2018. The acquisition has given us
a strong presence in Western India, in addition to providing a niche presence in
hospitality and heaithcare facility management.

= Randstad Lanka:
o Headquartered in Colombo, Randstad Lanka offers staffing and human resource
solutions in Sri Lanka.
o With over 550 employees, Randstad Lanka has a pan Sri Lankan presence
servicing several MNCs and leading Sri Lankan corporates.

The above acquisitions were completed at low cost and are examples of our philosophy of
“deep value investing”. All of these acquisitions in areas that are contiguous to the business
services space that we operate in and are expected to emerge as key drivers of growth and
profitabllity going forward.

Initial Public Offering of Equity Shares:

Quess filed its Draft Red Heming Prospectus with the Securities and Exchange Board of india
("SEBF") on February 2, 2016, for raising Rs. 400 crore through an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of
its equity shares. The Company received conditional approval from SEBI for its IPO on April 26,
2016. Net proceeds from the issue will be used for funding incremental working capital
requirements, repayment of debt, funding of acquisitions and strategic initiatives, and capital
expenditures for our IAM, IFM and GTS businesses,

Analysis of Business Performance:

People and Services:

Our People and Services (P&S) business provides specialized service offerings in Search,
Recruitment & RPO, General Staffing, Training & Skill Development, Payroll & Compliance and
Retail Solutions. We are currently the third largest general staffing company in India, based on
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number of employees.

FYy1 6 saw the top line of the P&S business segment grow by 39% to INR 1,949.86¢r with
EBITDA growth of 74% to INR 67.92cr. High growth was accompanied by expansion of EBITDA
margin from 2.8% to 3.5% due to focus on value added services and cost efficiencies.

Qur Training and Skill Development business has emerged as one of the largest skilling
company in India under the PPP model with 66 Centers running across 12 States. We trained
14,500 students in FY16 and today, we have 17 ongoing projects.

Global Technology Solutions:

Cur Global Technology Solutions (GTS) business focuses on 3 major areas: IT Staff
Augmentation, Solutions and Products. in IT Staff Augmentation, Magna has emerged as the
largest player in India, with a strong presence in ASEAN markets. Through Brainhunter, we
provide IT Staff Augmentation to the North American market. The Solutions & Products
business is driven by MFX with offices and datacenters in New Jersey and Virginia {USA) and
Cffshore Delivery Centers in Chennai and Bengalunu.

The GTS business segment registered a top line growth of 25%, closing FY16 at INR 921.6Scr.
EBITDA grew by 5.9%to 66.68 cr in FY16 with decline in EBITDA margin from 8.5% to 7.2%
due to losses at Brainhunter. Setting aside the impact of Brainhunter, the GTS EBITDA would
be INR 72cr inFY'16 with an EBITDA margin of13%.

ra geili

Our Integrated Facility Management (IFM) business serves as a one-stop-shop for all facility
management needs. Under IFMG, we offer {0 our clients the entire gamut of facility
management services under one roof: Soft Services (Housekeeping, Plumbing, Carpentry etc),
Hard Services (HVAC and Electrical maintenance, Fire suspension system etc), Food and
Hospitality (Corporate catering, Retail Vending etc) and Pest Control.

FY16 saw the top line of the IFMG business segment grew by 23% to INR 372.42cr with
EBITDA of iINR 22.67cr. In addition to our integrated service offering, our strong presence in
IT/ITeS and BFSI verticals have baen the key drivers of our growth, During the year, we started
facility management services in the B2C segment in partnership with Helpr and a ramp up of our
Pest Control and personalized home maintenance service offerings.

Industrial Asset Management:

Our Industrial Asset Management (IAM) business is a leading player in Plant Asset
Management, offering comprehensive solutions in Industral Operations & Maintenance and
‘Managed Services (in Utilities & Telecom).

FY18 saw the top line of the IAM busfness segment grew by 49% to INR 193.40 cr with EBITDA
growth of 21% to INR 22,13 cr. High growth was primarily on account of growth in our telecom
and utilities services business, carried out under the Maxeed brand.
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Infrastructure:

During the year, we added new offices in Bangalore, Chennai, imphal, Mumbai, NCR, and
Tiruchirapalli, in India, as well as offices in Singapore and Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. As on
31.03.2016, we have 47 offices across 25 cities in India, as well as offices in North America
{t.8.A and Canada), and South-East Asia.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

Quess believes in creating significant and sustainable societal value, inspired by a vision to
actively contribute to the community by creafing a positive impact on the lives of people,
especially in the areas of health and education. OQur CSR initiatives are carried out through the
Care Warks Foundation {CWF), a non profit initiative established in January, 2014.

CWF has till date made a difference to 5,700 lives. We have given below some of the work that
is being done by the CWF team in FY 2016:

Activities 2015-16 Project Plan for 201617
Cost(Rs.)

Education Kit: Given to children from 1st std to 7° | 12,00 To reach 1800 children
Std. Education kit includes School bag, Note books | Lakhs providing Education Kits
& Stationeries. Benefited 2526 children. , for their education.
Scholarship: Scholarship helps economically | 8 Lakhs Support 150 Meritorious
backwards students who have pofential, but lack children by providing
financial support, by giving them new opportunities scholarships fo the need,

for education through scholarship program. To help
poor students excel in their chosen disciplines.
Benefited : 124 students

School Enhancement Program: School | 88.40 Proposed to adopt 10
enhancement program is a flagship initiative of | Lakhs schools & support 1500
Quess. The focus is to work with government children through School
schools to enhance quality of education activities enhancement

that support proper leaming environment by programme.

providing habitable surroundings.
Benefited : 1300 children

Grant in Aid to economically challenged students | 1.5 Lakhs | Considered as continuous

for skill development and higher education activity for every financial
year.

Chennai Flood Rellef: Rescue, Rehabilitation and | 6.3 Lakhs | Quess through CWF s

heaith programs organized for Flood victims. Also always committed to such

supported by giving food & basic necessities : supportive rehabllitation at

Supported 13225 people times as and when takes
place. , ;

In conclusion, we have had a good year with several initiatives and acquisitions that are likely to
bear fruit over the next few years. Even as we continue to grow, our focus remains on the
bottom line and on maintaining a healthy balance sheet. Our focus in all this is to secure just
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rewards for all of our stakeholders (our clients, our sharehoiders, our employees and our
bankers} who have stood by us through out.

Material changes occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company to
which the balance sheet relates and the date of the report like settiement of tax liabilities,
operation of patent rights, depressicn in.market value of investments, institution of cases by or
against the company, sale or purchase of capital assets or destruction of any assets etc.

Dividend |

No dividend payout to the shareholders has been recommended by the Board of Directors of
the Company for the current year.

Reserves -

An amount of Rs.85,00,12,920/- of Free Reserves i.e., from Securities Premium Account was
appropriated to issue 8,50,01,292 bonus shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in
the ratio of three equity shares for every one equity share held.

Details of Subsidiary Companies

Your.Company has the following subsidiary companies as on 31.03.2016:
’ lﬁdian Subsidiaries:

o 1. Aravon Services Private Limited (CIN: U93000MH2007FTC172493)
" 2. Coachieve Solutions Private Limited(CIN: U72300D1L.2007PTC166789)
3. MFX Infotech Private Limited(CIN: U72200KA2014PTCO074949)

QOverseas subsidiaries:

Brainhunter Systems Limited, Canada

Brainhunter Companies LLC, USA

Brainhunter Companies Canada, Inc.

IKYA Business Services {Private) Limited, Sri Lanka
MFXchange Holdings Inc., Canada

MFXchange US, Inc., USA .
MFXchange (Ireland) Limited(in voluntary liquidation)
Mindwire Systems Limited, Canada

. Quess Corp (USA) Inc., USA

10. Quess {Philippines) Corp., Philippines

11. Quesscorp Holdings Pte, Lid., Singapore

12. Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

CONOOH LN

Subsldiaties acquired after 31.03.2016:
1. Randstad Lanka {Private) Limited, Sri Lanka
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During the year MFXchange Holdings Inc., Canada along with its subsidiaries, which were

earlier associate companies of the Company have becorme wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Company upon acquisition of remaining 51% stake in MFXchange Holdings Inc, Canada by™
Quesscorp Holdings Pte. Ltd. Further, the Company has invested in Styracorp and IME

Consultancy through the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Quesscorp Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Singapore.

As on the date of this report the Company has acquired Randstad {Lanka) Private Limited from
Randstad India Private Limited through the Company's wholly owned subsidiary Quesscorp
Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore and has become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture companies included in the consolidated financial statement.

A detailed financial position and summary of performance of the company on consolidated
basis covering the financial highlights of each subsidiary during the financial year was referred
under a separate section above.

- There are no deposits accepted, remained or unpaid during the financiat year.

Share C;:xita{ and Shareholding »

As on 31.03.2016 the share capital of the Company is as below:

s Authorised Share Capital: Rs. 200,00,00,000 divided into 20,00,00,000 squily shares of
Rs.10each.

s issued & Paid up share Capital Rs. 113,33,50,860 divided info 11,33,35,056 equity
shares of Rs.10 each.

¢ During the year:

s Authorized Capital: The authorised share capital of your Company was increased
from Rs.1,131,046,310 divided into 113,104,631 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each to
Rs.2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

» Rights Jssue: Subsequent to the offer of rights issue made by the Company in the
ratio of 0.099 for every one equity share to the existing shareholders, Mr, Ajit Isaac -
and Thomas Cook {India) Limited renounced their rights in favour of Net Resources
Invesiments Private Limited and accordingly 25,860,000 equity shares of Rs.10/-
each were allotted on rights basis on December 22, 2015.

o Bonus Issue: Subsequent to the approval of shareholders on December 23, 2015 at
their extra-general meeting, 8,50,01,292 equity shares of Rs.10/- each were allofted
to the existing shareholders of the Company on January 5, 2016, by way of a bonus
issue In the ratio of thvee equity shares for every one equity share held in the
Company.

» Post above allotments, Thomas Cook (india) Limited, Hoiding company of your
Company holds 69.55% and Mr. Ajit Isaac holds 16.40% as a part of the promoter
holding and Net Resources India Private Limited holds 13.56% as a part of the promoter
group.

During the year the shareholders of the Company have approved in terms of Section 62(1)(c) of
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the Companies Act, 2013 approved the further issue of equity shares of the Company by way of
a proposed initial public offering at a meeting of shareholders by way of an Extra- Ordinary
General Mesting held on December 23, 2015. In this regard the shareholders approved for
creation, offer, issue and allotment in an initial public offering of equity shares of the Company,
aggregating to Rs.4000 Million {Rs.400 Crores) and to further to effect the same, filed a Draft
Red Herring Prospectus {DRMHP) with the Securities Exchange Board of India at its office
situated in Chennai and further planning for the necessary compliances in relation to filing of a
Red Herring Prospectus(RHP)& Offer document (Prospectus) with the ROC/SEBI/Stock
Exchanges in this context. An in-principle listing approvai was also obtained from National
Stock Exchange of india Limited {(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) at Mumbai.

Demat Holding of shareholders

As on date of this report, your shareholders zncludmg the promoter and promoter greup were
holding 99.98 % of the total paid up share capital in electronic form.

Stock Opntions grant

After the. commencement of the Companies Act, 2013 there were no stock options granted to
any promoter or any independent Director. There were no stock options granted during the
period under the schemes of ESOP to employses.

As on-date the Company has two employee stock option schemes namely Quess Corp
Employees’ Stock Option Scheme 2009 (Amended) and Quess Corp Limited Employee Stock
Option Scheme 2015

During the year the shareholders of the Company based on the recommendations of the
Nomination and Remunsration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the variations of terms of the existing ESOP scheme of 2009 and further approved for
a new ESOP Scheme of 2015.

As required under general instructions to the statement of profit and loss under Schedule il to
the Companies Act, 2013, a disclosure by way of additional information regarding aggregate
expenditure incurred on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) was made as part of the
notes to the accounts forming part.of the financial statements of the Company. An Annexure - |
detailing the position of options granted, vested, exercised, lapsedfforfeited and details of
exercise price if any, variation in terms of options and other details as required under Rule 12 of
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 read with Section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013 enclosed to this report.

Statutory Auditors

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors recommended for re-appointmentof Ms. BSR &
Associates LLP,, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 116231W/W-100024), as statutory
Auditors of the Company considering the eligibility.and their wimngness to be re-appointed.

Mis. B S R & Associates LLP., Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 116231W/MW-
100024),who have offered theamselves for re-appoiniment and have confirmed thelr eligibility in
terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of Companies
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(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, being recommended for re-appointment as Statutory Auditors
of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the ensuing(®™) Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the next{10™) Annual General Meeting of the Company. Your Board
recommends for your approval at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse

remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in his report

There were no qualifications to be responded by the Board of Directors on the Audit Report of
M/s. B S R & Associates LLP. for members of the Company as there wsre no qualifications,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by M/s. B S R & Associates LLP., Statutory
Auditors of the Company in audit report for the members of the Company.

Inductions

* Ms. Revathy Ashok (DIN: 00057539), Mr. Pratip Chaudhuri (DIN:00915201) and Mr.
Pravir Kumar Vohra{DIN: 00082545) were appointed as Independent Directors of the
Company effective July 24, 2015; :

+ Mr. Sanjay Anandaram (DIN: 00579785), was appointed as Independent Director on the
Board of the Company effective December 22, 2015, : :

o Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215} was appointed as Nominee Director of
Thomas Cook (India} Limited effective January 18, 2016. ,

In terms of Section 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being In force), Ms.
Revathy Ashok (DIN: 00057538), Mr. Pratip Chaudhuri (DIN: 00915201) and Mr. Pravir Kumar
Vohra(DIN: 00082545} who were appointed as Independent Directors on the Board of the
Company for a pericd of five years from the date of their appointment effective July 24, 2615 by
way of an approval by the shareholders at an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on
December 23, 2015.

Mr. Sanjay Anandaram (DIN: 00579785) was appointed as an Independent Director on the
Board of the Company for a period of five years from the date of thelr appointment effective
December 22, 2015 by way of an approval by the shareholders at an Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting held on December 23, 2015. Necessary declarations perfaining to declaration of
independence of the afore appointed independent Directors In terms of Sections 149, 152 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV to the Companles Act, 2013 were asceriained.

Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215) was appointed as an Additional Director (Nominee
of Thomas Cook (India) Limited} in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Article 45 of Article of Assoclation of the Company at the meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Company held on January 18, 2016, who shall hold office up to the date of the ensuing
annual general meeting. In this regard, the Company has received a notice from a member
along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 160 of the Act proposing the
candidature of Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN: 00109215) as a Director of the Company who
will liable {o retire by rotation.
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The Company has also received an intimation from Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami (DIN:
00109215) in Form DIR-8 pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies {Appointment & Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014 to the effect that they are not disqualified in accordance with sub-
séction (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Your Board recommends the above appointment for your approval.

Re-appointments

« Mr. Madhavan Menon, Nominee Director (holding DIN: 00008542} retires by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

Your Board recommends his re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Retirements and resignations

s Mr. Mahendra Kumar Sharma (DIN: 00327684), Independent Director resigned as
Director from the Board of the Company on June 30, 2015;

» Mr. Marcel Raymond Parker{DIN: 00252900},a Non- Executive Director resigned as
Director from the Board of the Company on November 30, 2015;

» Mr. Harsha Raghavan(DIN: 01761512),a Nominee Director resigned as Director from
the Board of the Company on January 8, 2016 and

- The Board places on record, its appreciation for the services rendered by Mr. Mahendra Kumar
Shamma, Mr. Marcel Raymond Parker and Mr. Harsha Raghavan during their tenure as

- .. Directors on the Board of the Company.

Re-designations
¢ Mr. Ajit Abraham Isaac (DIN:00087168) has besen re-designated as Chairman,

Managing Director and CEO; and
¢ Mr. Subrata Nag (DIN: 02234000} has been re-designated as Whole time Director and
CFO.

Board Committees

As on the date of this report Your Board of Directors have constituted the following committees
of the Board:

4. Administration Committee

2. Audit Committee

3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
IPO Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Bl o o
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Following the is the composition of the above referred committees of the Board™:

e Administration Committee M. Ajit Isaac Member
. Mr. Subrata Nag, Member
¢ Audit Committee Mr. Pratip Chaudhuri, Chairman

Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami, Member
Mr. Revathy Ashok, Member

Mr. Pravir Kumar Vohra, Member

s Corporate Social Responsibility | Ms. Revathy Ashok, Chairperson

Committee Mr. Ajit Isaac Member
Mr. Pravir Kumar Vohra, Member
* |PQ Committee ‘| Mr. Ajit Isaac Chairman

Mr. Subrata Nag, Member

Mr. Pratip Chaudhuri, Member

Mr. Madhavan Menon, Member

Ms. Revathy Ashok, Member

s Nomination and Remuneration | Mr. Pravie Kumar Vohra, Chairman
Committee Mr. Chandran Ratnaswami, Member

Mr. Pratip Chaudhuri, Member

s Stakeholders Relationship Committee | Mr. Madhavan Menon, Chairman
Mr. Ajit Isaac Member

Ms. Revathy Ashok, Member
&8 cony 2] "

Extract of the annual return

An extract of the annual retumn as required under provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section
92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form No. MGT - 9 forms part of this Board's report as an
Annexure Il . :

Conservation of energy, techno
outgo

logy absorption and foreign exchange earnings and

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange eamings and
outgo in terms of Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

A) Conservation of eneray:

The Company has continued its effort of energy conservation. An endeavor for continual
improvements in energy savings in areas such as air conditioning, power consumption,
-equipment functioning is a prime objective of our facilities management systems.

(B) Technology absorption: Not Applicable
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Qutqo: (Amount in Rs. In Crores)

Particulars 01.04.2015-31.03.2016 | 01.01.2014-31.03.2015 |
Total Exchange used {Cash basis) Nil Nil
Total Foreign Exchange Earned 42.90 ; 52.86
{Accrual Basis)
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Corporate Social Responsihility {CSR)

A detgiled note was given as part of the state of affairs of the Company in the first sections of
the Report. A’committee of CSR was re-constituted during the year with a composition of Ms.
Revathy Ashok, an Independent Director as its Chairperson, Mr. Ajit Isaac and Mr. Pravir
Kumar Vohra as members of the Board Committee to ensure the compliance of CSR
mechanism and the policy adopted by the Company. The contents of the policy and other
details of the CSR implementation were posted on the company’s website at
www.quesscorp.com. Annexure lHl in this regard is enclosed to this report.

Declaration by an Independent Director{s) and re- appointment, if any]

Necessary declarations from all the Independent Directors that they met the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 were
received and placed before the Board of Directors.

Formal Board Annual Evaluation and Evaluation of individual Directors

The Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee shall oversee the self-evaluation process for the
- ;evaluation process of performance of the Board and Commifiees of the Board as required
under provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

. As per the policy devised by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board, the
-~ evaluation process shall take place annually at the time of approval of financial statements at
the committees and board meeting. An independent Director expert In such evaluation shalt be
the lead independent Director fo oversee the complete evaluation mechanism and solicit the
ideas of improving the governance in particular on the board and committees role in improving
the functions& duties prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 including those functions viz.,
improving personnel development, financials, major issues of strategy, risk, integrity, reputation
and governance.

Managerial Remuneration and Remuneration of Directors and key managerial personnel

The details of managerial remuneration and of remuneration to Directors are given as part of
MGT-9 which is annexed to this report. '

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees and general meetings

Details of Board, General meetings and committee meetings held during the period 01.04.2015
till 31.03.2018:

Board of Directors ) 22,05.2015
24.07.2015
15.10.2015
06.11.2015
22.12.2015
05.01.2016
18.01.2016
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Audit Committee 22.05.2015
' 24.07.2015
15.10.2015
22.12.2015
18.01.2016
Nomination and Remuneration Committee . 22.12.2015
24.07.2015
22.12.2015
18.01.2016
General Meetings: Annual and Extra-ordinary 26.05.2015
General Meetings 10.08.2015
23.42.2015

Audit Committee & Details of establishment of vigil mechanism for Directors and

employees

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors have recommended for a vigit mechanism for the
company and its subsidiaries and was adopted by the Board.

B Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors formulated the policy
ensuring (a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required fo run the company successfully; (b)
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and (c) remuneration to Directors, key managerial personnel and senior
managerment involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company-and its goals.

In terms of the Compliance of Section 134(3) {e) of the Companies Act, 2013, as a company in
compliance of provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 making the disclosure
of its Nomination and remuneration Policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration
including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director
and other matters provided under the provisions of the. Companies Act, 2013, A policy is
enclosed as an Annexure IV to this report.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 136

During the year the following loans, guarantees and securities provided by your companies to
the following subsidiaries enclosed as an Annexure V to this report.

In compliance of provisions of Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
given necessary and adequate disclosures as part of the financial statements by way of
schedules and notes to the accounts forming part of the financial statements pertaining to the

. full particulars of the loans given, investments made or guarantees given or security provided
along with the details of interest charged under Section 186(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the pumpose for which the said loans, guarantees or securities provided with utilization plans of
the recipient of such loan, guarantee or security.
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Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

The particulars of contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with related pames
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s
length transactions under third proviso thereto shall be disclosed in Form No. AOC -2 enclosed
as an Annexure Vi to this report.

Internal Audit and Internal Auditor v

Your Board of Directors have appointed M/s E&Y LLP, an audit firm of Chartered Accountants
in practice, Bengaluru as the Internal Auditors of the Company and the subsidiaries for
conducting intemnali audit of the functions and activities of your company.

As required under Section 134(5) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013 and for the purpose of Section
143(3){i) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 A of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has devised necessary and adequate internal financial
control system to enable smooth operating effectiveness in the company which was duly
verified and submitted before the Audit Committee of the Board by the Internal Auditors of the
Company.

Secretanal Audntor & Secretarial Audit Report

Your -Board of Directors have appointed M/s SNM Associates, a firm of company secretaries in
practice, Bengaluru as the secretarial Auditors of the Company and the subsidiaries.

A Secretarial Audit Report given by M/s SNM Assoclates, Bengaluru, a firn of company
secretaries in practice is enclosed as an Annexure Vil to this report.

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse

remark or disclaimer made by the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit
report

There were no explanations or comments by the Board of Directors as there were no
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the company secretary in
practice in the secretarial audit report.

Secretarial standards

The §8-1 and 8S-2 as revised from time to time as prescribed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSl) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs being lmpiemented by
the Company for all its Board, Committee and General meetings.

Risk management polic

A statement indicaling development and implementation of a risk management policy for the
Company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the
Board may threaten the existence of the company is enclosed as Annexure Vili to this Report.
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Directors’ Responsihility Statement

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause {¢) of sub-section (3) of Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that—

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the company for that period;

c. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the Directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable {aws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Acknowledgements

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the sincere and, dedicated efforts to
all the stakeholders for their sustained support, patronage and cooperation with which the
Company is able to achieve the results.

Place: _ By Order of the Board of Directors
: of Quess Corp Limited

3/3/2, Bellandur Gate,

Sarjapur Main Road,

Bangalore-560103,

Kamataka, lridia

Ajit Isaac
Date: May 17, 2016 Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE-]
Disclosure under Section 62 of the Companie t, 2013, rule 12 of com share capital and debenture
rules, 20 EBI {share based employee benefits) requlations, 201 ear ended as on 31.03
Schema Employses’ Stock Option Schema ~ 2003 {Amended) Quess
Name ’ Corp
Limited
Employes
Stock
Option
Scheme
. 2015
Sr. | Particulars | Financial Financial Year | Financial Financial Financial Financlal Financial Finangial
Ne. Year 2009- | 201011 Year 2011- Year 2012- Year 2013« Year 2014- Year 2015. | Yaar
10 12 13 14 15 16 20615-16
1. Options 180,000 237,680 321,250 561,070 - - - ~
Granted
and
Accepted
2. Pricing Each option | Each  option | Each option | Each option | Each option | Each option | Each option | The option
Formuia. entities the | entitles tha | entittes the | entitles the | entitftes the | enfitles the | entilles tho | exercise
holder to | holder to § holder to | holder to | holder  to | hoider to { hoider to
purchase purchass one | purchase purchase purchase purchase purchase would be
one Equily | Equity Share at | one Equity | one Equily | ons Equily | one  Equity ; one Equily | determine
o Share at a {a  price of | Share at a | Share at a [Share at a {Share at ajShare at a | d by the
& price of | Rs,10.00 per | prica of | price of | price of | price of | price of | Nominatio
Rs.10.00 Equity Share Rs.16.00 per | Rs.10.00 per | Rs.10.00 per | 85.10.00 per | Rs.10.00 n and
per Equity Equity Share | Equity Share | Equity Share | Equity Share | per Equity | Remunera
Share . tion
Committee
, provided
that the
exercise
price per
oplion
shal  not
be less
than the
face valus
of the
Equity
Shares of
the
-| Company
as on the
date of
grant of
options
3. Exercise Faco value | Face valie of | Face wvalue | Face value | Face value | Face value | Face value -
Price (') of the | the Share of the Share | ofthe Share j ofthe Share | ofthe Share | of the
Share Share
4. | Options [} 0 a 1] ) 6 -
Vested and 1,300,000
exercisable
‘5. Options 1] 2] (1} 429,000 [} 0 [}] -
Exercised
8. | Total [] 0 0 Q 0 Q -
number of 428,000
Shares
arising as a
result  of
axercise of
Options

i
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7. | Options 0 g 45 470 27,000 Q Q 138.258

8. | Varations None Naone None None None None ##

9. | Money NA NA NA 4,290,000 NA NA NA
realized by
exercise of
the Options
{in Rs.)

10. | Total - - - 13,00,000 871,000 871,000 2,129,528
number of ’
Options  in
force

(Vested +
Unvested)

mmmanﬂmmmwmmwmeomamﬁwwmmmpmoamm«u 2015mawmofﬁvaws
- commencing from the dale of an initial public offering by the Company (or one of its. K orcthar fransacion or sedes of

pﬂubm’nnsm«ormmﬂmrmambﬂydha&oﬂvmwmwpmdmwmmmﬁy whidwori:mi« hvmwuntmmopion
or poriod shall be calculated afier mxpiry of two ysar cooling period trom the date of cessation of Services
with the C: This was bythe S mr 23,2015

iate:  17.05.2016 . For and on behalf of the Board of Quess Corp Limited
Jace: Bengaluns

Ajit Abraham lsaac Subrata Kumar Nag N.V.S. Pavan Kumar
Chairman, Managing Director & CEO Whole-time Director & CFO Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE.-I
FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financlal year ended on March 31, 2016 [Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rule 12(%) of the Companies {Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: (As on the date of this report)
i) CIN:-U74140KA2007PLC043909
it} Registration Date:19/09/2007

iii) Name of the Company: Quess Corp Limited (Formerly known as lkya Human Capital
Solutions Limited)

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by shares-public/non-govt.

v} Address of the registered office and contact details:3/3/2, Bellandur Gate, Sarjapur road,
fggngaluru~5§0‘_l 03 KA. .

i) Whether listed company Yes / No: NO

vil) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: Link in time,
Mumbai . ,

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Contact point: Ganesh Jadhav | Associate Vice President — Depository Operations |
(Phone: +91 22 25963838 | Extn: 2251 |)Mobile: +919860120348 '

Fax: +91 22 25946979 | 25946969 |

ganesh.jadhav@linkintime.co.in & www.linkintime.co.in

ll. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated:-

1, | People And Services 59,08
Z | Global Technology Solutions 838 7830 2050
3 | Integrated Faciity Management §58 7830 1267
4 | industrial Assat Management Services %98 7 535
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ii. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —

L53040MH1978PL0020717
Formedy known as
Aramatk india Private Limited)
3 | Coachleve Soluions Private | U72300DL2007PTC166789 100.00 2(87)
Lbuited, India
4 I\::.X Infotech Private Limited, | U72200KA2014PTC074949 100.00 2(87)
Indi
5 | Bralnhunter Systems Limited, | Ontario Corporation No, 2219707 registered under Business 100.00 2(87)
Canada (Formerly Zylog Corporafion Act, (Acquired an 23.10.2014)
Systems {Canada) Limited
6 | Brainhunter Companies LLC, Registered as Domestic Liability Company with identification 100.00 2A87)
USA(subsidiary to Brainhunter | No.0400536871 under New Jersay{Acquired on 23.10.2014)
Systems Limited, Canada) :
7 | Brainhunter Companies Canada | Ontario Corporation No. 002384595 registered under Business 100.00 2(87)
Inc(subsidiary to Brainhunter | Corporation Act, (Acguired on 23.10.2014)
Systems Limited, Canada)
8 i IKYA Business Services Private | P V 89076 private Company under Companias Act of Srilanka 100.00 2(87)
Limited, Sri Lanka {Incorporated as subsidiary on 17.06.2614) : :
9 MFXd\ange Holdings Inc. | Comporation No. 398443-5incorporated under Canada Business 100.00 2(87)
Canada® tions Act __{Acquired by Quess Corp (USA) Inc.)
10 | MFXchange (USA) Inc. | Comporate Authentication No.2039987 under State of Delaware, NJ 100.00 287
subsidiary of MFXchange .
Holdings, | sl.no.9) -
11 | MFXchange (irsland) Limited(in | Registerad under the Gompanies A, of irsiand No., 356722 ¥00.00 2(87)
tiquidation)-subsidiary of | (Registerad as Subsidiary of MFXchange Holdings Inc. Canada)
MFXchange Holdings, Inc,
Canada(sl.n0.9)
12 | Mindwire Systems Limited, | Ontario Corporation No. 1823144 registered under Business 100.00 2(87)
Ottawa(subsidiary to | Corporation Act, {Acquired on 23.10.2014)
Brainhunter Systems Limited,
Canada) :
13 | Quass-Com({USA) Inc. (earfier | File No: 5435112 (Dept. of state: Division of Corporate-Delaware: 100.00 287y
known as Magna Infotech Inc., | USA{Incorporated as subsidiary on 19.11.2013)
USA! ]
14 | Quess (Philippines) Corp CS204305088 Registered with SEC, Manila (Acquired on 30.70.2013) 100.00 287
15 | Quesscorp Holdings Ple. Ltd. | 8 Temasek Boulevand, #32-01 Suntec Tower Three Singapore 100.00 2(87)
Singapore 038988
Y% armmsw:mummmmwsu Inc, 5% of tha ntarost was held Urough Quesscorp Hordings Pie, Lid. Siogapore and Quess Corp (USA) Inc. and
Quorscnp Hoidings Ple. Lid, re wholly owned subsidiary of Que ss Corp Limiied.
IV SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Change
during
the year
Total % of | Total Sharas | Tomz Total Shares
(163
18.03 48,46,490 16.40 | 1,85,85,960
8,91}




1,97,05,874

. 1,97,05.874

;_g Quess

Ay Promoter
Group

12,984,100

5,02

1284100

Sub-total (A) +
| (Ag

2,56,46,464

89.51

2,56,46,464

{2) Forelgn

a) NRls -
Individuals b)
Other -
Individuals ¢}
Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / Fi
). Any

@)=

2,65,46,484

99.91

2,56,46,484

Total

Funds *  b)

Banks /- FI c)
Central - Govt

4 St

2,56,46,464

99.51

2,56,46,464

0.47

1,20,600
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- 69.55 [ 7.88,23,496
- 13.56 1,53,65.824 8.54
99,51 | 11,27,75,280 Nit
- 99.51 | 11,27,75.280 Nij
- 99.51 | 11,27,75,280 Nil
22,007 048 558,776 i Nif
22087 048 5,589,776




1,27,300 0.49

100.00

25,77, 3764
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0.43

559,776

100.00

113335056

0.00

’ mmhm{edhammglsm&mwmandh mopmomolupdabngnhmaswﬁmuommnsmammemhmmbbwmmumddmtonelmdr

" shares dematted in due coursa.

* Held by Thomas Caox (India) kimited , a ry of Fai Capita Ld& H Umitad y of Faifax {imited, Canada)
Downstream invesiment in Quess Corp Limited.
(u) Shareholding of Promoters & Promoter group
Name of the | Shareholding atthe beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year
No. Sharehoider year
No. of % of fotal | %of Shares No. of % oftotal | %ofShares | %
Sharss Shares of Pledged/ Shares Shares of Pledged/ | change
the encumbered the encumbered | inshare
company to total company to totai holding
. shares . ’ shares during
the year
Promoters
1 | Thomas Cook -
(india) Ltd 1,97,05,874 7648 7.88,23,456 89.55
. {1.63)
2 | Ajitlsaac 46,486,490 18.03 1,85,86.960 16.40 {6.91)
Promoter Group :
1 | NetResources - 8.54
Investments
Pwt. Lid. 1.53,65,824
12,94,100 502 - 13,56
Total 243,652,364 99.51 - 14,27,75.280 99.51 - Nil
(iii} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)
Si. | Name of the Sharsholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shamhnlding durmg
No. { Shareholder of the yoar the year
. No. of shares | % oftotal No. of shares % of total
sharas of the shares of the
com company
1 Thomas Cook | At the beginning of the 1,97,05,874 76.48 1,97.05,874 76.46
(India) Ltd year ’ .
2 48,46,490 18.03 46,468,490 18.03
Ajit Isaac
1 ‘Thomas Cook § Date wise increase / 5,91,17,622 5216 5017622 5218
(India) Ltd Decreass In Share
2 holding during the year 1,39,39,470 12.29 1,39,39470 12.29
Ajit Isaac specifying the reasons
: for increase / decreass
{e.g. allotment / ransfor
£ bonus / swaat eqully
efc): Bonus issue on
05.01.2016
1 Thomas Cook | At the End of the year 7.88,23496 69.55 7,88,23,408 69.55
{India) L4d {or on the date of
2 -separation, if separated 1,85,85,960 18.40 1,85,85,960 16.40
Ajit tsaac during the year)




{(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
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of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl Name of the | DPID/ ClientiD Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
No. | Shareholder . beginning of the year during the year . :
For Each of the | No.ofshares | % of total | No, of shares | % of
Top 10 shares of total
Shareholders the shares
company of the
compan
Y
4. | Net Resources | IN302269/14469266 | At the beginning of 12,94,100 5.02 12,94,100 5.02
investments Fvt. Lid. the year
28475 .11 28,475 a1
2. | Guruprasad IN302679/33705285
Srinivasan 38,525 0.15 38,525 0.15
3. IN300484/13065199
Amrita Nathani 6,700 0.03 8,700 0.03
4, N300484/13042002 :
Jaison Jose 20,100 0.08 20,100 .08
5. IN300484/14303306
Vijay Sivaram 13,400 0.05 13,400 0,05
6. iN303270/10429389
Pratibha J 20,100 20,100
7 Folio No. 17 0.3 | o008
Venkatesan IN300484/2021
Jayaraman :
1. | Net Resources | IN302269/14469266 | Aliotment of Rights 1.40,71,724 13. - 1,40,71,724 13.56
investment Pvt. Lid. Shares on
A e 22,12.2015 ang 96,737 0.1 98,737 0.1
2 Guruprasad’ IN302879/33705285 | allotment of shares
Srinivasan Bonus shares on_ 1,30,883 0.1§ . 4,30,883 0.15
3. ‘ IN300484/13065199 | 05.01.2016
Amrita Nathani : 22,760 0.03 22,760 0.03
4. : IN300484/13042002
Juison Jose 68,284 0. 68,284 008
5. : IN300484/14303906 ]
Vijay Sivaram 45,524 | 0. 45,524 0.05
8. IN303270/10429389
Pratibha J} 68,288 | 0. 68,288 0.08
7 Folio No. 17 ]
Venkatesan IN300484/20208582
Jayaraman
1. | Net Resources ; IN302269/14469266 | At the End of the 1,53,65,824 13.56 1,53,65,824 13.66
Investments Pvt. 14d. year ( or on the
date of separation, 1,25,212 0.1 1,25,212 0.11
2. | Guruprasad IN302679/33705285 | if separated during
Stinivasan the year) 1.69,408 0.15 1,869,408 0.15
3. IN300484/13065199
Amrita Nathani 28,460 .03 29,450 0.03
4. IN300484/13042002
Jaison Jose 88,384 0.08 88,384 0.08
5. IN300484/14303906
Vijay Sivaram 58,924 0.05 58,924 0.05
8. Praibin 4 IN303270/10429389 85388
88,388 X
7 Folio No. 17 0.08 0.08
Venkatesan
Jayaraman




J‘_’) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
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No.

of the year

Shareholding at the beginning

Cumutative Shareholding during

the year

For Each of the
Directors and KMP

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No, of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

1. | Ajit Isaac, Chairman,
Managing  Director&
CEO

At the beginning of
the year

46,46,490

18.03

46,468,490

18.03

Date wise Increase
f Decrease in Share
holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for
increase / decrease
{e.g. allotment /
transfer / borus /
sweat equity etc):

1,39,39470

12.29

1.39,39,470

12.28

At the End of the
year { or on the date
of separation, if
separated  during
the year)

1.85,85,960

16.40

1.85,85,960

16.40

V. INDEBTEDNESS of the Company including interest outstanding/faccrued but not due for
payment as on 31.03.2016

Secured Loans axcluding Unsecursd Deposits | Total indebtedness
depogits Loans {Amount {n Rs.)

Indebtedniess at the beginning of 165.06 Crores - - 165.06 crores
the financial year [} Principal
Amount i) Interest due but not
paid W)

Interest accrued but not dus —
Totat {i+i+id) 165.08 Crores - - 165.08 Crores
Change in indebtedness during - -
the financial year :

» Addition 97.68 Crores 97.68 Crores

* Reduction
Net Changs - -
Indebledness at the end of the - -
financial year )

)] Principal Amount 262.74 Crores 262.74 Crores
) fly Inferest due but

not paid
i) 'W’due accrued but 0.28 Lakhs 0.28 Lakhs
not .

Total {i+iiHil) 263.02 Crores - - 263,02 Crores

no.

Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. _A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
["§1. [ Particulars of Re

of perquisites ws 17(2) Income-ax
Act, 1961 {c) Profits in lieu of salary
ugg:r section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1

of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD! Manager Total Amount Total Amount
(inRs.)
1 Gross salary (a) Saary as Ajit [5azc, MD 1.45 Crores
provisions contained in section 17{1)
. of tha Income-tax Act, 1981 (b) Value | Subrata Nag WHTD Rs.0.90 Crores

Stock Uption

] ool

Sweat Equ

Commission - as % of proft - others,

Others, pleaso specify
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i | Total (A) | | 1 { | Rs.2.35Crores |
{1 Ceiling as per the Act 1 | | | | Rs.8.56 Crores |
B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:
sl Name of the Director Amount of Remunaration paid during Financial year 2015-16 Total amocunt
No. paid (in Rs.)
Sitting fee for attending Board | Commission paid
Meeting & Committes Mesting
1. | Mahendra Kumar Shama 30,000 - 30,000 |
2. i Marcel Raymond Parker 1,10,000 » 1,10,000
3. i Revathy Ashok 1,60,000 . 1,60,000
4. i Pratip Chaudhuri 1,40.000 - A0,000
5. Pravir Kumar Vohra 1,10,000 - 1,20.000
6. Harsha havan - - -
7. Madhavan Karunakaran - - -
Menon .
8. Sanjay Anandaram 60,000 - 80,000
9, | Chandran Ralnaswarni - -
Tatal

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN D/MANAGER/WTD

§l. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel Total Amount
no. | Remuneration {in Rs.)
CEQ [ CFO
1 Gross salary (a) Salary as | Already Rs.0.27 Crores Already fumished underthe | Rs.0.27 Crores
per provisions contained in | fumished under head “WHTD
section 17(1) of the Income- | the head “‘MD"
tax Act, 1961 {b) Valuo of Rs.0.90Crores
perquisites wis  17{2} | Rs.1.45 Crores
income-tax Act, 1961 (c) .
Profitarin lisu of salary under
section 17{3) Income-tax
Act, 1961
2 Stock Option Not  applicable Nif Nit.
as MD is a
promoter.
3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nit Nit
4 Compmission - as % of profit Nit Nit Nit Nit
-~ others, specify... - - -
5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nit
Total Rs.1.45 Crores Rs.0.27 Crores Rs.0.80 Crores Rs.0.27 Crores
Ceiling as per the Act Within the Not Applicable Within the cellings Within the
ceilings ceilings
VIi. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil
Type Section of the Brief Description Authority {RD / Appeal made, if Brief Dascripti
Companies At | DetallsofPenalty/ | NCLT/ COURT] any (give Details of Penaity /
Punishment/ Details)
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FORM AOC-1 )
{PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 129 READ WITH

» RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014)
STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES
Part "A”: Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)
{Rs. in Crores

S. No.

Particulars

1

2

3

4

5

[

7 8

Name of the
subsidiary

Coachieve
Solutions
Private
Limited

MFX Infotech
Private
Limited

Aravon
Services
Private
Limited

Quess
Comp{USA)
Inc, (earier
known as
Magna
Infotech  Inc.,
USA)

IKYA
Business
Services
Private
Limited, Sri
tanka

Quess

{Philippines)

Corp

Brainhunter
Systems
Limited,
Canada

Mindwire
Systems
Limited,
Ofltawa

Reporting
period for the
subsidiary
concemed

901.04.2016
o
31.03.2016

01.04.2015
to
31.03.2016

01.04.2015
o
31.03.2016

01.04.2015 to
31.03.2016

01.04.2015
to
31.03.2016

01.04,2015

to

31.03.2016

01.04.2015
to
31.03.2016

01.04.20
15
31.03.20
1%

to

Reporting
currency

iNR

INR

INR

KR

PHP

CAB

CAD

Exchange rate
as on the last
date of the
ralevant
Finangial year
in the case of
foreign
subsidiaries

NA

NA

NA

65,48

0.43

1.42

§0.27

50.27

Share capital

KA Y

1.00

3941

0.63

123

24,57

12.57

Reserves &
surplus

IE)

0.652

(34.80)

0.33

0.97

{63.89)

(26.99)

Total assets

1.20

22.87

23.36

5.03

448

71.87

32.48

Total Liabllitias

1.20

22.87

5.03

448

71.87

3248

Investments

10.

Tumover

1.16

2088 |

54.2¢

283

513

181.91

1.

Proft  before
taxation

@.70)

0.04

485)

0.62

293

683 |

12

Provision  for
taxation

0.01

017

0.00

13,

Profit after

taxation

{3.70)

0.03

{4.85)

0.12)

044

293

6.83

14,

Proposed
Dividend

15.

% of
sharehoiding

100

100

300

w5t

100

100

100
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S. Particulars | § 10 kk| 12 13 14 135
No.

1.| Name ofthe | Brainhunter | Brainhunter Quessglobal Quesscorp MFXchange MFXchange | MFXchange
subsidiary Companies | Companies {Mataysia) Holdings Pte. Holdings Inc. {USA) Inc. {lreland)

t1C, USA Canada, Inc. | Sdn. Bhd,, Ltd., Singapore | Canada Limited(ip
fiquidation)

2. | Reporting 01.04.2015 01.04.2015 to | 01.04.2015 to | 16.06.2015 {0 | 01.01.2015 {o | 01.01.2015 01.01.2015 to
period for | to 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.03.2016 31.12.2016 to 31.12.2016
the 31.03.2016 31.12.2016
subsidiary
concemed

3. Reporting CAD CAD MYR SGD usp usb usp
cuiency

4. | Exchange 50.27 50.27 16.60 48.40 65.48 §5.48 65.48
rate as on
the fast date
of the
relevant
Financial
year in the
case of
foreign
subsidiaries —

§.{ Share - 0.00 0.83 11.00 230.85 90,72 2521
ca .

6. | Reserves & ~751 - {0.08) 0.18 (56.34) 91.59 50.97
SUTpius . ; _— i -

7. | Total assels 199 0.00 0.77 11.18 179.25 87.77 76.18

8.| Total 1.99 0.00 0.77 11.18 179.25 87.77 76.18

9.1 Investments - - - 2.83 173,20 12.38 75.06

10/ Tumover 938 - 296 - 9.52 1656.30 -

11| Profit before {"’3.88) - {0.02) {0.05) (1.42) {0.58) (0.11)

fian

12} Provision for - - - - - - -
taxation

13| Profit  after (3.88) - {0.02) {0.05) {1.42) (0.59) (0.11)
taxation

14 - - - - - - -
Dividend

15} % of 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
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ANNEXURE-IlI
CS ORT
Co TE SO ESPONSIBILITY (CSR

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014}

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR palicy and projects or
programs.

Quess believes in creating significant and sustainable societal value, inspired by a vision to
actively contribute to the community by creating a positive impact on the lives of people,
especially in the areas of health and education. Our CSR initiatives are carried out through the
Careworks Foundation (CWF), a nonprofit initiative established in January, 2014.

CSR VISION STATEMENT & OBJECTIVE:

“To actively contribute to the community in which we operate creating a positive impact on the
lives of people especially in the areas of health and education. In so doing build a heaithy and
educated workforce and provide sustainable livelihood for the weaker sections of society.”

~ The objective of the Quess CSR:

> Ensure an increased commitment at all levels in the organization, to operate its business
in an sconomically, socially & environmentally sustainable manner, while recognizing the
interests of all its stakeholders.

> To directly or indirectly take up programmes that benefit the communities in & around its
work centers and results, over a period of time, in enhancing the quality of life, & healthy
& educated workforce.

» To generate, through its CSR initiatives, a community goodwill for Quess Group and
help reinforce a positive & socially responsible image for Quess Group as a corporate

entity.
Focus Area : Health & Education

CWF has till date made a difference to 5,700 lives. Find below the CSR projects implemented
through CWF in the financial year 2015~ 16

Activities 201516 Plan for 201617

Project
Cost{Rs.)

-{ 7 Std. Education kit inciudes Schoot bag, Nota
. books & Stationeries. Benefited 2528 children.

| Education Kit: Given fo chiidren from 15t 5td 10 | 12.00 Lakhs | To reach 1800 children providing Education Kits for their education.

backwards students who have potential, but lack
financial support, hy giving them new

ities for education

Scholarshlp: Scholarship helps economically 8Lakhs | Support 150 Meritorious childrens by providing scholarships 1o the need.
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Project
Activities 201516 CostlRs)

Plan for 2016-17

program. To help poor students excel in their
chosen disciplines.
Benefited : 124 students

School Enhancement Program: School | 88.40 Lakhs
enhancement program is a flagship initlative of
Quess. The focus is to work with govemment
schools 1o enhance quafity of education.
activiles that support proper leaming
environment by providing habltable
surraundings.

Benefited : 1300 ¢hi!dren

Proposed to adopt 10 schools & support 1500 children through School
enhancerment program.

Grant in Ald to economically challenged 1.5 Lakhs
students for skill development and higher

education

Considered as continuous activity for every financial year.

Chennai Fiood Relief. Rescue, Rehabilitation 6.3 Lakhs
:{n:oheaiﬁmms organized for Flood victims.

by ghing food & basic

Quess through CWF is always commifted fo such supporfive

1 rehabilitation at imes as and when takes place.

supported
necessities : Supported 13225 people

In conclusion, we have had a good year with several initiatives and acquisitions that are likely to
bear fruit over-the next few years. Even as we continue to grow at industry leading fevels, we
continue to focus on the bottom line and on maintaining a healthy balance sheet. Our focus in
all this is to secure just rewards for all of our stakeholders (our clients, our shareholders, our
employees and our bankers) who have stood by us through out. .

Material changes occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the Company to
which .the balance sheet relates and the date of the report like setlement of tax liabilities,
operation of patent rights, depression in market value of investments, institution of cases by or
against the company, sale or purchase of capital assets or destruction of any assets etc.

There is a dedicated link for the C8R activity on the Quess portal detailing the CSR activities of

the company.

http;//quesscorp.com/care-works/, www.careworksglobal.org

2. The Composition of the CSR Commitiee.

CSR Committeo(Re- | Ms. Revathy Ashok
Constituted on | (Chalrperson of the Commities)
18.01.2016) Mr. Alit Abraham jsaac .

Mr. Pravir Kemiar Vohra

1. The commilico to formulate and recommend to the board, a
TSR policy. which shall indicate »
s The activities to be underaken by the oompany as
speeiuaded\sduleVllorWCompamgs
. Rewmmndmoamountofewmlobohmdon
the aforesaid activities
s Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the
company from time to time.
2. The corramitiee to prepare a transparent moniloring mechanism
for ensuring implamentation of the projects / program / activities
proposed to be underiaken by the company.

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: (Quess on standalone basis):

Rs. 37.31 Craore and estimated CSR liability of 2% on above: Rs. 74.62 Lakhs.{Incurred CSR

Expenditure of Rs.118.2 Lakhs).

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in iftem 3 above)
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Activities 2015-16 Project Cost(Rs.)
Education Kit 12 Lakhs
Scholarship Program 8 Lakhs
School Enhancement Program 88.40 Lakhs
Chennal Flood Relief 6.3 Lakhs

Provided Grant in Aid to differently abled and economically challenged students for skili development and | 1.5 Lakhs
higher education

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.

(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year; Rs.116.2 Lakhs spent during the financial
year 2015 -16.

And an amount of Rs. 75.64 Lakhs was'part of CSR contribution in the financials for the year
ended on 31.03.2016 under Note No.27 to the financials.

{b} Amount unspent, if any; N.A.
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

nal F Natural
W

xnount Amount spentonthe  JCumulative unt spent
1. Sector  in|Projects or programs(1) Local area j2Ut2Y g  |priectsorprograms Jexpendire  ['REC  Spe
S. [CSR project or thejor other(2) Specify the State and (budge or Sub - heads:{1) Direct {up to the " otigh
No [activity identified jproject is where projects or programs enditure on projects [reporting mplementi
covered s underiakén OgRAMS Lo programs(2) ls:ﬂod ag';my. g
. Rs. Overheads Rs. .
1 |Education it EEc'lmration Program was undertaken at 12,60,000.00/ 42,00,000.00] 12,00,000.00]Spent through
) Karnataka, Tamil Nadu {(Salem, Careworks
Chiennal, Madhurai) New Foundation
{Dethi{Delhi) Haryana {(Gurgaon).
Kolkata (Kolkata) &Telengana.
2 _WScmlalship Education 1.Kamataka :Eangabre.Ballary 8,00,000.00 8,08,000.008 8,00,000.00}Spent through
’ Kolar,Mandya ICareworks
Foundation
Chitradurga, ShimogaDistrict
2.Chatlisgerh : Raigarh
3. Haryana : Gurgaon
4.Kerala : Emakulam&Trivandrum
8, Yamil Nadu :Salom, Thoothukudi
Colmbatore,Chennal Kanchipuram,
Madurai
3 [School [Education lﬁongalum Rural and Thinhahall, | 86,40,000]
Enhancement Shimoga district R
Program
3 Fioo amil Nadu : Chennal 6.30,000
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[Tamil Nadu 1.50,000 1.50, 1.50,000Spent through
Careworks
Foundation
" *Give detafis of iImplementing agency.

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last
three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending

the amount in its Board report: Not Applicable.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitering of ‘
CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company

Date: 17 .05.2016

Chairperson of the CSR Committee

[P
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ANNEXURE-IV
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

CONTEXT The purpose of this Policy is to set over principles, parameters and
Govemnance framework of the remuneration for Directors, KMPs and Senior
Management Personnel.

This policy will assist the Board to ftﬂﬁll its responsibility towards atiracting, retaining
and motivating the Directors, KMPs, and Senior Management Personnel and
reasonable remuneration in line with the corporate and individeal performance.

This document outlines following policies/guidelines:

A. Performance Evaluation of Directors
B. Remuneration principles

Evaluation Of Directorsd& KMP’'s and Senior Managerial Personnel :

For the purpose of détermining remuneration the Nomination and Remuneration
Committes shall evaluate depending on the company's profitability in line with the
thresholds prescribed under the Companies Act 2013. The remuneration shall be a
mix of fixed and variable payflong-term pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its strategic
goals. :
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ANNEXURE-V

Particulars of Loans, guarantees, or investments under section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year15-16:

Loans:
L.oans to subsidiaries:

1. Coachieve Solutions Private Limited: Rs. 58080000/-
2. MFX Infotech Private Limited: Rs.147500000/-
3. Aravon Services Private Limited: Rs. 40000000/-

Guarantees/securities:

1. Corporate Guarantee provided to the lender (banks) on behalf of MFX Infotech Private
Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company: Rs.6 Crores.

2. Corporate Guarantee provided fo the lender (banks) on behalf of ,Aravon Services Private
Limited the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company: Rs.7 Crores.

3. Corporate Guarantee provided to the lender (banks) on behalf of ,Brainhunter Systems Lid,
Canada the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company: Rs. 61.99Crores

Investments:
Investment made in Quesscorp Holdings Pte. Lid. : Rs.110,0000,000

Aravon Services Private Limited: Rs.100/-

Note: the Board and shareholders of the company had approved necessary investments in
terms of section 186 of the Companies act 2013 and as on date of the audited financials the
Company had the aforesaid limits with in the maximum permissible under the Act.
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ANNEXURE-V]
RE D SACTIONS APPROVED DURING THE YEAR
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3) of secuon 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of cbntractslarrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/iransactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if aﬁy
* (e} Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(F) date(s) of approvat by the Board

(g9} Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188

2, Details of material contracts or a ent or transactions at arm’s length basis(wit

in th S under rules

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

i.  Thomas Cook {india) Limited{(Holding Company)

ii. MFX Infotech Private Limited(Subsidiary Company)

iii. Net Resource Investments Private Limited(Enterprise owned by Key Managenal
Personnel)

iv.  National Collateral Management Services Limited(Group Company of Fairfax Financial
Holdings Limited)

v.  Aravon Services Private Limited(Subsidiary Company)

vi.  Brainhunter Systems Limited, Canada(Overseas Subsidiary Company)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Sie. Name of the subsidiary Transaction " Amount (in Rs.)
i Thomas — Cook  (india)  Limited(Hoiding | Hendering Services 1o Fokiing Rs. 170,412,354

Company) Company
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Avaiing of Ticketing& Misc. Rs.28,218,0104
services from Holding Company
it MEX Infotech Private Urmtsd(Subsidnary Rendering Services to Rs.7473,011/-
Company) Subsidiary Company .
_{Manpower Services)
i Net Resource Investments Private | Availing of Services(Lease of Rs..31,420,692/-
Limited(Enterprise owned by Key Managerial | propesty}
Personnel)
v National Colfateral Management Services | Renderdng Services o Group Rs.101,873,561/-

v Aravon -Services Private Limited{Subsidiary | Rendering Services to Rs. 1,263,331/-
Company) Subsidiary Company{Lease of
Kiichen Premises)
vi. Bralnhunter Systems Limited, Canada | Rendering Services to Rs.12,767,698/-
(Overseas Subsidiary Company} Subsidiary Company(Manpower
Services,
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
Si.No. Narne of the subsidiary Transaction Duration/Term of contract
§ Thamas ©Cook  (indla) Limited(Holding | Rendering Services 1o Holding | Contract entered for
Company) Company manpower seivices for a
period of une yearrenewable
on yeady basis for a fees
depending on ihe level and
CTC of professional man
power services. commenced
from . 01.02.2014 and
renéwed in April 2016,
Avalling of Ticketing& Misc, | Onactual basis
‘services from Holding Company
il MFX Infotech Private Limited(Subsidiary | Rendering Senicas to | Master Services Agreement
Company) Subsidiary Company (Manpower | fo  provida  Manpowar
Services) Services for a period of one
year renswable on yeady
basis for a fees depending
on the level and CTC of
professional man  power
services commenced from
June 1, 2105.
i Net  Resource  investments  Private To ftake on Leass of

Limited(Entermprise owned by Key Managerial
Personnel)

Availing of Services{Lease of
idtchen premises) .

premises for 8 years for
corporate PLIpOses
commencing 01.08.2014 4t
31.07.2023 for a monthly
rental of 18.23.05 lakhs on a
incremental basis of 5% at
the end of

National Collateral Management Services
Limited

Rendering Services to Group
Company

Gommdemarodfor

manpowsr  services
Ngusti,ﬂﬁfor;nhﬁtﬁto
pericd and can be
terminated by sotving a
wnittens notice of one month
aither

Aravon Services Private Limited(Subsidiary
Company)

byeltherpatty. |
To subease for tweive (12)
months with an irevocable
jock-in-pardod  of  six(6)
months August
1%, 2015 and can be
ranewed by seving three (3)

months notice by either
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W Brawhuiiar  Sysieme Limfied, Canada | Rendening — Sevices 1o | Contrak eniored  Tor
(Overseas Subsidiary Company) Subsidiary Company(Manpower | manpower services
Services)

{d) Salient terms of the contracfs or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

[ SiNo. Name of the subsidiary

Transaction

Salient fealures of the contract

i Thomas Cook {india) Limited
(Haolding Company)

Rendering Services to
Company

Holding

Contract enterad for manpower
services for a period of one year |
renewable on yearly basis for a fees
depending on the level and CTC of
professional man power services
commencad from 01.02.2014 and
renewed in April 2016.

Availing of Ticketing& Misc. services
from Holding Company

On actual basis

ii MFX infotech Private
Limited(Subsidiary Company}

Rendering Services 1o Subsidiary
Company (Manpower Services)

Master Services Agreement to
provide Manpower Services for a
period of one year renewable on
yeary basis for fees depending on
the level and CTC of professional
man power services commenced
from June 1, 2105.

K Net Resource Investments
Private Limited{Enterprise owned

by Key Managerial Personnef)

Availing of Services{l.eass of propery)

1 commencing

To take on Lease of premises for 8
years for corporate purposes
01.08.2014 tili
31.07.2023 for a monthly rental of
rs.23.05 iakhs on a incremental
basis of 5% at the end of every
year.

v National Collateral Management
Services Limited

Rendering Services to
Subsidiary

Fellow

Contract entered for manpower
services on August 1, 2015 for an
infinita period and can be terminated
by serving a written notice of one
raonth by either party.

v Aravon  Services  Private
Limited(Subsidiary Comparty)

Renderng Services to Subsidiary
Company{L.ease of Kitchen Premises)

To sub-lease for twelve {12) months
with an imevocable lock-in-petiod of
six{6) months commencing August
1%, 2015 and can be renewed by
serving threa (3) months nctice by
either pasty.

vi. Brainhunter Systems Limited,
Canada (Overseas Subsidiary
Company)

Rendering Services to Subsidiary
Company (Manpower Services)

Contract entered for manpower
services

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

i. Thomas Cook (India) Limited: being made on arm's length basis no such approval is
required being within the thresholds prescribed under Rules made fo Section 188 of the

Act.

ii. Net Resources Investments Private Limited: Obtained the approval of the Board and

shareholders on 19.07.2014.

iii. MFX Infotech Private Limited: Obtained the approval of the Board and shareholders on

14.10.2014.
on 1510.2016

iv.  National Collateral Management Services Limited: Obtained the approval of the Board
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v. Aravon Services Private Limited: being made on arm’s length basis no such approval is
required being within the thresholds prescribed under Rules made to Section 188 of the
Act and obtained omnibus approval at the Board meeting held on 22.12.2015,

vi. Brainhunter Systems Limited: being made on arm’s length basis no such approval is
required being within the thresholds prescribed under Rules made to Section 188 of the
Act and obtained omnibus approval at the Board meeting held on 22.12.2015.

(f) Amount paid as advances, Nil
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NEXURE-VHI
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
Legal Framework

Risk Management is a key aspect of the Corporate Governance Principles which aims to
improve the governance practices across activities of Quess Corp Limited. Risk management
policy and processes will enable to proactively manage uncertainty and changes in the internal
and external environment to limit any negative impact and also capitalize on opportunities. For
the purposes of this policy, references to Quess Corp Limited mean Quess Corp Limited and all
of its subsidiaries.

Objective and Purpose of the policy

The main objective of this policy is fo ensure sustainable business growth with stability and fo
promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the
business. In order to achieve the key objective, the policy establishes a structured and
disciplined approach to Risk Management, in order fo guide decisions on risk related issues.

The specific objectives of the Risk Management Policy are:

1. To ensure that all the current and future material risk exposures of the company are
identified, assessed, quaniified, appropriately mitigated, minimized and managed (which
means- to ensure adequate systems for risk management).

2. To establish a framework for the company'’s risk management process and to ensure its
implementation.

3. To enable compliance with appropriate regulations, wherever applicable, through the
adoption of best practices.

4, To assure business growth with financial stability.

Disclosure in the Director's Responsibility Statement

The company’s Board of Directors shall include a statement indicating development and
implementation of a risk management policy for the company including identification therein of
elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the
company. .

Background and Implementation

Any company is prone to inherent business risks. This document is intended to formalize a risk
management policy, the objective of which shall be identification, evaluation, monitoring and
minimization of the identifiable risks.

* .
The Board of Directors of the Company ahd the Audit Committee shall periodically review and
evaluate the risk management system of the Company, so that the management controis the
risks through a properly defined network.
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The respective 'Head of Department’ shall be responsible for the implementation of the risk
management system as may be applicable to their respective areas of functioning and report to
the Board of Directors and the Audit Commitiee.

Risk Management Committee

A risk management committee shall be constituted by the company consisting of such number
of directors, as the Board of Directors thinks fit. The Board shall also define the roles &
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and may delegate monitoring and reviewing
of the risk management plan to the Committee and such other functions as it may deem fit.

Application of the policy
This policy applies to all areas of the company’s operations. .
Role of the Board of Directors

The Board will undertake the following actions to ensure risk is managed appropriately:

" a) The Board shall be responsible for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk
management plan for the company.

. b) The Board shall define the roles and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
and may delegate monitoring and reviewing of the risk management plan to the
Committee and such other functions as it may deem fit.

¢) Ensure that the appropriate systems for risk management are in place.

d) The independent directors shall help in bringing an independent judgment to bear on the
Board's deliberations on issues of risk management and satisfy themselves that the
systems of risk management are robust and defensible; '

e) Participate in major decisions affecting the organization's risk profile;

f) Have an awareness of and continually monitor the management of strategic risks;

g) Be satisfied that processes and controls are in place for managing less significant risks;

h) Be satisfied that an appropriate accountability framework is working whereby any
delegation of risk is documented and performance can be monitored accordingly;

i) Ensure risk management is integrated into board reporting and annual reporting
mechanisms;

i} Convene any board-committees that are deemed necessary to ensure risk is adequately
managed and resolved where possible.

Review of the policy

This policy shall be raviewed at least every year to ensure it meets the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations and the needs of company.




1_\

B S R & Associates LLP

Chartered Acecountants

Maputhi info-Tech Centre Telephone: + 91 8039806000
11-12/1 inner Ring Road Fax: + 91 80 39806389
Keramangats

v Bangalore 560 071 india

{ Indepgndent: Auditors® Report
: To the Members of Quess Corp Limited
3 - (formerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Report.on the Standalone Financis] Stateménts
i We have audited the accompanying standalone financial stafements of Quess Corp Limited 6’amerly
i known' as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (e Company’); which compfise the
batance sheet as at-31 March 2016, the statement:of profit and loss and the cash flow statement for the
v year then ended; and a summary of significant sécounting policies and other explanatory information,

NManagement’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statemeiits

H The Company’s Board ‘of Ditectors-is: respansible for the matters-stated in Section 134(5) of the
5‘ Compamu Act, 20}3 (‘ﬂw Act’): vmh respect to preparauon an& pmentauon of these stmx!alone

mclﬁdingthe Acconntmg zcifi Comp:

read- with Rille 7 of fhié Cempames (Acmunts) Rn!es, 2014. “This. respomib;hty also mcludes
. maintenance of ‘adét 3 g Técords. in. sccordance with the provisions. of the Act for
safeguarding - ofﬂsemtsofme(:ompmyandfor ptewnﬂnganddeteetmgﬁmdsaodoﬂm
irreguilarities;. selection and application: of appropriale accounting Jici

estimates that -are reasonable and: prudent; des ¥ and ; 3
internal financial controls; operating frectively for existiring the decuracy asid complemms of
the: aecmmung records, relevaiit ﬂwprepa.rﬁhon arid presentation.of the fifiancial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from: matenal missiatement, whcther due to fraud or error.

pRCTTETN

Auditors* Responsibility .
Our respongibility is to-express an opinion on these standaldne firianéial statements based on our andit.

We have taken into actount the pravisions of the Act, the accounting ard. auditing standards and matters
which-are required to be included in-the Audit Report-under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder.

; We conducted our audit in aceordance with the:Standards on Auditing under Section 143(10)of the Act.
Those standards tequire that we comply with.ethical requirernents and plan and perform the apdit to
 Gbitain reasoniable assiirarice abiout whether the finaricial statements are free from maerial misstatement.

3
C g

’
Ny 4
{
.. esmmnwmm Regivtacnd Offices
BS&&M:;WHPHMW ;::;ﬂ. ;
Mty
Parteacshp with LLP Registration No. AMAB-3162 N,\&MWM’

RNV

with effsct from October 14, 2013 Muwbal - 400 011
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

[
i

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controf relevent to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a frue and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also inciudes evalvating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial
statements,

3

e
{

R We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
i our audit opinion on the standalone financial stetements.

Opinion

i In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
: aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
i India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016 and its profifs and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date. )

Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's: Reporf) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A", a statement on the maters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order,

2, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by
’ this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies.
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2016
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2016 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”; and
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Independent Auditors’ Report {continued)
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() with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
{“ of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
1. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standaione financial statements — Refer Note 7 and Note 29 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative confracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. there were no amounts during the year which were required to be transferved to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

Jor BS R & Associates LLP
{ ’ Chartered Accountants
3 Firm’s Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Membership No.: 092084

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 17 May 2016




ey

B S R & Assodlates LLP

Independent Auditors® Report {conlinued)

Aanexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexire referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to.the members of Quess Corp Limited
{ormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (‘the Company'} on the

standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016, we report that:

®

(i

(iii)

(i)

[\
(vi)

(vii)

@

®

©

@

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

‘The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in.a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this
programme, certain fixed assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

The Company does not have any immovable properties. Thus, paragraph 3(i){c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

- The inventories have becn physwaﬂy verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion,

sthe frequency of such verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

The Company has granted loans to companies covered in the register mamtamed under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

(2) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the
companies covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were not,
prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

() In case of loans granted to the companies covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, the terms of arrangements do not stipulate any repayment
schedule and the loans are repayable on demand, therefore paragraph 4(HiXb) and
4(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the joans,
guarantees and investments made.

‘The Company has riot accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and. on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Income tax, Professional tax, Employee’s
State Insurance, Service tax, Value added tax, Sales tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate

~* authorities though there has been certain defays in few cases. As explained to us, the Company did
% not have any dues on account of Employee Stafe Insurance, Investor Edmﬁon and Protection
(J* Fund, Wealth tax, Customs duty and Excise duty. >
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f;‘ Independent Auditors® Report (cantinued}

1 Acconding to the information and explanations given fo us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Income tax, Professional tax, Employee’s State Insurance, Service tax,

I Value added tax, Sales tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March

i * 2016 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of duty of

F customs, sales tax, duty of excise, valuc added tax and other statutory dues whick have not been
i deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, according to
information and explanations given to us, the following dues of Income tax, Service tax and
P Pravident fund and have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:
' Nameofthe | Naturcof Amount{in | Period to which || Forum where
. Statute | _Dues i . .Rs) .| amountrelates. J:disputeis pending
H - Provident Fund | Provident fund | 42,887,523 | Apiil 2008 to - Eriployees’
'  and . (19,721,881)* | February 2012 | Provident Fund
. Miscellaneous | ’ - Appellate Tribunal,
k2 - Provisions Act,.} i| New Delhi
{ 1952 SV PN PN SO |
[ Income-tax Act, |Interest ~ 7} 3,929,705 2004-05 ¥ Commissioner of }
{ 1961 AIT  (appeals), |
H . SO ¢ — 3| Chennai .
‘Finance  Act,).interest 4,659,970 April2009t0 ;f Commissioner of
1994 (1,649,301)* | September 2011 || Central  Excise |
* Chapter 'V, The.| Interest
.  Finance Act}
1994
¥ represents payment made under protest.
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information.and explanation given to us, the Compaay has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions, banks and debenture holders.
{ix) The Company did not raise any monsy by way of initial public offer or further public offer
- . (including debt instruments) and term Joans during the year. Thus, paragraph 3 {ix) of the Order is
; not applicable.
) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on

the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our
audit,

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
i records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in
) accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the prowsnom of Section 197 read with
. Schedule V to the Act.

1 (xify iz Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is nota

x ‘, nidhi company. Thus, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

] N o »
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Independent Auditors’ Report {continued)

g— (xiii) According to the information and explanatiens given to us and based on our examination of the

. records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177

{ . and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclesed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xvi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly converiible debentures during the year.

gf {xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
: records of the Company, the Comgany has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. h

i (xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934, Thus, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

for BS R & Associates LLP
! Chartered Accountanis
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Vineet Dhawan
Partrer
Membership No.: 092084

Place: Bengaturu
Date; 17 May 2015
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Independent Auditors® Report {continued)

Annexare - B to the Independent Auditors® Report

Report on the Taternal Financial Controls under Clanse {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Quess Corp Limited
(formerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (“the Company™) as of 31
March 2016 in conjunction with onr audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internial financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Compaay considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ((ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, inciuding adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors® Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on-the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our awdit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting inciuded obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controt based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

7y We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
} our audit opinjon on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continueil)
Meaning 'of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporiing

A compiny’s iritémal fifldncial control over finanecial’ Teporting iS a process designed 10 provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability .of financial-reporting and thie preparation of financizl statements for
extérnial piirposes ‘in accordanice with generally accépied deesiinting prificiples. A -company's intémal
financial controf over financial reportmg incliades those policies and procedures that (l) pertain to the

iatice .of - : thi le detsil, -accurately and fairly refléct the transactions and
dispositions of the-assets o the company; (2):provide-reasonsble assurance that transactions:are recorded
43 mecessdry 16 permit ‘preparation of finiancial statements in accardance with generally accepied
accounting - pnncxplw, and that receipts -and expendifures of the company are bemg made only in
aceordarice with-authorisations of mandgement and:-directors of the company; arid (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding; prevegtion-or timely. détection of unmuthoriséd dcquisition, use, or disposiiion of the
company's assets that could-have a: ‘aterial effect onr the financial statements.

Inkierent Limitations of Inéeriial Financial Controls Gver Financial Reportiog

Bécause of thg inherent liinitatioiis of intérnal ﬁnancml conirdls over firiancidl reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or iinproper managenient ovetride of contrels, material misstatements due to effor
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, :projections -of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to-fisture pericds are: ot 1o, the risk that the intemnal financial control
over financial. reporting may. becoriie: madequate “becaise of changes in conditions; or that the degree of
compliaice with the policies of proceduires may-detefforate;

Opinjon:

It ot opinjon; the: Company s, in all miaterial réspects, an adeqoate intémal finéincial controfs:systetn
over financia] repotting and such internal financial controls over ‘financial mpartmg were operafing
eﬂ'echvelyas at 31 March 2016, based oiv'the intesfial-control over financial repotting critetia.establishied

onsidering the essential components of internal controf-stated in the ‘Guidance Note on
Tiiternial Bmancml Controls Over Financial' Reporting issued by the Instinite of Chartered
Agcountapis of India.

JorBS R & Associates LLP
Charteréd Accoinitants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

Yineet Dhiawan
Partrer
Membership No.: 092084

Place: Bengaluri
Date: 17 Mdy 2016




Quess Corp Limited

(formerly known as IK¥A BUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Balsnce sheet

Equity 3ad Liabilities
Sharetolders’ funds
‘Shase capital
Reserves and surplus

No-turrent Jiabitities
Long-lorm borasvings

. Other long-tenm lisbilities

Long-tervn provisians

Currest linbilitles
Short-term borrowings
“Trade payables

Other cumen? liabilities
Shott-team provisions

Assets

Nos-current assels
Fixed asts
Tangible assers
Intangible assets
Intangible assels under development

Nom-cument inestinens
Deferred iax asset (net)
Long-termn loans Bnd ndvances
Other non-curen sssets

Curreat assets
Tnventorics
Trade recelvables

Other corseat sssels

) Significant accounting policies

RN T Y

9.
10
it

12s)
$2(b)
2

13
4

1%

7
13
19
0
21

{Amomt in Rs)
Asat Asar
31March2006 31 Mavch 201§
1,133,330.560 252,737,640
2343016337 337,129,583
476,367,097 2,594,367,223
1.564.609 -
- 6,666,667
. 1 83,) 2
83,178,335 91,780,460
2627.448,176 1.650,617,154
161.033.211 124,693,712
3223492267 1.753,381,566
-] l967,!75
64 3.591153,607

162395354 131,896,937
269.691,293 937.546.341
1 -
f;ﬂo.m% TTL69443,278
155036177 46,030,677
2:5.928585 27.866.769
779,578.244 527,203,819
o 22800686 8,276,182
1174337652 09576847
13.222.157 5.28237)
3362308 2,156,665,64)
$69.051.030 706:914,320
333912,320 397,169,383
2 7. 32,454,904

Thie notes seferred sa above form an integsal part of 1he standwone financia) SSatements

As per our tepont of even date altached

for BSR & Associates LLP

Chofieryd dcconnionfs

Np:; 18231 Wiw-100024

P

Place: Bengalure
Datee 17 May 2016

NV L Pav'an Kuw gt

N.V.S.Favan Kumsr
Canpony Secresary

for and on behaif of Bowrd of Directors of

Membership No.: A1 7010




Quess Corp Limited
ormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Statement of profit and foss

{Awiownt in Ry)
For fie period from
. For the yearended 1 Janoary 201440
Note SIMarch 2018 31 Mareh 2018
Revenue
Revesue from operations
Sale of services 2 29181 769, 23332826261
n.iar,ﬁ%z TBA1826.351
Other Income 23 83,602,328 65,82),666
Totst Revenye D6 BIRSOA]
Expenses
Cost ol matcrial and slores and spare pars consumed 24 412,135,180 522649279
Employee benchits expenses 25 25,884,201 015 20,875.400,950
Finance costs 2% 270862577 209,270,038
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 164,531,838 170,225,530
Other expenses 22 e 1311872016 ... ..§023.753950
Totat Expesses ' YT
Profit before tax . 1.218,773954 997,348,191
Tax expense:
- Curtemt tax {613,500,900) (290.732,484)
- Income 1ax credit for eatlics years 41 64,564,104 -
- Deferrtdd tox crediv/{chacge) for the yea/period 188,061 816 {69,262,628)
Profil afier tas M e 337.383,07
Earaings per equity share {face valoe of Rs 10 each) 30 .
« Basic 7.56 691
- Diluted ' ‘142 551
Stgalficant aceouniing polfcies 4
The notes referred to sbove form an integral part of the standalone finadcial statements
As per pur repost of even dote aitached.
for BS R& Assoclates LLP Jor and on behallof Board of Divestars of

Quezs Corp Limited
(formerly known az IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMETRD)

" Subrate Nag
& Monoging Dirsctor & Wholetinse Director &
Muinbership No.: 092084 CFG
PEN00087168 DIN : 02234000
HVERVIN @ ?ﬂ\lcm Kumat
N.V.SFavan Kumsr
PMace: Bengdlur Comparny Secretary

Dsze: 17 May 2016 Membership No.; A17010




Quess Corp Limited

Yoruserly knoven a3 IKYA HL&IAVC APFEAL SOLUTIONS LIAITED)

€avh flow atatemeat

Cash flows from ppevatiag activities
Profit before tas
Adjustments for:
Deprecistion and 3mortisation
Profit on.sale of [ixed assets, net
Deposits written off
Bad debis written of
Provision for bad and doublfil debis, ney
Provision no longer required written back
Lanbilitics ne longer reqaired written back
{nterest income on term deposits
Finance costs
Qperstlag cash flows before working capital changes
Changes in
. Trade receivables
{nventories
Long-tenn loans #nd advances
Short-term loans and advances
Onher nor-curtent asscts
Oilver suerent assels
Trade
Long term lizbilities and long termy provism
Cotrent Habilities snd shott-tenm pi
Cash geaerated froks operasions
Ditect 1axes paid, netof refund
Net exsh (uscs ln) l Pprovided by operaitag sctivities A}

Cash llows from ievesting activitles
Puschase of fised assers
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Loans given to subsidiaries
Luans repaid dy subsidiarics
Acquisition of subsidiaries

Benk deposits {having odipinal maturity of mare tihan three months)

Intevest income on term deposity
Net cash sed in investiag sctivities (8)

Cash flows from Ginanciag sclivities
Procoeds: from borrowings
Repayment of borowings
Praceeds from issue of equily shares
interest paid

Net cush provided by fiaancing sctivities (C)

Net increass in cash and cash equivalents (A+BAC)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginni el'lh: ipeniod
. Cash and cash fents aequired on anmal;

Cash ond cash mmluus 8t the eend of the. year/period mm nole %)

The notes refened o above form an integrel pan of the standalone financial statements

As perour report of even date sitxehed
Jor BSR& Assecistes LLP
Clnnmd
3D WMN%H&J’WIW-!GOOZJ

Place;

Bengalurs
Duate: 17 May 20i6

(Amotsy in Rs}
¥or the peried from
For theyenrended | Janwary 2014 1o
31 March 2036 3t March 2048
1216773954 997,348.191
164,531,838 170,225,530
- {395,852
13,698,198 1,000,000
- 4816175
25.665.23t 21391360
12.000,000) (25.030,608)
£1.579,200) €8417,956)
(6499.457) (8418.650)
210,862,577 209,270,038
1,671,453,141 1,361,738.730
{1.331,320.306) 192,736,556
(2,939,786} 35175
¢(16.167.119) (50,556,232)
(65.683,624) {52.628.875)
2744128 (5.921.524)
{1.520,530,120} {927:315.290)
3633949 120691678
{8.166,734} (9.876.682)
1624 353,931 7
522423401 341008 530
GITIB08) 219670910,
(140.235.827) 1142.250.887)
e 1413379
(246231079 (6:575.976)
163,265,928 »
(110,000,1003 {323.756577)
14.220 487 (51856279
3817.136 2431822
OIRISAIOTY o (TIS594818).
1.557,725,775 888,266,151
(610:000,000)

304 000.00@)

193,134, 755

153,072,565

648942391 206492137
o TR 289.372,
Jfor andd on behali'of Board of Directors of

N VS Pavan Kuwadt

N.V.S.Pavae Kumar
Ci

entpany Secretary
Membictship No.: 817010




Quess Corp Limited
fformerly known as IKYA GMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to the Tinaneial Statements for the year zuded 31 March 2016

Campany Qverview

Quess Corp Limited {formerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED} (‘the Company Yyisa Company meorpmud under the

peovisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 19 September 2007 originally 88 a 'Private Limived Company’ quently d into & "Limited

Company” on 2 july 2013. .

The Company has its mslskmd office in Bengaluny India. The Cmmnyis cﬂgsgnd in the business of y Staffing sesvices, exesutive search,
services. ping snd facility sevvices including engincering services, food services, skill dcvdopmm_ informetion

technalogy / infi ion fechnology enabled services and training scrvices: The Company changed its name lo Quess Cotp Limited cffective from 2

January 2013, With effect from 14 May 2013, Thomas Cook {India) Limited ("TCIL") has become the parent campany and Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited has become the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is ptoposmgan initial pubiic offtring of its equity shares of fece value of Rs 10 each (“the Issue™) under the SEBt ICOR Regulations
and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act™) amd the C v P and Al of Sccurities) Ruks, 2014,
Pursvant to this, the Company has filed is Draft Red Heming Prospectus dated | February 2016.

L Significant accounting podicies
The sccounting policics set out below have been applied coasistently to the pesiod ia the

1.1 Basis of preparation of financisi Statements

The financis! s hiave boen prapared and p 1 under the historical cost ion on the accrual basis of secountiag and comply with
the datory A St ibedd under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rute 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, ather
pronouncements of the Institute of Cbmmd Accouniams of india (ICAL’). and the provisions of the Act to the exient notificd and applicable.

The financiat are ted in Indian rupees and rounded ofT to nearest rupee,

P

£2  Useof estimates

The pregaration of i in di with fly Accepted A Principles in India requires M; to make
jud i and ptions that affect the application of accounfing poucxes and mpomd amaunts of assels, fiabilities, income and
expenses and the discl f contingent lisbilities as at the date of the financisl statements, The and plion used in the panying
fingncial saiements are based upon Ma ‘s evaluation of the rel Sacts and o as on the date of the financial statements..
Aciuat results could differ fram those estil and underiying plins are reviewed on an ongoing bus-s.\Any sevision 10 accounting estimates

i recognised prospeclively in current and future periods;
13  Revenue recogoition

Peaple and servicas

Revenue reldted 1o siaffing services e salary and incidental exp porary iates along with service charge are recognised in accordance
sﬁlhﬂuawdt«msmﬂtmmdaslhemh:dmrmmpﬁfnmw,

Revenue reiated to i ices are recognised at the time the candidate begins full time employment

Revenue refated to ive search and trainings arc recognised upon rendering of the service.

Revenue from training services is secognised prorafed over the period of training.

Global technology solutions

Revenue related to s:m'mg services i.e. salary and incidentsl of empl of Information Technology 7 Infc ion Technology
Services along with service charge are recognised in accordance with the wud terms and recognized as the related serviees are performei

Enahlead

Integrated focility manog
R for facility manag and food services are primarily eamed on fixed foe basis and are recopnised s por tie wims of the arangement

wnﬂmsecustm

Indystria] assel managesent

Revenue from operation and maint ices are p iy earncd on a fixed fee basis and are rosognized ratably over the period of the contract
wﬂhﬂum,fmmmgemmlsnmnmndmundwsmdmmmwdswmmwfmswwmo{ﬂw
arrangement with the custonier, [ .

]
Deferved revenue included in othcr cument Habilities represents amounts bitled in excess of revenue emed. Unbilled vevenue included in other
curment asscis represents revenme camed in excess of amouns billedi; -

Interest ingome

P ST i e s st SR A S i & v b




Quess Corp Limited
tharmerly known as INY.A HGMAN CAPITAL SOLGTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to the financial Statementy for the year ended 31 NMavch 2DI6

14 Fixedassets, depreciation and amorfisats

Tangibfe Fxed assels

Tangible fixed assets are sntadxnhc ooszofuqusnmnm eonsuuchun less accumulated deprecistion up fo the date of the balance shest. The cost of

an fiem of tangible asset comp: price. § g import duties snd othet aon-refundable taxes or levies and any directly ettributsble

cost of bringing the asset o iumd\‘mgeondmm for its intended use; my nded'mmnmndmbwsmwmmmymguhwrdmepm

Cost of the fixed assets nat ready for their intended use before such date, X capital work-in-p

lllngibk Tixed assets

Acquired intangible assets are mmally at cast, After initia! recognilion, an intangible asset is caried at its cost fess any accumulated
ond sy d i Toss, quent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the fiture economic benefits from

ﬂnsp«iﬂccssu to wlueb immgs

Intangible assets are iscd in the of profit ar loss over their estimated useful Jives, from the date they are availsble for usc bascd on the

expecbd pattern of cansumption of cconomic benefits of the asset.

Brend acquired as pm of acqmsulons af busi ialized as infangible asscis if theie vafue can be measured reliably on initial recognition

_and itis probable that the expected funtre ocg bm:f'tsthnlm attributable to the ssset will fow to the Company.
The canying value of these intangible assels is reviewed anuually for impairment and adjusted to the le amount. if requined.
Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed asscts is provided using the straightine. methed over the estimated uselul jife of the -assets. The Company beligves that the
existing usehuf m‘e as pm bclovz reprosents the best usefis} estimated fives of these assets, Accordingly, the Company fias canried out an intermal
sad ob ical advice where necessaty which is different from the uscful lives a5 preséribed under Part C of Schedule §f of the

Eyllo;ys Act 2013, Depreciati mddllmmddsposakwwwxdedmmhnbepemdmusg The estimated useful Hves of assels are a5

. an ‘;i'. i - R S ) . A m o

'ﬁanlandmadimry - : —— SO S —— 3,“!‘
Computee cquipment 3years
Fumiture and fixtures ) 5 years
Vehicles 3years

Office equipment ) ) Syears

i pr don o p i basis for all assels purchased and sold during the period. Individual assers costing Rs 5,000 or Jess sre

degmctamdatlhcmeoﬂml ssehold imp are ised pver the case ke or estimated oseful tife of 3 yours, whichever is lower,
Amortisation

Amostisation is provided at mtes calcul, ‘lowrileofl‘mcosimstimmdruidua!'v,dueofexhmamawaigmﬂimbnsisovuilsuﬁmmd
useful {ife.

The amortisation rate are as folfows:




Quess Corp Limited
ormerly ki ux TRV BUEMAN CAPITAL SOLGTIONS LIAITED)
Nates o the financial Statesients Tor the year saded 31 March 2016

15 Impalrment of assets

TMCmmemhwmsmmmmgnmsm mdmhandmmassc&(mcudmggoodwnlncragmmofammmpmma
cash gonerating unit may e impaited. IFany such i ion exists, the Comp um mmofmemeGym
of assels thal does not gencraic largely indepeadent cash inflows, the ble amount is d ined for the casls g g vnit to which esset
bdmgx\lfsuchuccvaabfcanmmlul'lhcaswarlbetecovenbltmuntofllucshgzmnungunl(mmchﬂwmbdnngsu!esnhm its
camrying amount, the carying amount is reduced 10 its recoverable amoont. The reduction is trested as 36 impairment loss and Is recognised in the
stalement of profit and loss. Ifaﬂwbdano:shecldﬁbtﬂm:xslnxndlcmmIhu:hpmwlyassescdmpwmmtbssmlollgcrt)nsls.{hc

ble amount is d and the asset is reflected &t the recoverable amounl sibject o i historical cost. An
impairment loss is reversed oty to the extent that ihe cammying smount of asset does not exceed the net buokva]uethawoﬂd have been determined.

if no impatrment [oss had been recognised.

1.6  [laveaturies

Iaventories (Raw materials and stores and sparcs) which comprise of finod bl lies and i bles are valued at
the lower of cost and net reatisyble vaive, Cost of # i hase price, ‘costs of cunvmwn and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventoties to their present location and condition. In dct:rmmmg the cost wclghled average cost method is used. Net reafisoble value is the estimated
selling price in.the ordinary cotrse of bus fesy the cstil d cosis to sell. The comparison of cost and nef realisablc value is mede on 2n item-by-
item basis.. .

Inveatories arc stated nef of write down or allowanges on account of ohsolete, damaged ot show mavihg #ems;

17 Forcge ge tr tons and transiatl
Fomgn exchange I d using the exchange rotes prvvmmg on the detes of the resp Exch diffe
arising on foreign exchange tmsmwm smled dlmng the year are recognised in the staternent of profit and loss for zhcyw

Monetary assets and liabifities di d in foreign ies 2s at the balance sheet date are wmaslated at the closing exchange rates: the resultant

xchange diffcrences are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
hange rate af the date of

Non-monelary items which are cawried i terms of historical cost denominated in & foreign 'y arc reposted using the
.the transaction. .

1.8 Investments

Long-term investments are valued al £ost less any tiher than teniporary diminution in valae, determined on a specific identification besis. -

19 Employee denefits
Post employment besefits

Defired consribusion plan

A defined contribation plen s & p ploy benefit plan under which an enlity pays specified :onmbunons 10 3 separale entity and has no
obligation so pay any further smounts. The Company makes specificd thi loy Provldmx Fund fo Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined conuihution plas, The € 3 ibution is recognised as an exp in

of profit ond loss during the poriod in which the employee renders the related service. .

9

Defined benefit plan

Granity

The Compeny’s grstuity benefit scheme are defined benefit plens. The Company s viet obligation it respect of & defined benefit plan is calculated hy
estimating the amount of future benefit that cmployees have camed in return for theis service in the current and prior periods: that benefit is
discounted tn delermine its present value, Any unrecognised past seyvice costs and the faie valur of any plan assels are deducted. The calculation of
the Company's obligation is performed annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit eredit method ssthempoﬂinedﬂe.

The Coropany recogniscs ali actusrial gains and Josses arising from defined benefit plans immedistely in the Statement of profit snd loss. All
expensss related do defined benefit plass are recognised in employee benefits expense in the Statement of profit and Joss. The Company recognises
gains snd fosses on the curtailment or ssttlement of'a derned benefit plan when the cuntaitment or seitfement ocours.

Compensated obsences

mmmnmmmmammofﬂnmlmdmdmmumdmmduulmutmmmmmnm Company
vecords #n obligation for such compensated absences in the periodyn which the employee renders the sorvices ihat incroase this ent, The
obligation is measured of the basis of an independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit eredit method as st the reporting date:
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Quess Corp Limited
tformerly knenvir s INVA HUMAN CAPITAL SULUFIONS UAHTED)
Notes to the liaancial Statements for the year ended 33 March 2616

LI0 Employee stock options

mCompmyhasmcdswdcaﬂmlonﬂ ployees. The C and discloses such cost using intrinsic value-based method as
ibed in the Gui Notcon g for Employce Sharchased Payments issued by the Institute of Chariered Accountants of india. Under
mmn‘eﬂnd.mnwmn:xpamnwedmmdm of grant s récognised aver the vesting l6rm op 3 straightline basls:

141 Leases

Leases under which a significant portion of the risks and ds of hip are retained by the lessor are ciassified as opersting leascs; Lease
payrments are chiarged 10 the statement.of profit and foss on a straight tine bassov«ﬂwleasetem\.

112 Earnivgs per share

tn determining tb:cmmg per share. the net pmm alter 1ax is divided by the weighted average aumber of shares oursianding during the year. The
number of shares used jn ¢omputing diluted camings per share corpriscs the weighted ayerage mumber of shases omsxder:d fur deriving basic
eamings per shere sd also the weighted average aumber of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilwtive potential
¢quity shares, Dilntive potential equity shares are deemied converied as of the deginning of the period unless issued at a lafer dute, In computing
dilusive :ummg pex share, onty potential cquysham that arc dilutive i.e. which reduces camings per share or increases foss per share are included.

313 Taxation .

Income tax expense compeises currenl.1ax {i.e. smount of tax for the year delermined in accordanice with the income tax Iaw}) and deferred tax charge
or credit {reflusting the tex effects of timing differenses botween accopnting income snd 1axable income Tar the year),.

Deferred tax charge or creditare recogaised for the fifure tax consequences siisibutable to timing diffsrence that result between the profit offered for
income 1axes and the profit as per the financial statements. The deferred tax charpe or credit and the corresponding deferred tax Viabilities or assels are
recognised using (he fax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asseas are secognised only to the
exterz there is reasonable certainty ihat the assels can be realised i futare; howeves, mmmwmm«ma«pmm
under tavation laws, defcrred tax assets are recopnised only if there i3 virtual sertainty of realisation or such assets, Deferred fax assets xre reviewed
25 M cach Balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount musmmnablylmullymmasm:wemybcmbc
rauhsed. .

Tuccomnanyotﬁa.ouyeamnyearbasns. the current tax assets mdlxabﬂnmﬂmahsalcganymmk right and where it iniends fo sentle
such assets and:fiabilities on & net basis.

114 Provisions and contingent fisbilities.

A provision is recoghised i€, 45 4 tesult of a past cvent, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated refiably, and it is probable thet an
antflow of ecoriomic benefis wil&bcmunedmmreﬂuobhgum Provisions are teeogusedaxmebcsi estimate of the expenditurs required o
mkﬂupmobhgamnnthtmpmmgdammpmvummmemdonmmdvscoumcdm

A contingent lisbility exists when m is & possible but not probable obligation, or & present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
nutflow of ) or a present oblig: n whose smount cannol be esti refigbly. Cont lisbilties do not warrant provisions, but are
Jisclosed unless the possibility of outllow of sesources is remote. Contingent assets ane aeither recognised nor disclosed in the imerim financial
stafements. However, contingent assets are assessed continpalfy and if it is virtually cestain that 2n inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related fncome are recognised i the period in which the change occors.

Warroniles

Warrinty costs are estintated on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experi Provision is made for estinisled liability in respest of
warranty costs in e year of rendering of services. .

Orierous confracts

A voplract is considered as when the i bcn:rusmbedmvmby(lm coinpany. from the contrael are Jower than the
unavoidable cost ormmmg its obligations under the The p for an 13 d a1 thw Jower of the expected cost of
berminetiasg the t and the expected net cost of contiiuing with the contract.

115 Cash flow statement

Cash flow Statement is reponted using indiredt method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted ror:!se effects of triansacsions of & ton-cash nature
snd any deferrals or sceruals of past of ﬁnmmcashuwmwmymmls,mm flews arising from operating, Investing and financing activitics of
the Comgany are segregated.:

L6  Cuash and cash equivalents » . ’ .
] ]
Cash and ¢ash equivalents in ihe cash Row statement comprise cash and balances with banks. The Compeny corsiders olf highly liquid investments
with avemaining maturity st the daie of purchuse of 2 months or fess and thet is readily convertible 1o known amounts of cash or cush equivatents,
o L7 ¢




Qoeas Corp Limited
Yarserly knowa as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to financial statemenis lor the year ended 3T March 2016

2 Schemeof Amaligamation

Amsigamation of Magis lufolech Limited (Magma'h Avon Facility Magsgemweat Services Limited {'Avon’) and Hofincons Jafotech &
Industeial Services Private Limied (*Hofincons') with Quess Corp Limited (formerty knewn g3 Iiys Human Capits! Solutions Limited) {'Quess’

2.1 Bagkgrousd
A Scheowe of Amalgamation pursuant to Section 397 {0 394 of the Companies Act. 1956 {the Act} and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules

was spproved by the Honasable High Court of Kamataka for the emalgamation of Avon. Megna and Hofineons {coflectively referred @ the Transferor
Compasies} with the Company.

The Scheme of Amslgamation was spproved by the Board of the Transferor Companies on 3 November 2014, The Honorable High Cotrt of Kamotaka
sanctioned the Scheme vide its Order dated 29 Aprit 2015.

Avon was incorporated on 2 fuly 2008 originally as a "Private limitcd compuny’ snd subseguzally convérted into @ *Limited Company® en 3 July 2013/

Avon is peimarify engaged in the business ofproviding facility and citesing, services.:

Magyta was incorparated on 30 Apfit 1997 originally as a *Pdvate limited pany’ and sub d into a *Limited Company’ on 10 July
2013, Magna Is primarily engzged in the business of providing staffing sesvices to ITI lTES"f:ompanics

Hotincons was fncorporaied on 20 Febriary 1978 as a ‘Privake fimited company’. On 27 Junc 2014 Hefi was. acquired by the C from
Transfield Services {India} PTY Limited. Hofincons is primacily engaged im the busi of rendering operali i Sacifity “and asset

mmsgement consultancy scryices to various industries

2.2 Saflest of the Scheme of A : Ig:

The satient features of the Schemie are as follows;
2. The Appointed Date of the Scheme is 1 January 2014 for Avon and Magna #nd, IJuiyZOJ“oxHormmmsmhmdaummbeWedhy

the Honorable High Coort of Kamm

beAll assets of te Ty Ci ies 25 on Uie Appointed Date shall, withoot any further act instrument o deed srd pursusit t Section 391 t0.394
of the Companies Act. 1956 be fered to and vested in o1 be decmed ta have been iransferred t and vested in the Company un.a going concern basis.
but subject to all charges. liens, monigages. if'any. then affecting the same o7 part thereol,

€ All linbilities af the T G ies 25.0n the Appainied Date shall alse swrd transfemed (o and vested in of be deemed to have beea transferved
10 80d vested in the Company or  going concem basis. without any further act or deed 30 25 ta becoine Lhe finbilitics. debis, dulies and obligations, ducs,
{oans and sesponsibilities of the Company os the same terms and conditions as was applicable 1o the Transferor Companics; .

4, The sssets of the Transferor Company. which ate moveble in mature or otherwise capable of tansfer by manual delivery or by endorsement and
delivery, shall be so tronsferred by the Transferor Compatty and shali become: the property of the Comprany without tequiring any further deed of
inttrument of act.

. Any stabiutary and other ficenses, registati & to sary on the aperations, whether in india or any sther authocitics in
India, mcliding quality cedificslions of the Tromsferoc Compamn shafl sund vested in or transferred to the Company without sy further oct or deed and
shall bs appropriately mutated by the statutory and other authoritics concemed in favar of the Company upon the Scheme becoming effective.

. ANl linbiditics and ohligationy arising oul of J by the Trasferor Companies selating {0:its assets in favour of third padty shall become
liability/obligation of the Company which it undestakes to ment, discharge aad satisfy.
& Subject o the pravisions of the Schere, all contracts, license, deeds, bonds, agreen i golicies and other instruments of the

Transferor Companies are party. of i0 dw. benefit of which the Transferar Companies may be ehgubk shall be in full force and effect in favour of or
sgainst the Company,

k. Subject to the provisions of the Scheme, oli ags entered into by the Trnsferor C: jes with their baokers, distrit hiest, sgeats. clc.
Hany, unless terminated shalf continue ta be in full foros snd effect and may be enforced by or 2gainst the Transferee Cornpany.:

1 Subject to the provisions of this Scheme. ait subsisti of the TransRor C ies refaling (o the use of patents, patent
iks (includi mxmwmmmwwmuMMnmmmmumsm
mmm-ﬂmhmw:ofmc«nw
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2.3 Accoanting treatiment
On the Scheme becoming effective. the Company shelf account for the amalgamation weder the Parchase Method in accosdance with Accounting

4-"A g Tor Amal, uiom"auduum i Al Sunduds:ssmnylhelnshwwo(mmdwnmsoﬂmﬁane
Company shall socount for the amalg of C ies in its books a5 given below:
= All the assets and liabllities of the Transter panies shalt become, after arna), ion. the assets aird liabititics of the Company:
« The sssets and liabifities of the Teansferor Companies shall be incorp mlbebuoksoﬁhe(mnpmnmmrmnalms:
ﬂ?-:mlsnfﬂn‘l‘mmfam(?mmvammdﬁmmﬁmksofﬂu&mmanysﬁltmcludenman_gﬂemls luding brands. busi &
fights. ctc.). mnmmwmpﬁcvm mlhcboohol"fmnsfcmtunpames
+The emount of inve in the Transfe pani appmmgmﬁnbookso{muﬂhetumpmyshnﬂsmndmedw

ook Jinelisdi !

~ Any exeess of the book volue of the invesiment cancelled aver the fair value of the net assets of the T
assets) shall be trealed a5 goodwill arising on smalgamation. IF the amount of the consideration is fowsr than lbe fair vl of the net 5Ssets ceqwed the
difference should be treated as Capital Reserve

Details of falr vatues of Net Assels acquired as part of the Scheme of Amalgamaltion with Quess Corp Limited in previous perfod; |

[Eftective Date of Amalgamation Ny e iimuyzm% T Yaly 2003
Swrphus/deficit) o nm

- |Non current ssseta !
*Irangible fised assets Gincluding capital work-fa-proge 5009899 22385501 7965921 mossaanzf
(ntsngitle fixed assets 33250361 1991.608 b 35241969 |

“IBrand mwsnndonAmalgammm {sefer note 2.9) 226.760.000 535.200.000 212.800; 000 968,200,000 }

e 12273.500 12273500 b
1338279 17,714.914 51.372.{:39 88469244 {.
11,833,629 135920362 TRIOT,559 216.461 150
1T 45
4.425263 = » 442526 |

328,028,782 45639478 217393258 1.001.816.763
58604328 1:464,092 229.305.288 289377708 |
9 ‘ 4.4 s |

285520775 201710058 .
33,028,086 10,732,558

u The Company. pmenmﬂg&kmeormmam hes identified andammin;n Rs 96!.200000

Backgrownd: :

The menagement of Quess Corp Limited appointed external valuer to provide a valuation of the Magaa bran. Avon twand and Hofincons braad
(*Brand")ason 3| mauwts (applicable fiix Magna and Avon) and 30 June 2014 ( spplicable fos Hofincons) ion Date™}in ton with
restructuring. '

aa A MG e 4 bt s AP e S 7Y Aot L S e frmte S AR AT i 2 2o
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Assomptions:
Folfowing are 1he brief prions used in the vahuation of Brand;

Methiod: Rellef from Royatty Method

Undér this method, the valuer has dissounted the royalty that could posentially be decived from the sales forecasted for the brand, The method assumes
that & campeny gives a right bo use the bruod to a third party and receives only the royalty For assigning the brand related rights; The royalty is expressed
25 2 percentage of the brand's sales; The Net Present Value of cash flows from the royalty income is then determined by discounting these future sxpecied
tayalty sireams, sfiet providing for taxes, Values's hiave estimiated the cash fiows and used this method for the valuation of the Brand;™

Discount Rate of the Entity

Discourt tate wéllects the risks of the cash Hows., risks associated with the overslf business and the industyy. The risks associated with the Specific assels
analysed vary with the asset being valued, Discount rates used (o estimate the value of an intangitie sset are normally higher because of a karger varisoce
in cash flaws relfated to the intangibic asset than either cument assets ar fixed tangible assets. The discount rste for a specific intangible 2sset is estimated
through its relationship with other assets and the weighted average cast of sapital of the business enlerprise as a whofe.

Discount rate for the Brand
’ The valiers have considered the following Weighted Average Cost of Capital for valuing the Brand:

int projectivns of Avoa, Magna for the Finsncial Year 2015 {15 mionths} i FY 2019 and Hofincons for the periad |

Iuly 201410 ¥Y 2019

Valuatios of Brand - Reliel from Royalty Method

Profit Spiit Method
mmhﬂoﬂzumplwdmm!wmﬂwumbmmymmumepronsplunmhod.whschuscsmepmmcdmupmrmwny«
(EBIT? rate relevant 19 the ficensed income stream as the profit that would be shared by 2 licensor and licensee and, as 2 starting point. assigns 25.0% to
J!S%hﬂ:cllemmwnhmcmmnmgmrxpmngmwlmmwupmm&md 2 means of estimation by which en element of
reatism is d into rovalty rate deliborati

Royatly Rates
The valuers mwmmnmfolbuﬂnslmlqmwbeapplndmmmvem toarvive 8t royalty cash flows of Magra, Avon anst Hofincans:

Present valuation oip}bjmuéut«ux cash fows ;ld terminat m flows

Apart {yom the Royaity Rases, the valuers bave atsa considered Brand Mai Expenses of $%. requited for the support, upkeep and maintenance of
the drand. Projected wx exp thas been computed based on full com wx cate of 32.45% . Brond shall engoy tax amontization beosfit over a 15
years period; The present values of post - cash flows and termninal values iom ihe Brand 35 on the Valuation [late ix estiniated 25 under:

T THE Brescatvatuce 6F post = eash Olows aad ieraisal |
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-3

3=y

3

3{axi)

Share caplial

Plni«hrs

mooo.ooum March}ﬁls 13, lMG]l}nqwlyshmaprrnlu:ofRs lOmﬁ'

Issued, subscried and pald-up
113.335.056 (31 March 2015 : 25.773.764) equity sheres of par value of Rs 10 each. fully paid

op

* During the year, the Company vide its Fxtra ordinary gencral maeeting daicd 10 Augtst 2015 bas incrcased its authorised Share capial from
Rs:.1,133,846310 divided into 113,104,631 equity shares of Rs.10 each to Rs 2,006,000.000 divided into 200.000,000 equity shares of Bs 10
each.

Recoseiliation of number nlmmum.namg #t {be beginning and a1 the ead of the year/period ¥

rifeubarg... o e o

Equi!ysum i
Atthe of the yeatiperiod 25:773.764 257937690 18.996,807 189,968,070
Shares issued on conversion of compulsery N -
convestible preference shares {refer note 3{aXi)) s # 6.776357 57763570
Shases issued during the year:

Right issue (refer siote a)(iis) 2.560.000

Boniss issue {refer note H{axiii)) . B5.00)
Althe end of the year/period = ﬁ %

8.001% Ct Isorily coavertible prefe

‘shares of par value

Rs 100 ecach

Al the cor ofthe fperiod EN % 7717982 778.791.300
Conversion Lo equity shanes (referm\c](ax:)) RS ) 1o (1212912 {7721.791.200) -
Al the end of the yeat/period S £ L e e R
The Company had issued 8.001% I fR shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each to Thomas Cock (India) Limited a1 a

premium of RS 24.3% vide Share Subscription Agreemens (SSA)M S February 2043, During the preévious period, as per the lerms and
conditions of SSA, the Company vide its Board imeeting dated Mommzoumsmwnnmccrs o 6,776,957 equity shares &t
a premium of Rs 131/66 per share, Qut of the tolal premium of Rs $92,230.430 arising on this arrangement. Rs 188,208,800 collected on the
initial Issue of CCPS &3 sbowe, was adjusted agalusk dic share premium in the yew of issue of preference shares, and Rs 704.021.630 was
recognized as promium on conversian of CCPS ir: the previous periad.

Right lssue

During the year, e Company vide its Board meeting dated & November 2035, has offered 2,560,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each on right Sasis,

Tn pursuance of the requirements of section 62 of the Companics Act. 2083 read wilh the Companies (Share ¢apital and Debentures) Rutes

2014 in1he ratio of 0.099 equity shares for every equity share held in the Company 3s on date to mccmtmgshrcholdelsﬂ’hms Cook (fndia)

Led. hasmdvedmmmbxmbcwlhengumuemdhasobmmunshmhoum i o 12 December 2035 and dingly 3
futk istion was dpproved by the Board of Dirccters of the Thomas Cook(lodu)udvxdemmnlu resolution dated 18 December

2015 for unouncmg £.957.302 equity shates ia Tavour of Nét Resources Investments Private Limited Dn 21 December 2015, Mr. Ajit Iseac

renounced his rights of 467,576 shares in fevour of Net Resources tovestments Private Limited

Accordingly. the Company in its Boord meeting dated 22 Dy ber 2015 has app the al of zquity shares on right basis-as follaws:

[T 21 P
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JaNiif) Bouus lssue

k)

(e}

RCH

Hey

During the year, the Company in pursuant of the requirements of Sectian 63(1) of the Camganies Act, 2043 and aficr cbtalning the consent of
sharcholders at the Extra ordinary general mecting held on 23 December 2015 and vide maouﬂmwmgmdonﬂmrym)bhupmedu
resolution to issue 3 fully paid up quity shares of Rs [0 cach for every 1 fully pandupeqmryshm of Rs 10 each W the existing sharcholder

whose name agpears in the registey of members es on 23 December 2015 by utilizing r - The b heves shall rank
pari pessu in all rdpu:u including dividend-with the existing equity shases of the Company The Company accordingly has issued the bonus

“wshareholding post iRt iSSue
Righes, preferences sud restrictions atizched lo eqaity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shates  Accordingly, alt equity shers rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
Company's residual assets. The cquity shaies ate entitled 1o receive dividend os deckured from time 10 time. - Fhe voting rights of an oquity

siarcholder on 8 poll (not on sheve af hamds) are in proportion ta is share of the paideup cquity capital of the Company: On wiading up of the

Company. the holders of the equity shares will be entitied to receive the residuat assets of the Company. after distribution of alf prefirential
amaunts (if any) i proportion to the number of equity shares held:

Shares held by hatding company

s
Thomas Caok (India) Limited 78.82%.496 788,234.560 19.705.874 197,058,740

Detalis of sharehalders holding more thar 5% shures in the c-m{pny

Parti " mmbu;fmm
()EqaRY SHATEY of par vahe RS 0GR -

‘Thomas Cook (india) Limited ‘ 78 823 496 69.55% 19.705.374 16.46%
Ajit Isaac 18,585.900 16.40% 4,646,490 1863%
Net Resource lnwéstimenty Private Limited © 15365824 13.56% 1,294,100 502%

The Company has not made any buy beck of shares of issued any shnees for consideration other tran cash. during the puriod of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date However , the Company has issued bonus shares in the curvent financial year,
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L ; Reserves snd surphus

oy aﬂmmﬂi i
kdd ymmm:menmnfmm ta equity shares (refer nole 3)
Less: amount utifized for ixsaing bonus shares (rafer note 3)
Securities premilamy acconnt at the end of ike yeat/period

Share options satsianding account b the begiuning of the yearkperiod ss.ls'rgsx ss.m.m
Less - transter to peneral reserve on farfeitiire of stock oplions (refer note 4. und 42) oo P65 LS
Stock options outstanding sccount af the end of the year/period Xl ’ smfl Jsx :
Capilat reserve
Balasce st the beginoing of the yeariperiod 3s¢m 415 -
Add- arising on account of amalgatmation (refer note 2} s L g
Balance 3t the ead of the yearfperiod

s -
Generat reserve '

t ke beglnn, they b

Add : Imfer froms stock uptmnllmnndlru account (iefer note 4.1 and 42) g V2655082
Balarce at {he end of the year/period 12.655.982
Surplus (In the statement ufpnﬁtnd loss batance)
Atthe ofthe y 642,138,868 4,835,789
Add: Netpmﬁtﬁr&eyarlpmod o3 7o 858800 8. . o

Batepce In statementof prafit and 10ss a3 the end of the yearlperiod 1.498.08&742

&t During the year, the Company fios fosfeited the ised employee stock options
earlier years/periods

Long-i¢rm borrowingy

Vehicie foan is taken from Mahindra and Mabindra Financist Servicss Limited which camies interest rate of 14.50% p.a-and is repayable in
thinty six equal inonthly instalments. Printipal payments which are due afler twelve inonths front the reporting date aggregating to Re 1,564,609
has been classified a3 loog-term bammngsm»:npa! payments which ase due within twelve months from the reporting dxie aggregating o Rs
795,661 has bren clasyified s currsnt meturities of lang-leen borrawings under other cosvent linbilities
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[

6

81
8.2

Other lu;-«ryn Habifltles

Particalary . . «
“Payabit 16 erSTWhNlE mnnTity Sharehotders (refer Tol 6.1)

The Corpany vide its sgrocment daied 14 My 2013 acquired 100% shareholding of Avon Facitity Maragement Services Limsited at 3 sotst
consideration of Rs §92.627.500,. Out of the talal consideration, in accosdance with Share Purchase Agreement, the Company has paid Rs
F20,094.167 in May 2013 and fias agreed to pay Rs 29.206.000 la certain shereholders over a period of 3 years. Till previous. period, the
Compsay has.alrcady paid an amount agereganing Rs 22.533,333 and the remaining smount of Rs 6,666,667 (payable in 2016) Is dischosed in
other cuprent lisbilities.

Long-term provisions

Jarticutany, —

-Pibvisled for employee bediglit -~ T : R
Provision for gratuity (refer acte 38) N 61 §9jtoat

083

Othery
Provision for disputed elaims (refer note 39) 22626824
Pravision for rent i - l.O_?l,ysm_

P | M’l’?ﬁlﬂ“ H 20
Secwred )
Cash oredit and overdralt facilities (refer note 8.1 befow) 1.477.683.203 915.769274
Bill discounting facility froro bank (refer note 8.2 beiow) 309,264.973 204,347,580

Warking capital {oan {refer pote 8.3 below)

Cash credit rom banks are sevured primarily by way of exclusive charge on the current assais aad an 1be movable sssets of the Company,
Credit gvailed on billa discounted from banks sre sequred primarily by way of pasi paasu first charge on the entine curvent assets of the
Company on both past snd futere and additionally by way of pant passw fisst charge on the entire movabie asseis of the Company.

‘Wotking capital J6an from banks are sccued primatily by way of pari pagsy first charge on 1he cntire current assets.of the Company on both
past and [uture and additionally by way of pari passu first chiarge on the entive mavable asscts of the Company..

Trade payables

Dues 1o micro. simalt and mediom emerprises {refer note 40)

¢ includes payabie to fefated parties (refer note 3K} 2.620.219
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19

2 152,055 1] 578 3,966

47335754 2959854t
145,229,339 117,954.022
712993377 336,563,853
. 38565823 55,296,579
Payabie to the h {refer note 6) 6,566,666 5,666,667
Aceyued salaries and benefits {rerer nate ms)
Provision for oxpenses®
Uniform deposite
Provision for rent escalation
Other fiabifities
.
* includes payable to related parties (refir note 36t} 2,516,035 . e

This includes term loan from Natjonal Skifl Development Centre (NSDC) of s Nil (3¢ March 2015 ; Rs 30.000.000) which is secured against
hypothecition of project assuts and has been repakd during the year.

Current mawsities-of long term Includes joan outstanding of Rs 128,181 (31 March 2015 : Rs ),593,698) towards yehicle Jan iaken from
HOFC Bank and is repayable in 36 equal moothly instdments:

Includes provision for bonus for the linaacial year 2015-16 aggregating Rs 444,046,244 compuited based ox the circular issud by Minjsiry of
faw and justice dated 31 Deceniber 2615 which requives Company to pay bonus at the specified revised threshold, {refee note 295

150,758,728

b b 5,24
‘% y i3

Provision for warmanty {refer note 39)
Provision for loss on onerots comracss (refer note 39)

3

L '
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12(%) 1gibie Asscty xad | ible sssets under

* Refer note 2
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3 Non-corrent investments

“farcost;

- rproT :
bcqukylutmmh(n&rma)
o, Trade

I subsid

3,140,000 3¢ Man‘hl!OIS 3,110,000) fully paid up equity shares of pax vatue 12,000,000 12,000,000

of Rs 10 each of Couchieve Solutions Privaic Limited

;000,000 (3 March 2015 : 1,060,000) fully paid up equity shares of per vafue 10,000,000 10,000,000

of Rs 10 each of MFX Infotrch Private Limited

7,000,300 Common Shares (31 Maxch 2015 : 7000,300) of Brainbunter 5,503,000 3.503,000

Systems Limited, {formerly known &3 Zylog Systems {Canada) Limited} Ruly

paid up (refer note 133 and 44)

1 (31 March 2015 : 1) Common Stk of Quess Corp (USA) bac, (formedy 6,253,577 6,283,572

known as Magna Infotech Ine.) of US § 1,00,000 each, fully paid-up

39,411,557 {31 March 2015 Nil) fully paid ap equity shares of par value of Rs 109 2

10°cach of Aravon Services Private Limited (refes note.13:7) . N

23024599 (31 March 2015 : Nit) Ondinary Shares of Quesscorp Holdings Pre. 110,600,000 L

1td of SGD 1,00 cach, fully paid up (rcfer note 13:2)

6,000 (31 Murch 2015 : 86,000} fully paid up equity sharcs of par vakse of 12,273.500 12,273,500

00 pesos exchi of Quess (Philippines) Corp s R } .
156030177 46030077

Aggregate amount of unquoted investrents 156030377 46,030,077

13§ The Company sequited 100% stake in Aravon Services Private Limited (formerly known a3 ARAMARK india Private
Limited) on 1 Am! 2015 for a consideration of Rs 106 from Aramark Senior Notes Company and Aranmrk india Holdings
LLC.

13.2 The Company incorporated an zatity il mSmgapore by name Quesscorp Holdings Pte Lid os .whenymdmbs'd‘m on ¥6
June 2015 by subscribing fo 1,000 equily sharcs of SGO 1 eachcA Ruther invesiment was made during the yer by
subskribing 1o 2307, 499 eqitity shares of SGD 1 each theteby making the: tota} {nvestment o5 Rs £10 million.

133 The Cormny #oquired 100% stake in Braiubunter Systems Limited [formesty known as Zylog Systems (Cansda) Limited]
on 23 Octeber 2014 based on the Share Purchase Agreemsnt sriered with ICKCY Bank Limited for a considération of Rs'3.3
million (Cacadian Doltar 0 1 million converted at } CAD =S50 1NR).

14 Deferred tax assets (nef)

Asat Ay at

T

Fixed assets

Delesred tax assets ’ ) )
Gratuity 72,103,344 21,047,517
Cumpensated absences 7916826 16338157
Provision for doubifu) debis 36,038,014 6, 644. IJS
Provision for bunus and incentives 163,203,854

Pravision for disputed claims 7,830,691 b X 690 351
Provision for interest on service fax 12,668,990

Provision for rent escalation 1,660,128, m 25
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5 Lowng-term loans and sdvawces

Asat Asat
31 March 2816

7.569.807 3.064.49%

ity deposits 71.585.780 60.823.154
To parties orher thon relnted partles

Advance income 1ax (net of provision for tax} 679.051.475 447349478

Payment rivsde under protest 5

Advimces ta employses

16  Other Bon-curresi sssets

.} | Maith 2016 > 3t Mnrchlﬂlﬁg

Prepaid expenscs FEERR A TR T2285117 5,029,241
Bank deposits {duc to mature afier 12 months from the reporting datc)
{refer note 19.5) 20,513

17 fuventories

{Amowst in Ry
Asat As =t

3t March 2016 - 31 March 3015,

TREcvAblEs GulSIaniing Tor & petiod CReccHing 31X WO fobm
date they become dus for payment
Unseewred
Considered pood® 18,981,960
Cansidered doubtiul 78.466,195
Less: Provision for doubtiul debis 5:478,468,795),
18,981,900
Other reccivables
Considered good® 137,683,743
+ inctudes receivables from relsted porties (refer note 364it}) 30003042 14,286,254

19 Cash gnd baok balances

AR
Particulacs 3) ereblms
Cash inhand 746652 m 190
Balaaces with banks .
In corvent sccounts 841.230,52 631258301
frx deposit scoounts {refr pote {21} - LA 16858900 =
Cher bunk balances
Indeposit acoounts {refer note 19,1)
19.5  Bank deposits with origingl maturity of 3 months or Jess included under
Cash snd Cash equivalenty’ -
. Bank deposits due 1o molure within 12 months of reposting
mdud:d under ‘Other bank batances’ 26,973,/”4 STR71929

mnkdanwuﬁmmmxmmulnmbwfmmngdmwmm .
yndct Other npe-curtent msets’ - . . zpfs""‘”’ L e "
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TOReerid, comiered 505
Advance income tax {ves of provision for tax)
Security deposits

Balances with povemment authoritics
Advarices 10 supplicrs

Loans and advances 1o refated penties (cefer note 36{iity)
Tnterest receivable fram related parties (refer note 356it))
Other foans ond advances

~Employee sdvavces

-« Travel advances

- Othzr advances

21 Otbercerreut assets

13,936,660 22150952
52692318 52174218
R 610,859
41,598,112 3,299,661
149,541,075 9.042,09
4,328,064 -®
60,336,089 41,373,391
9,488,962 2,609,707

. inRs),
Rartientars . s 31 March 2016 3] March 2015
" inbiled revenuet 2747899616 1,205.466,806
Prepaid expenses. 84 456824 35,314,854
Interest acerued dut not due 2355599 1,673,278
Due from subsidiarjes** . o e

* includes usnbilled sevenue from reisied pastics {refer note 36{iii)
** includes roctivablés from related parties (refer note 36iiz))

13,270.298 =
18955350 -




Quess Corp Limited
Gorssirly bicen as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to nancial sistements for the year ended 31 Mayck 2016

32 Sale ol services

o e iy e g At |96-Il T
Teaining services 700368 424 201.195.750
Facility sanspement and food services 3,[16,572.757 3.008,573.] &9{
Operatiofn and maimenance 9 9|

23 Other income

w in R,
EE = 5 N i -7 ¥or e period from.
For lheynrtwled lxlnuary 2014t
'lmmlmiermdepwls ’ S 6459457 [ .6
Liabilities ro longer requited wiritien back 1,579,200 8,417,958
Pravision ao Jonger required written back {refer note 25) 12,000,000 25,930,608
Profit on safe of foeed assets, net S 395,852
Interest income o incosme tax refund* 56.672.802 16.043.378
Interest income on unsecured loans gives to subsidisries 4,957,900 E
Foreign exchange gain, net e
Miscellaneous income

* Infecest income On income tax refund is based on the refind arder received hmnhmnewdepmmldunnalhemr This inclmisnn
smount of Rs 8,160,064 {for the perivd fom § Junoery 2014 to 31 March 2015 ¢ Nif) pertaining to previous pertods.*

24 tw';mmul and n&omaslspare yom mnmned

oy at iR hynﬁpmnd
Add: perchases during ihe year/period
Less: Inventory at the end of the yearZperiod
Cost of matcrizls and stores and spara parts consumed

25  Employse benefits expense
e e et P Vi RS}

For the yéareuded | Jaguary W4 to

%ﬁ&— I o 3L 015 .31 March 2015,

Contributiv to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
kS

or
For the yesrended | January 2014 to
- 1 ... 3L M 0




Quess Corp Limbted
{farmerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes ts finwark for the year ended 31 March 2016

Forthegeareaded 1 Jusnary 2014 te

PSRRI, 3L on -3 Mareh 20|
: o i A THRRIRI0T IS4

Recruitment and training expenses 221,008,799 53,335,637
Reot {refer poie 37) 167,454,081 160,240,106
Power and fue 39,024,598 28,413,581
Repais and maintenance

~buildings 33304,186 45,831,794
- plat and machinery 2722344 1,660,808
-athers 25,221,954 21,482,394
Legal and professional charges 39.235,733 . 78,554,174
Rales and taxes 12,454,594 1318379
Printing and stationery 52,044,381 37,152,383
Consumabies . 48542362 @ 4L9260%4
Travelliog and conveyance 189,386,171 181,396,352
Communication mxpenses . 57,125,535 51,142,228
Provision for doubtfuf debts, net 25,665,231 21,391,860
Deposits written off 13,698,198 1,000,000
Equipment hite charges 66,068,377 30,984,651
Invurance . 6,654,301 2.682,182
Datnbase nocess charges 8,354,156 16,036,311
Bark chasges ) 3,658,070 8,031,852
Bad debts writeen off s 4,816,175
Business p ion snd adverti P 18,217457 4,755,392
Fomign exchange loss, net 1,947,929 e
CSR contributions -
Miscellancous expenses




Quiess Corp Limited
(formerly knows as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIAMITED)
Notes to financial staterments for the year eaded 31 March 2016

28 Capitat commitmenis

TIE00

Bonus {refer note 29.2) 325,876,995 -

Arrears of Cumutative Preference Dividend - 8640
Frovident fund 25231513 25732513
Direct 20d Indirect tax matters 558,798 1573846

29.2 The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act. 2015 {hereinaller referred 1o as the Amendment Act 20151 has been enscicd on Diccember 31, 2015 ding to which the
dlgx’hliqeﬁmofsdmwmmunmmﬁmkslO.oOOperﬂmmloRulmwmd:(mxu))anathemlmgl'nrcm:mmuonofwcbsdtq
or ‘wages has been incressed Roeu Rs 3.500 per month to R3 7,000 per month of the mini wage for the scheduled emp 35 fixed by the appropriate
government. whichever s higher: The refe {6 scheduled emiploy has been linked (o the pravisions of the Minimuns Wages Act, 1948 The Amendment Att
ZOISyseﬂb:uvempcﬂlvdyM!AﬁﬁlNltwmﬂwmﬂmfmnyhmmmpmmcbumsmmmtwnMndlmlSaHdJYMuchZOls
aggregating RS 325,876,995 and Rs 444,046,244 respectively.-

FonbeywendcdﬂMmhml&mtumwwym«cmedapmmmf«maumzuunmemwnha pondi ition of based on the
f terams and condtions of the sgs with the .

For the pericd ended 31 March 2015, lhe Cmnpany ias obiained & legal apinion from an external bawyer and wdvised to take 3 position that the stay granted by the two
High Counis of India on the P fan of the d muﬂbaveapemm:ﬂmmoas;dembommomc relevam staws and occordingly
1o provisine 7 cumrently required, The same ifincurred by the Campany wil be billed back 1o including secvice chay

36 Earsings per share
- e
Fw&!wm‘:g 1 Jurusry 2014 to

hﬂ 31 March 20
: ue"6F e} {0 L IR L S O R N e D =
Net profit after iax for the purpose of camings per share (xs) 855399874 637353079
Weighted sverage number of shares used in computing basic eamings pes share : 113,215.610 92,294,525
Basic comings per share (RS} 7.56 631
Weighted sversge number of shares used in computing déuted camings per share lt:&!l.ﬂg ] ls.mg:
. .

Diluted eamings per stare {Rs)




Quess Corp Limited
(fotmerly Momo a3 IRYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIAHTED)
Notes to finsaciaf statements for ke year ended 3§ March 2016

3

2

Payment to auditors (net of service taxy

Fauhep:rhdbnm

Furtlnmrtndni

Nurmber of equity shares ding & beginring of the previous year afler dight issue and banus issue
-~ Adjustment of openlitg number of shares priot to sight issee from | April 2085 0. 22 December
2015 (25,713,764 1,05%26350366)

~ Adjustment of opening aumber of shares post right issue From 22 December 2015 to 31 March
2016 (25.773,76441011366)

Add: Weighted aversge rumber of cquity shares bsued dnnn. the year

- 6,726,957 number of equity shaces issued on of ible pi

shares an 10 November 2004 for 142 days after right issue’

- Impact of bonus shares issued during the current year on conversion of compulsorily convertible
préferease shares on 10 November 2014 for 142 days

~ Right issur 02,560,000 sumber of eqyity shares issued on 22 December 2015 for 10t days

- Bonys is3ue of 85,001,292 number of equity shates issued on 5 Janosry 2036

Add: fmpact of potentially dlhliw !qulty shm

- 6,776.957 reamber of comp 1o
days from | Jinuary-2014 fo 10 Nwembermt(

~ Impact of bonus shares ssved during the curment year on 6,776,957 cumber o compulsorily
-convertible preference share till the date of conversion ;e 314 days from 1 faguary 2014 10 10
November 2014

- &21.000 nuraber of ESOF to be issued alleradjustiment of boaus

+ 2,129,428 nymber of ESOP including bonus at fair valuz

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 3t the end of year

share (il the dete of conversion ie. 314

£ in legat and p 1 %ees)

_ 31 March 2016

1 Innuary 2054 to

20,395,438

7.112432

*
706448

BIZIK6I -

-

20.762.088

2311544

6,934,631

o
92,294,525
S.115,38)

15.334,324
2951351

. ) u‘
For the perivd from
Fortheyesrended 3 yoypary 200810
Partientars. . .. - 3 2016 2018 .
e,
Statitory aiidit o -
Tax audit fees
Qthers
Qut of pocket expenses
Earaings is foveign currency -
Bl SRS T gt the peciol r;aifi
Furlhexmmdrd Vdanyary 2004 40,
FPaciculars o - 31Mmhl_ﬁjf NS
Staffing snd recniitment services 151,842,968 402, .'360
Opcration 3l maintenance

Unbedged forelyan careeney exp

Foreign cumenty exposures on account of trade receivabless trade payables not hedged by derivative instruments are as foliows:




Quess Corp Limifed
Gormerly kiown a5 INYA RUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to finsncial statements for the year ended 31 Marck 2016

34 l::pmmlrell fbnlzu eurmwy

Fertheycarended J.uwy 204 to
1 March 2016 o

prokess

Traveiling and conveyance 4, 304799

Rent 4.82),157

Cammunication expenses 893,901

Miscellanzous expenses 632,190
35 Segment reporting

Business Segment .

The Campany's business is cancealvsted In varieus service offerings Iike lemporary stalffing services.. ive search. costing i housekeeping and

facility management services, food services, skill development and fraining services and sccordingly primary infe ion is pr d on the: following service

afferings:

- People and sexvices - *

- Cilobal technology solutions

- Intograted fecility management

- Industrial assel management

Segment information s p in conformity with the ing policics adopted for prepacing and presenting the financial of the Company a& 2 whole.

‘the Company has a corp ceater, which provides varions jog and administrative suppon fanction, Scgment information for this activity has beca aggregated

undes "Unalfocated™

Revenue identifisbi to bust have been disclosed aider the respective busi L Segment costs include employee benefit expense, cost of matericl

: itmen and Hraining e stares and tools d. sib changes and i that can be siocated on & bie basis to

- TRSpRclve sepmenls: -

. Assets and fabifities mnmxonlomms are categorized based on tews that are mdelytdcnhtublewim-xwm Cmnm!s:u“wb«lnmmw

specifically aftocable 1 individual segments 25 these ars used inteschangeably. The Company therefore believes thal it is rot practicabie to provide

reloting to such assels and Jiabifities and dingly these are disclosed as ", Al (ixed assets of the Cammy are focated in fndia

Segment result

Other ificome 107.641 199,669 2,846,665 12323195 63,30.158 83,607,328
Finange charges - in 3 e (270.862.577) (270,362,577
Deprecialion - 0 {

Frofi befory taxation

Taxation

Prolit sfter taxation 3

Segment asset 3300478892 16SLOBANLS 1330603376 MSS64A20 2ITBAISINT 9.747,453,524
Segment liabilities AMS0ET  WWARISE 249549907 14345853 3334247882 6,270,786,427
Capital expenditure 58,180,376 6280321 1459493 2,040,38% 258831 136,681,320

—— sk



Quess Corp Limited .
Uorierly knowen o3 IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMTED)

Naotes 1o fisancial stafements for the year ended 31 March 2016

fpm { January 204, nllmmiﬂlik&m

Depreciation

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after tasation

Segmant asset

Segment Habititics
Copiltat expenditure
Geognpile Segment .

26,285,115 7456481

65.821.666

109- eum

'),7?'

747,341,04¢

w (209.270038) (209.270.038)
(13592480 . . it v
69,256,175 (mm,un T8I
e o 222325112

6.277,207,290

1.818,841,037 864,159,347
500373397 280,720,189 1.683,789.847 - 3,682,940,667
764155 12,257,990 13522266 &~ 146,610,857

il 10 peresot or mors of the Company's sevenuc of scgment assets;

36

(V) Nameof reigted parties and desceiption of refstionship:

)

e ih India

- outside India fexport)
Totat

Relgted party disclosures

~ Ultimase Helding Company

- Heolding Company

- Subsidiaries

- Fellow subsidiary

- Eptity having common directors
- Esttities in which key mansgerial

personnel has significant influence

Key execath i r
Ajit Issac
Sabestd Nag
Rashmi Gupla

N.V.S.Pavan Xumar

Fairfax Financiat Holdings Limited
Thomas Cook {India) Limited

Coschigws Solylions Private Limited
MFX Infotech Private Limited
Brainhunter Systems Led . Conada
Mindwire Systents Ltd:; Cangda (formerly known a3 2YLOG SYSTEMS (OTTAWAS LTD.)
Brainhenter Companies Canads Inc.. Cavada

Brainhunter Companies LLC. USA

Quess (Phitippines) Corp, (formesly kamwn as Magna tkya Infatech, Ine , Philippines)

Quess Corp (LSA) tne, (formedy known as Magaa Infetech Inc §

Quesicorp Holdings Pie, Lid, Singapote t
Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. (fonmerly known as B SDN. BHD., Mal.
Aravos Services Private Limited tformerly known as ARAMARK Indin Private Limited)
ikya Business Secvices { Private) Limited
MFEXchange tHoldings fnc, Canada

MFXchange (irelaad) Limited

MFXchange US, Inc:.

MFX Roanoke tnc, USA (; & with MFXchang

Nation] Collateral Management Services Limited (swef. 19 August 2051‘5)

US, Inc; effective 31 December 2015)

Net Resoutces favestments Private Limited

Styravorp Mansgement Services

IME Consuttancy ,

Chaimman & Managing Direcior & CEQ
\'lhokﬁmeDim&CFO

Company DEAF2014 10 26 March 2015)
Company. 201S)




Quess Corp Limited
(forinerly Jorown as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to fhaancisl statesents for the year ended 33 March 2016

(3) Related parly trausactions durisg the year/period

. 31.0arch 2018 .

~Staffing and recositment services “Thames Cook {Indis) Linvited 170412,394 138,315 380
MEX Infotech Private Limited 3,605,239 2,466,120
Natiome! Collsieraf Mansgement Scrvices Limined 101,673,561 s
Brainkuntsr Systems Ltd., Canada 12,762,698 -
Expenses iscurred by reinjed partics oa behalf of the Company '
Thomes Cook {Indit) Limited 28216010 30,858,570
Nez Resources Investments Private Limited 3t 420,692 20,332392
Aiavon Services Private Limited 1086120 *
MEX Infotech Privele Lunited 3367772 N »
Expenses incurred by the Company o behalf of related purtles
. Coechieve Solutions Private Limited 1598382 . 2
MFX Infotech Private Limitted 12,008,956 £
Brainhunter Systems L3d., Canada 290,088 >
Quess Comp (USA¥ Ine. 2254168 -
Unsecured toans given 1o subsidlaries
Coschieve Solutions Private Limixed 58,080,000 ~
MEX Infotcch Private Limited 147,500,006 -
Quess {Philippines) Cormp.. .= 6,575976
Argvon Services Private Limited 40,000,000 @
Quessgiobel {Maliysia) Sdn. Bhd. 651,099 &
Repayment of loans received from subsidiaries
Coachisve Sohatons Private Limired 16,690,000 -
MFX leforwch Private Limited 49,000,000 >
Aravon Services Private Limited . 40,000,000 . i
Quess {Philippines) Corp 53575976 B3
Intereston d toans charged to subsids )
Comstieve Solutions Private Limird 1,027,763 -
MFX Infotech Private Libtited 2,635,717 B3
Aravon Segvices Private Limited 629,836 *
Quess (Philippines) Corp, © 514,584
Guarntees provided & banks ou behalf of subsidiariic :
- Argvon Serviees Peivate Limived 70,000,006 4
Beainhuater Systerms Lid,, Canada 619,883,000 .
MFX Infotech Private Limited 60,000,000 30,004,000
Right reasnciation
. “Thomas Caok {India) Limited hid -
Ajit saae - S
*Aftesunciation of right issues

During the yesr, e Company vide its Board meeting dated 6 Novembes 2015, hsMZMOchmwshmofm 10 sty on right besis, in pussuance of the
nqmmmofmﬁzammwmamoumd\vuhlhcl?nmmm(smwmDebenmra)knmzaummemonfOMequuyMTo:m:y
eqmymmdmuwcommynmducmmummgmmmcm(lndn)hmitedhasmomduouostbs:n‘bembeﬁmis:uemdmmed
the shareholders approval o0 12 Decomber 2015 and dingly & resolution of* Wwas app by the Bosrd of Direciors. of the Thomas Cook (India)

Limited vide ciresdar resofution dated 18 December 2018 for g 1,957,302 equity, shares in favour Nei Resources [nvestments Privaie Limited. On 24
Desember 2015, Mi. Ajit Isanc renounced his rights of 461,516 shares mhmotmmesmmlmmm Private Limited.

Fartheyearended J.L,%/n“@;




Quess Corp Limited
Yorsueely known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIKITED)
Naotes to Snsncial stalements for Lhe year exded 31 March 2016

{ili} Balsace receivable from and payabie 1o related parties as at the batance sheet date:

Tl»oms Cook (Indil) l.lmmd

18,0m ,m

Net Resources Investments Private Limited i 214923
. MEFX Infoiech Private Limited 1597442 e
Trade payables
Themas Cook ({ndie) Limited 1.523.999 2.394.187
" Aravon Scrvices Private Limited 1.096.120 -
Other carrent assets - )
MEX tnforech Private Limited 17,256,963 k]
Brainbunter Systems Ltd; Canads £3,270.298 -
Coachieve Solutions Private Lintited 1,698,382 Bl
Short term Joans 3sd sdvances*
Cozchiieve Sofutions Private Limited 42,517,763 -
" MFX hifotech Drivate Limited 110,185,717 N 2.466,120
Quess (Philippines) Corp.. 514,584 657597
Quessglobal (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 651079 ]
Other current Jishilfzies
Braishunter Systesas Lid_ Canada 302,257 -
Quiess Comp (USA) Inx: 2213778 -
*includes interest
) R ion paid to key managerial p g
S panli e i R 3 i ﬁmw‘
For ibe period from
For ihe year eaded  { Japuary 2004 to
. A March 2016 b
- - 14,520,000 14898 38Y
Subrata Ng 9075000 8.898.287
N.Y-S.Pavan Kumar {frons 26 March 20§55 Ve

Rashmi Gipla {from 28 Apri) 2014 to 24 March 2015)

*Managerial remunerstion does not include cost of employes bensfits such as gratgity and comp sated ab

240,000

valuation carvied out for the Compeny as 1 wholke
3 leses

Operating Leoses
The Compeny is obligated under Jlabie and nop- Hable lease for office and residential i uhnchm:

ble et the option of dessor and lessee. Toml

restsl expense under lable avid bon eilabl g leases lor the year ended 31 Mmzommm:uns 108,292,621 (for the period ended 31 March

2015 : Rs 137,742,942) and Rs 39,16} Sw(mcdtpcﬂod ended 33 March 2008 : Rs 22, 497,164 ) respeciively.
Non-cancellable opesating lease rentals payabie (minimum lease psyments) under these jeases are as follows:

Particvlary ... ... .. i T P o
Fagable Wil 1 year N e e 7
Payabie between 1-5 yoars 3270099|
Paysbie later than 5 years 2137610

{Amaunt in Rs}

A3 at

U52872.20%"

98,976,362
30076.193




Quess Corp Limited
(ormerly kaown as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to financal siatements for the year ended 31 March 2016

335 Gragulity plan R
ot 2043

‘The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required vader A i dard (AS} 15 "Employez Benefits” prescriped by Camg

27.619.638

g of the yearlp £
Balinces an smalpamation 72725184
Curren service cost 20.866.940
Interest cost 6,104,048
Benefis settled 118,250,051}
Actuarial (gain} / loss .. .9.158003
0 i a3 end of the year/peri i * Y .
Change in plan assers
Plan assels at beginning of the yearfperiod, a2 fair valve ¢ 44.007.49% e
Balances on amefgamation (rcfer note 2) 38,850,072
Expected retum on plan assets 3352831 - 2935,9%
Contributions 19.746,133 10,873,173
Bencfit seitled (14,668,867} A50)
Actuariy {loss) / gain E

Plans. asscls st end of yeav/perisd, at faly valoe
Reconciliation of present value of the obligation asd the fair value of the plax assets

3LMarchI0(6 .. 3t March 2018

“Fair VAUE OF PIaR S5tels 1 1be end of e yeariperiod " Sl QIKTI T (A4,007,499)
Present vlue of the.defined benefit obligations a the end of the yead/ period . 106324378 .
Libifity recognised in the batarce sheet R m
Cunent 150,753,128 821.798
Non-current 57,534,268 61.398,08]
Geatially coat for the year/period
i : e e et — D
. Far the year ended ) January 2014 to
Pardeulary. oo FE N SR ST R I T SN ey . aie o 3 March &16 . 3!.%’ 2018,
Current service cost . 226.794,102 }
Interest cost 2,083,787 5,104,044
Retury ot plan assets (3.528,111) 2,931,954
Actuarial {gain}/ loss _(80.046.3¢ . $823253
Net gratully cost 15V Z0338Y

Gratuity sost for the year ended 31 March 2016 includes cosis sggregating Rs 74,539,660 rolating to previous years. The cost pertaining 10 billable employees is
recognized 85 revenuie in the current year

Assumptions
o T T Beod TR
Fartheyesr ended 1 dsundry 2004 o
; T R T T R I s i e e s s e s~ 3USTeneE20N6: . - - 3¢ March 2018,
Interest rate ) ) . 5% 7.80% ~925%
Discount rate 7.50% 7.80% - 9:25%
Estimated rate of retusm on plen assels £00% 8.75%
Salpry incredase 6.00% - 8,00% G.00% - 10.00%
Aftrition mde 30.00%- T0,00% 800%- 1300%
Retjrement 2ge 58 yrars 58 yeaxrs

The estimate of future salary increases, idered i ia) valustion, ke sccount of inflation, seniority, promotion end other reievany fastors such as supply anmd
demand factors in'the employment masket; o ) [] ¢




Quass Corp Limited
(ormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS UMITED)
Noles to finsacial stalements for ihe year eaded 31 March 2916

49

41

: i ﬁ orfesiad]

During the year, 188.618 options was forfeited and resuitantly sa wnoimt of INR 12,655,982 was transferred from Share option outstanding account te

History of defined benefit obligations and experience {galns) and loases

FEEE ~ =1

is with phs 65 med 67 of A isg Staadsrd 29, “Provisions, Contingent Llabillties

*Warranty provision of Rs.12.000,00 was crezted for the. projecis lo make good for any defects identificd During the year, the project or which wamanty svas provided
was compleled, hence reversed, . '

**Onerous conlrsct provision is created for project where the estimated cost of the project will be more than (he economic bencfits derived by the Company ; In (he
cument year provision was reversed. on completion of project. . .

Daurs to miced, small snd medivra enterprises

“The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Evterprises has issued an Official Memorsndum dated 26 August 2008 whish recorimends tha the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their ¢ with its the Number as all d eftee Giling of the Memorandum. However,
the Company docs 1ot have any amounts payeble 10 such enterprises as at 31 March 2016 based on the informati ived and avaifable with the Company Also the
Campony has not received any claim for intesest from any supplier undes the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006,

Doring the year. the Company has performed the reconciliations of tax provision created as per books of accounts with thie income tax provisions filed in its retum of
income for the completed assessment years and writter back additional provision aggregating Rs 64,564,104

Employee stack gptions
The Company has introduced the “JKYA Employee Stock Option Scheme 2009 (“fhe Option Scheme 2009') and has issued stock options on its own shares to specified
employees of the Cempany The scheroe was appsoved by the Board of Divectors in its-meeting held on 18 November 2009, The Opiien Scheme 2009 provides for the
crestion and issue of 5,200,000 (borus adjusted) options that would eveniually convert into equity shares of Rs 30 zach in Ihe bands af the exmployecs. The aptions has s
vesting schedule over & thies year period and are exestisabie only Upon thie occurrence of the tiquidity cvens:. The scheme defines Tiquidity event’ as an initial public
offering by the Company (or one of its subsidiaries) or ditution of vating right befiny majority of the existing shareholders The exercise price of these stk options is
Rs 10 All outstanding options were vestod as 31 Macch 2015, As at 31 March 2016, the Company has 682,382 aptions outstanding. The cost stock options have been
gcmngdundyixﬂ sic valug over vesting period

ISR 2 X

' “ﬁmj—

General Reserve.

Futthes, as detasled in aote 3, the Cumpany fus issued Bonus shares and sccondingly has passed a resolution vide its boxrd meeting dated 22 December 2015 thal the
bonus will be equally applicable to the option holders 8l the time of ewtreise. Resultantly. 582,382 options wifl be converted ino 2.729.528 shares:

The Company, pursuant 1o resolutions passed by the Board and its Sharchokd lustions dated 22 Decomber 2033 wd 23 December 2015, respectively, adopled
Quess Corp Limited Employee Stock Ogtion Scheme 201S {“ESOP 2015”). Pursuant W ESOP 2015, options (0 acquire Equity Shaves may be granted to eligible
employees {as defined in ESOP 2015); The aggregate number of Equity Shares, which may be issued wider ESOP 2015, shall not-exceed 1.900:000 (borus adjusicd)
Equity Shares:The Company bas not grented any options (ili 31 Marck 2046 under ESOP 2015 scheme:




Qaess Corp Limited
oriieriy known as EKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to flaancial statevaents for the yexr ended 31 March 2016

43 Detsilsof t Investmeits p ‘mm&ﬂngﬁan

e

“BAvoi Facllity Managemeni Sendees Limited-and Magna lnblech Timied 2ot TRy ,\,\jl!l!!ﬁ(‘ommﬁlefer note 2]

44 During the previous period. the Company acquited 100% interest in Brainhunter Sysiems (Canads) Limited ("HSL*) from ICICI Bank india, Prior 1o 20quisition of BSL.
by the Company, equity shares of BSL. were originatly owned by Zylog Systems Limited (“ZSL™)Y and were pledged in favour of ICICT Bank as seaumity for Joans aviiled
by ZSE. from ICICT Benk. ZSL defauficd on Yoan tepayments and ICICE Bank invoked the pledge and sold the sheres 10 the Company.

During the previous peviod, the Company has received 2 notive fiom the official liquidator of Zylog, alleging that the scquisition of the equity shares of BSL by the
Company was m3 is sccordance with faw and Mtfomm;‘d—ek-inhio, as such sale and transfer of the equity shares of BSL had taken place subsequent 10 an drder
passed by the Honomble Madras High Cowrt appuinting the official liquidator for ZSL liquidation: Further, the Company has also received letter from the RBY suting its
mmlityla take on yecord the transfer of the equily shares. orBSL until the winding up proceedings of ZSL have been jeted and fesolved. The Company is of the

they hawe.a JFifig case ind bas taken a1}
Tpiplon reief1S dhas the casc does nof BV MBI and the salk is bomafide off the basis of the following:

s Tlme is adequale precedent that upholds the principle that a secured creditor cap independently sxercise his fights outside winding up proceedings..
B, ICKCT Bank has enforced its secusity to realise its rights as a sccured creditor and the sale is in compliaace with Canadian law

<, That the sale of equity shares of Brainhunter is nol prejudicial to the panties and that the same has been undenaken in dance with the provisions of the faw
TheCompaty has 2lsa obtained Jegaf spinion from Canadian Jaw finnt shich i d 1hal the acquisition is sppropriate from a Canadian jrisdiction perspective.
Based on the legal opinions the mansgeen befives that the acquistion of BSL is approprians. ’

45 Corporate Soclat Responsibllity
Duting re year ended 3t March 2016, the smoum reqiired o be spent by the C on corp social responsibility activit o Rs 7,46 miilion in
sxcordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013, Howeyer, the Company hed d expendi ing 10 Bs 7.56 mittion during the yesr.

46  Financiul staiements for the year caded 31 March 2016 is-not strictly ble as the previou financist was for fifteen months period ended 31 March
2015,
As pet our repon of even dale attached
Sor BS R & Assuristes LLP Jor and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartersd Accountants : Quess Corp Limiled

[ Registration No- 116231 W/W-100024 Uaeserly booen; w MGAFI&KSOLUTIO«VS LIMITED)
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DIN : 02234000

Merabership No.: 092034

N-v- £ Pavan Kuman

N.V.S.Pavan Kumer
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Independent Auditors’ Report on-Consolidated Finaneial Statements

“To thie Méimbers of Qaéss Corp Litiited:
(formerly known as IKY4 HUMAN C4PITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

‘Report on the Consolidated Financial Statemieiits

We have audited the- acdoﬁipmymg consolidated financial stateinents.of Quess Corp Limited (“the
Holdifig Company™ and' its subsidiaries -(collectively referied to as “the Company™ of “the

npany”)
Group"), eompnsing of the consolidated: baIance sheet as:at 3 March 2018, the consolldated

Msﬂg@mtﬂt’s?kem‘ { l'msthllity for the:Consolidated Finaaelsl Staterients
The Holding Company’s Board of D:recton is w&ponsible for the: prepamtion of the consolidated:

aceepred in Ind:a, melndm the Accuuntmg Standdds specified under. Seetxon 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (ﬁereizfaﬂer reférred to as “the Act*’) read: with-Rulé 7 of th¢ Conipanies.

{AceountgyRales, 2014 The Boandof Directits of the Coni dre: pomtb!e for. nmmtenance of

finaiicial cammls ﬁia(wereopemmg effectively: g 1p|
Accounting récords, relevant to- the pieparation -and pxtsenmiml of the -consolidated: franicial

statements that give.a trué and fair view did are frée-from-material misstateriient, whether due to
fraud or errar, which have ‘been-usedFor-the purpose of preparation. of the consolidatsd finandial
statements by the Directors of ilie Holding Company, as aforesaid. ;

Audjtors’ Responsibility

Our:responsibility-is to express an:opinion-on the eomohaated financial statements based on: our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting-and: auditmg stavidards: and matters which are reqiired to?be dncluded in the Audit
Repett’urxder ithe: pmv:smna of the Actiand the Rulés madethéreunder.

‘We conducted: our auda in-accordance with the Standerds: on: Auditing; specified under Section
143(30) of the Act. Those standards reguire that we cormply with ethical requirementsiand plan and

 perform the audit to obtain reasorable: assurance about whether the consofidated financial
-} statesierits are free frommateriakinisstatenent.

[
4 ’
asn&m&mkmmm
No. BAG226) comverted 31 Floey, Lodhe Excelis
B85 R &Associstes ULP i Limited Lwﬂilv Aoclic Milia Compound

Paxinucship with mmmmm NM. Joghi
with sffact Lo Qctober ¥4, m-mm




N V to us, Cur opinion : I statements, inso :
| relates:tothess entiﬁu, is-basedsolély on the'aforesaid Audit Remofﬂwoﬁterwduom

B S R & Assoclates LLP

Quess Corp Limited
{Jormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

JIndependent Auditors® Report {continued)

ng ¢
*§Board of Diréctors, as'well as. evaluating the overall preseﬂtaﬁon

by pany:
of tha consoliditéd; ﬁnanma) statemernits:
We bielieve that e suidit evidencs obtained by us is sufficient and-appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinidh-on-the consolidated financiak stateménts.

Opinion
lnomopmxonmdwthebestofounm’onmn“ At aceordingtoﬁ:eexplmauonsgfvenm“%me
. rmgiion required by the-Act in the manper
b .epa'inc ,esgenemily

atid: offiér incorie and'Rs 39 niillion of net:decrease in cash and cash equivakntsfortheyw
ended 31.March.2036, as shiown inithese consolidated financial staterients. OF the above:

a. The fioancial statemems and:-other Braticial information of some of the subsidiaries
mcorporated ontside;Tiidia as drawn up in aceordance with the pnemlly sicceépted sccounting
of respestive couitiies Cthe local GAAPY) hdve: been; atidited by other.auditors:

ﬂom n tho&a countries. Thesa subSIdMéc fwcmmt fox 10‘7‘7% of

: ended 31 Mmcb 2016, as shqwn in these/consohdated ﬁnunml statcmmls. Forthc purposes
rep: ] ¢ - financial statements, the aforesaid local GAAP financial
tieen rest bytheMmmgemcnIofﬁgsaidemmasomatmey*mfomto
the generally accepled : accounnng principles in Indis. This hias beepn done-on sis of &
fepionting .f By the Compatiy w}nchcwmaccnunﬁn‘ganddisclosure
uﬁen\a apphcl;m to consolidated Aingneigl statements m;der {hie geherally wceg:
accol  India: ‘The reporting packages'made for this purpose: Have
injon:on the consolidate

. . , . ’




B S R & Assoclates LLP

Quess Coip Limited
(forme#ly kniwn as IKYA HUMAN CAPIT‘AL SOLUTIONS:LIMITED)

lndependent Audifors’ Report (continued)

Thb l'mw:al statements and other financial information - of semaining subsidiaries
OrpoTaté: 'insidemdouls:de‘rndm} accout for 1.45% of total-assets ds-at:31 Marchi 2016,
revenue aiid-other income-and: Rs 5 ‘mifllion:net decrease-in cash and cash:
s, for ‘the year ended 31 March: 2016 as shown in. the consolidated financial
statements; These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose andi
repoits: have béen firnishied to us. Ohir -opinion on the ¢onsolidated financial staianems
NSO as it reldtes-to these entities, is based on the aforeszid audit repcits of the other
anditors.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremeiits
1. As required by sub-section 3 of Section143 of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(d): We havesought and obitainied all the information and explétistions which. to the best of ot

kiiawledge and belief weré nécessary for the purposes of oir audit of the aforesaid

otisolidated finariclal Stitements.

(b) In our opinion; proper books.of sccount &s required by law. relating fo preparation of the
aforestid consolidated finaticial statémérits have been kept 8o fif as it appears: frain our
exasination of those books.

(cy The consoliflated Balanice. sheet, the consolidated statemem of profit and loss, and the
conisolidated:cash flow statemeiit:dealt with-by this Repont dre: i agreenicnt with the relevant
books ;of aceourit maintained: for the purpose. of preparation of the consolidated. financial

(d)*In our ppinion, the aforesaid consolidated finarnicial statéinents: comply with the Accounting
Standards specified unider ‘Section 133 of the Act, read with. Rulé 7 ‘of the: Companies
(AcesuritsyRules, 2014,

(e) Onthe Bagis.of the: wrilten representations received from the. directors of the Holding Company

, ‘ of the Holding Company and
poxt icorporated in India, fioie of the
directors of the Holding ‘Coitiginy - ahd: the. subsidiaty Companies fiicdrporatéd: in Indid is

disqualified as.on 31 March 2016 from being appointed. as a director of that' company i teiins

of stib-section' 2 of Section 164 of the Act.

() Wilh respect to the. adequiacy of the interiial finaiicial controls over filancial reposting of the
© Holding Company and the subsiditry companies incorporated: in Jidia -and the: operating
effectiveness of such conirols, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and

{g) with respict to the other fisatters 0 be included in the- Auditors® Report in dccordarice with
Rule’11 of the Conipénies (Audit.arid Auditors) Rales, 2014; ji1 our: Gpinicn.dnd to-the best of
ouF infofmation dnd dceording (o ihe explanations given fo-us:

i, the: eonsolideted finaieial staterients disclose the tpact 'of pending litigations .on. the
wmoixda!ed ﬁnaﬁcia% position of the Gmup Réfer:'Note 6 and:Note 28 1o the consolidated
Sicial At

il. the Group dldnot liave any Joogktetris contracts including derivative-contracts for hich.

there wéreary iiterial faraeeableiosss; and

RN R




B S R & Associates LLP

Quess Corp Limited . L N
Gormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Independent Auditors® Report (continued)

iii. There was Nil-amount during the year which was required to be transferred:to the Investor
‘Education -4fid Protection Fund by the Holding Comipany and- subsidiaries incorporated in
India, '

Jor BSR & Associates LLP
Churtered Accountants -
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W/W-100024

* Yineet Dhawan
Pariner
Membership No.: 092084

Place: Bengalum
Date: 17 May 2016




B S R & Assoclales LLP

Quess Corp Limited
Gormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Independent Auditors® Report (conrligied)

The Respecnve ‘Board of Directm of the pr&mg Cnmpany and ifs subsidiary companies,
mcoxp*mam i Ind:a, i respons:b!e for esxabln!nng and mairitaining mtemal ﬁnanclal CONtit ls

tated ﬁote on Audjt of
1ssued by ihe lnsixtutc of Clisiterex

&esat‘eguaxdmgaf its:assets, ﬂwpxevenhm and demtron of fmu@and errors, the mcumcy and
completéness of the accownting records, anid the tiniely preparation. of reliable financial
‘information,-as required-under the-Act:

Auditors’:napon‘sxbimy
Our rwpomibdny isto expms an; opmmn on the Company‘s imexmzl ﬁnamial contmls -over

Note o Alidit of Ttefial Financial Caiitrols over Finnia) Reporhng {the. “Gmdance Note”)
issued by ICAl and the Standards on-Auditing, issued by ICAF and deemedto be prescribed
under Section ‘143(10) of the Act:ts the extént apiplicablé to aw audit of jnternal financial -
cogitrols, Hoth-issued by the Institite of Chaitered Accousitants of-India. Those Standards-ard the
Guidance:Note require that we'comply with:ethicat requirerents and plap’ and perform:the audit
to obtaii reasonable assurance abiout whethér adeéquate iriternal- financial controls over finaicial
repomng way-established. and mdintzined and ifsuch contmls operated effectively in all material

Our-audit involves: péforming procedures to obtain audut evideme about ‘the adequﬂcy of the

intemal” financial controls system over-financial reporting and their operatir
audit of interial finaricial controls over finanicial g inclide

Wﬂéetomorm e
aWe “Believe that thie audit evidence: wehavbobtained is-sufficient arid appropéidte to provide a bisis
(Y

for our auditopinion‘on the Company’s intemal financial controls:sysiem overﬁmnmlmmn&




B S R&Assoclates LLP

Quess Corp Limited
{formerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUFIONS LIMITED)

Indejiéndent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Meaning of Tnternal Financial Gontrols gver Kinancial Reporting

A-company's internal’ financial ‘control ‘over financial reporting s a procéss-designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the réfiability of financial reporting. and the preparation of
Eonsolidated finariclil statémerts for exxeral puiposes in dccordaiice with genesally
-accepled accounting principles, A company's intemal financial-coritrol over financial reporting.
ineludes those policies and procéduies that' (1) pertain to the niajrtenan: recordsithat, in
reasonible détail, accuratély and Firly reflect the-transactions and: disptsitions of” ‘the aséels of
the company; (2)-provide reasonable assurance that transactions -are recorded as-necessary to
perthit preparation of oomsolidated financial sfatements i accordance With ‘gencrally accepted
accounting: principles, and that receipis and expenditures of the company are beifig: fade. only
in accordance with ‘authorisations of management and-directors:of the company; and 3) provide
reasoifable asstrance regarding prevention ortimely détéction of tinautticriséd acquisition, use; or
disposition of the:company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial
statéiments.

Inhierent Limitations of Internal Financial Controly Over Kinanciak Reporting

Beciuse of the jnhérént Nmitations of hterndl finanéial contels over financial repotting
‘including the -possibility of collusion or improper- management overtide -of coritrols; midterial
misstatements due to. ervor or fraud:midy oceur and'not be detecned Also, projections of any
evaluatioh of the thfermal financlal controls .over finarcial ¥8pbiting 10. futuré periods are: ﬂlbjmt
to the risk that ihe internal- financial confrol bver financial reporting may become inadequa
because of changes in conditions; or that the degree of comphancewﬁhﬂwwhcxwor

procedures may-deteriorate.

Opiﬁmﬁ

Thzoiir pinion; the Holding Company and based. on: 1hie opinion of other suditoss on internal
fiianicial-controls over financial reporting of its: subsidisry Cornpaniesiincoiporated in Andia, hiave,
indlt- material respects, an adequate internal financial: controls system over financial reporting and
such intermal financial controls-over financial reporting weie operating efféctively. és ar 31 March
2016, based on the internal coritrol over financial reporting criteria established by-the Conipany
considering the- essential:componcnts of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Finangcial Controls Over Fihaticial Repmmg jssted by théICAL

Chmareddcco;mfan'”
Eirm sReg,lstmnanHo.* :

vmmmmn
Pirine¥ ¢ . ]

Memberstiip No.: 092084

Date: 17Msay 2016




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
(formerly Sononwn as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Consolidsted balance sheet
{Amotnt in Rs)
As at Agat
Note 31 March 3016 33 Mareh 2015
Equity and Linbiliths
Shlr&ohlux‘ fuads
2 1,133,350,560
3 2;22.432,912 2
4 354813379 #
5 B 6,666,667
6 464.745.904 ... 13,793
TR 559,783 91,780,460
- 7 3,390,0§¢,322 2,204,266,599
§ 675,518,164 API2T5486
g 3,340.847249 1,891.352,622
. 10 B 196.08,558 65962550
" 163285293 4.579.857.267
T3
$(by
1)
Goodwill en sonsolidation : Hie) 208 5AT831 1104219485 °
Ko £ 36549575 LT
Deferred tax-assets (nel) i3 233' I48,302 ,
Uonj:tem lons and sdvdiices 14 % i
Other.nircurrent assits- 15
Cuiredtassits e
rumm’iea i6 nwmz 5,2823N
Cd»édmwmm i3 1,093.529,69%
Short:terts loans ahd advanges 19 239256,146 ’ 393.592.319
Otfiér cusrent assels 20 - 640.3483. ) AVT:
Significnst aeeouinting policles 1 ' S

T nofes réfivrod tosbove form an integral pan of the cosolidsted firameist Statemiats,

}brmdmtdulfofhrdofb&cdu:o!

»
DIN: 00087168 nmmmw :
N-V+$. Pavanm kuman
N VK Pavan Kiirar. . ‘

Dale: llugyao{s

B e DN




Quess Corp Lirzited snd subsidiries
{forisierly knove as IKYA: HUMAN.CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Consolidated statement of profit and loss

FAmount inRsp

For the period from

For theyear eaded 1 Janaavy 201d.t0-

Note 31 Mirchi 2016 31 March2018

21

Other income 22
Tols) Revenue
Eipcnsé .
Cosyof material 404 stores 2nd Spae parts Consumed 23 522649279
Employee bonefits expenses 24 74354329
Fihoce ¢osis 25 218,296,177
Dq:t!dﬂmmﬂmrﬁsanoncs@me ll(a)& by IOMI l,354
Ottier-expenses 7
Total Exjienses. 205898,
Profit behire ik : 147746496
Tax-expeiises.
- Currenttax (624,550,349} (290,782.422)
« {ncome tax credit for earlier years 4 -
~ Beferied tax crédit/ (charge) for the yearf peiiod
Profitafter tax
Edvaligs pév tqulty thire (face viliie of RS 10:¢ach) 29

- Basic 19 746

- Dilied o 117 595
Significant acconating potictes P

“The notes referred 1o above formanintegral pat of the consolidated finaocial sta

A behal of Board.of Directors of
‘Limited

foru
Quixs Cavp:

Gormerty W« IKYA4 BUMAN € APITHL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

2 MoitiRir
DIN, 00087168 DIN: 02234000
NV & Paven vt
N.Vs.hnll(umr
‘Plike: Bérgaliira Copatip Secresary
Date: 17 May 2016 Membership No: AYD10
' )
L3}




Quesy Corp Limited and subdsidinsies
{formerly known as {KY4 HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Consolidated cash fiow statemeat
Mnommlw
. . 1 MR 2e 38 Marehiols
Cash-lows from operaiing acilvities .
POt tax 1,283,637,850 1,047,746, 496
!60.18?,286 ‘101 AHJS&

(%JTB)

(41.73} .032)
(1,424,133,742)
o o . £2.364:439)
Tndepnyab{u, other cusvent fabilities and short-termy’ provisions Y 447,3) 1:605
Ciish genenited from siieations ix 156,!73

Caith Rows From lavéiting activiries. n e
Purchase of fixed assets (23!,930,629) (150.283,503)
Procetds Troit e of tiked assds i 143371
Loans given toyelated parties’ : (15059,079) B

{524,753,513)

Arquisition oF sibsidiatics:
Purchase of on-current investments
Bark deposits (Wviogofigina! mwtitricy of miore than threr' moriths}
lm meome QI TN
Netcoih sed iy isvesflug setivitlés (8)

Cadh flows frony Hkdeing ctivitie P
wmmﬁm to borrowings, net 096,756,215 881898463
25,600,000

¥ Paid
Net tnl@mﬂd by financlag sctivities {C)

Netiderease fn ensh nd cash equivalents (A+B+E) T2 458,123
Cashand cash equivaleits acqisired from sybsidiaries 134,400,192
Effect of exchange diffecences on foreign cusrency ash balances. 52410y

Cashand cash equivalents at the Beginining of the yeac/ period (refet dote 18).
Cash find cashéguivalents at e erid of the yearf priied (rifer ote 18)

760276:319
1 L8

The notes efemed 1 sbove fonman integalpar of he conseidatd inanciel e

As per o repoxtof even de atached
ﬁrB’ &mm

o Nov: 116230 WW:100024,

+OIN: C00R7148:
N-VoSobasran Kume 1
ﬂ V.S:Pivul?ﬂmr

Date: 17:May3016: mm;p&ah All0
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Quess Corp Limited and subsidinries
{formerly kegwn oz IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Noles to the tids 1 for the year ended 31 March 2016

Company Overview

Quest Corp Limited (formesty known a5 IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED) (‘the C¢ pan ) is 8 Ci ]
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 19 September 2007 originally as s *Private Limited Company” andsubseqmm!y
converted into 8 “Limited Company” on 2 July 2013

The € lnsil,s istered office in Bengall Mmh&wuumlnmhmsﬂmmmﬁmgmmmn
smeb,mnmummwgmﬁm!ﬂywmmm fuding engin 3 zs, food: 3, skill development,

software and solutions services, | logy! i chnology enabled 'and mmining services: The Company
<changed s name to Quess Corp Limied effective from 2 Janusry 2015, With effect from 14 May 2013, Thomss Cook (fdia) Limited
{TCIL) has become the parent company and Fairfax Financisl Heldings Limited has become the ultimate hotding company of the Company.

'l'!u:(‘mnpwy s proposing an initial public offering of it cquity shares of face value of Rs 10 cach ('the Jssue™} under the SEBI ICDR
of the Companics Act, 2013 (“{be Act) and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Secusities)
Rufes, 2074 Pumnmmlhis, the Company hes filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated 1 February 2016.

Srgaificant sccounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods g d in these

Basisof ing aad tion of Consalidated Finandal S!

£ i .

These fidated financial an.l:sCormemdand bsidiaris ! ferred to as the “Group’) have been preparcd
and p d in. dance with Indizn G g Principl (’vaund«ﬁwhismdulmmmqsmmm
muﬂm:a GMPmprmmmmty aucowmgsmdsrds pmcribed mduSetim 133 of the Act tead with Rule 7 of tiw Companies
" (Atcounts) R\ﬂB. 2014, The by uniform g policies } the growp

i d other events in smulxrcnrwmsnm and are pmmxcd to the sxtent possible, in the same manner as the
Commswpanuﬂnmdim

TbeComvmylm!akmhvw!wmemlgamahmwnmtheGmup the Company and its subsidiarics) does not bave any
and th ion has 10 be ignored while preparing the Nidated ial .

tid: il staterhets are py d in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise mentioned and rounded off to nearest rupee.

The
“The consolidated financial . lndudelhemdlsol‘mmmsmmhauasfqum

f"; 4 Name of the eatifies s»zstglg',/inp ; Countryof

(T ] Comivs Sotutions Private Limed(COFL) 13

I WAFX fotech Private Linived (MIFL)

[ Aravon Scrviees Brivate Limted (ASPLIH

: Ques!(l’hﬂrppm:)émp il I’h:lxppam =F
“[Qescop AR | United Swies of America [ W00

‘ 1 ; oW
=T ikya Business Services (Private) Limited (1OSPL) | Subsidisry | s

T Mindwire Systems Lid,, Corada (MSL)

2
3
4
K
T Qumpﬂoidmﬂe.hd((}ﬂl’)m
&
3
v

mmcmmescmmuscm O

10| Braimhiamie Companies LLC (acu

ETT T DSy G O TR

12“'””5"&! e m&"&“h;{ e _w,

U5 ViFxchangs (retand) Limiosd (MFXL) 10

O wmt(mm)smnuo

» anedd\ﬂtsﬁnyurcﬁuﬁ%ﬁﬂnh\wﬁmlﬂmmmﬂl
i Semmulm;-bmduqcﬂ’&uwﬁomlmgq,mlq.nmmntkmmiuﬂﬁﬂal December 2015 (vefer note 46)
<

3§ Incorporaied during the year

st
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Quéss Corp Limited and subsidiaries
Yormerly knoven as IKYA HUMM‘ CAPIML SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Notes to the i for the year ended 31 March mls
Basis of sccountivg and preparstion of Consalidated Fi ial inued]
The lidated $ d in d with the iples end . d for the and
pmmuf&mrmmmlmmsmadmwmru»AceocnungsnnM(AS)zb‘cmmMﬁmm!
staterents”, issued under C 3 Rules, 2014.
The fidsted financial stat of the Comps ,lndits bsidiaries have been combi m:!mby-lmebmbyaﬁmgw
book valués of fike itemis of essels, fiabilities, income and & after eliminating iniea-group b and resulling
uireatised gainfloss..
m:messldeﬁmnfmmthecmwonnmmtmmmmofmwﬂhmmcmfmmucsuﬂxmmwdmsm
which investmient in such entities was made s recognized in the a3 goodwill/ cagital reserve.
$ise of estimates
on of financ ordance with Generaily ed Accoutitirig Principl inlndnmqmraﬂummzlomh
Mms!immandmpmd\alaﬁm pplicatian of ,poimesmd ported ‘assets, liabilities, i
penses and the 4 e hablbuesasllmdmoflhe" i The esti and prion used in the
ing fi ' are based upoa M i ol‘lhe ie facts and asmthedateofihe
nwwmnmmumt&rmam i ions are d on an g basis, Any
g B prospecti ',mcumandfum;mmds
Reveaus recogaltion
Peaple ond services
Revenue tedated 1o staffing services ie. salery and cidental of temporaty associates slong with service charge are revognised jn
m;&mwﬂlmuwdmsmdmwasthndawdmmm
R reisted o i 29 resogni! ’amenmetnmdsduebcpnsﬁxllumzmphymt
R relaled to ive search and irainings are.; ised upon 3 ing of the service.
Revenue from training services is recognised prorated over the period of training:
clabulmsnbgywlm
me&hudw;uﬂ'ﬁngmmmsalwm& idental of emph of"' ion Technology? Information Technology

Emhkd&wumalongwﬁhm«eechargsmmognmdmmmm«h:agnedxmammgnmdaswmmmm
perforowed.

Itegrited facility movngezment

Revenue for facility management and food services are primarily eamed on fixed foo basis and are recogaised as per the terms of the
armangement with the customers.

Industrial asser mamcgemen .

R ﬁpm’, ion and main seevices are primarily eamed on 8 fixed fee dasis and are recognized ratably over the period of the
wtmt‘mth"- Certain arangy are on time and mutesial basis and e recognized as the services are performed as per the
terms of the 19 ith the

Software and soh "

meue(mmfammon hnology primarily inchud iom, which includes the licensing of cabins? sp d power, i i
offerings, 3 servicesand a xpplicat seyvices, R is recognized ratably i donce with the agreed

terms of the camract with the cusiomers.

Deferred revente included in othar cumrent lisbilities represents emounis billed in excess of revenue earned, Unbilled revenue included in
other cutrent assels rep ed 16 excess of! billed,

Irterest income

{nterest income is recognised using the lime-proportion meihod, based on ihe undertying interest rates.

Fized assets, depreciation and smsortizstion

Tangible fixed sssets.

Tangible fixed asvets are stated ot the cost of scquisition or tion ks deted deprecialion up to the date of the balance sheet.

The cost of an item of tngille asset comprises its purchase price, indluding import dulies and other non-refundable taxes or levies'end any
d-mﬁmmwd&mmmwammmm For #s imended use; dny tade discounts and rebates are dedocted in
amiving &t the purchase price. Cost of the ﬁxﬂl’mmmdyhm intended use before such date are disclosed as capital wosk-ine

progress.

Leases under which the Groop assumes substantislly sl the risks and ofammhlpmchmﬁednhmtmsmmm
capitslized o fair value of the assel o present v




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
{formerly knawn as IKYA HUWN‘ GlelL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Nates 1c the fid: for the year ended 31 March 2016

Fined assets, deprecintion end smortization {continued)

!nhnglﬂ:ﬁdmeﬁ

Astiquired intargible are mmallyatmAﬁamiulrecoﬂmﬂmmlmbkmuwn:dammﬂhssmyncmulaled
ation and anly Jated i expenditure is capitalised only when it i the bencfits

ﬁwnmespwlkasdlowhn&nrdam

i ised in the of profit or loss over thieir estimated useti] lives, from the date they are availsble for use based

mﬂzwwﬂdmmmdmmmmmormm

The camrying value of these indangible assuts is reviewed liy for impx and adjusted to the bie amount, if required

Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assels is provided using the straightfine method over the estimated useful Jife of the assets. The Group belioves that the
existing usefid life as given below represents the best useful estimated lives of theseassets: Aceordingly, the Group hias carried out an intemal
sssessment and obtained tochnicat advice where necessary which is differert from the useful lives 2s prosetibed under Part C of Schedule I

of the Ci ies Act 2013, Depreciation on additians and disposals is provided pro rata for the period in vse. The estimated useful fives of
#syets are as foflows:
Asvel deveription ' - T el B
Compuster (data sSrver) 7 years
Fumnitwe and fixtares 4.7 yoars
Vehicles 3 years
Offioe equipment 4-5 years
-Pluluuwmdm:ry iyuans
Depreciation lspmvidedonalmpmweb&s mnlmmmwmdwmghyur {MIvacngsSBDOmlm
mdepmmdulhmoﬂml hold § ized over the Jease teom or estimated useful fife of' J years, shichever
is fowen. Leasch P QUi qre et mrmclesgtemm:sumkdmﬁ:!hfeonyws,wmehevemlum
Amortization )
. jon s provided at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value of each asset on & suaight-fine basis over its
estimated usefil life,
The amoxtization rates are #s folfows:
Asset deseripilon ' g - ~Usfalite
Goodwitl & years or esti d uschiit fife whichever is lower
Software (owned) . 3 years:

. =]

16

Leaschold software.are amartized over the fease term or extimated uscful fife of 3 yeass, whichever is lower
Irspairment of ass¢ts

meupmamhbalmsme:dakwhaherlhmumyn\dmmm:nm(mwwggmdmﬂmﬂmmmmhdmm)wa
group of assets mnmybempwed.lfmymhmdummmompmmamm amount
ofﬂmsm,memwm«mmmmmlmgmmmmwmmmummf«
the cash generating unit o which asset befongs. If such t o the recoverable amownt of the cash generating unit
1o which the asset belongs is less than its canying smount, the carrying amount is reduced 1o its recoverable amount, The reduction is treated
a3am impairment loss and is recogrised in the statewment of profit and loss,

uummmmmammmf;mammmwmmmw:mkmmu
vmmaiandﬂnusaauM&ﬂzmmbkmummwmammnwmmmmmmu
nmdaﬂymmemm canrying amount of ssset docs nol exceed the net book value that woold have been deteymined, if no

Imspairment foss Whpimlmwﬂbrwﬂﬂummm&mammuimhtmm
foss ‘hyupea | event ofsh | ngtuce that is ol expented o recur, and 3

that reverse the effect of that event.

Savemtories

Inventories (Raw mattrials and stores asd spane3) which mpﬂ*gﬁ»dcwmnﬂd, ommwwlnmdcleﬁngmbmw
valued 3 ﬁuiouaol’muﬂm:ﬁl valve: Cost of i g price, cods of conversi

mumnmmmmmmwummmm mmeume
vﬁwuxhsmwﬂinsmmh«dmmolm Meslmndmumn.mmimotm-dmwmm
value is made on an ftems-by-item basis,

Inventories are stated net of write down or allo 8




10

.1

Quess Carp Limited aad satisidinries
rly kneven as IKYA HUMAR CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Noies to 1he toasolidated flanncisl stytemizats for the year ended 31 March 2016

Foreign excbasgy S e

The reporting cusrency of the Group is Indian Rupee. The local currencies of the non-integral subsidiaries ave different from the reporting
currency of the Group,

Foreign exchange transactions are-recocded using the exchange rates prevailing on the dales of the 3 L
differences ertsing on Wammmumsmddmmgmywm cmgundmummofmﬁmimtuuwyw

Monetary assets and lisbilitics denominated in forcign ies as 3t the balance sheet date sre transiated at the closing exch rates; the
resuliant exchangs differences are secognized in the statemert of profit and loss:

Non-mohelary iteors which arécarried in tenms of historicat cost & inated in & foreign y are reported using the exchange rate at
the dule of the transaction.

Noa-integral operatioris

The financial statements of the foreign non-integral subsidiaries/Step subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees as follows:-

+ Alfassets and labilities, bioth monetaty and non-monetary are Wrenslated using the chosing rates
* Shace capitad and opening reserves and surplus are castied at historical cost

R and exp are transTated &t average rates
» The resulting net exchange diffence is credited or debited 1o the “foreign curvency transfation reserve™
» Contingent fiablities are transiated at the closing rates

Exchange diffeseaces which havie been deferred in foreign 'y lation reserve are not recognized s income of expenses until the
disposal of that entity:

Investments

Non-curtent investments dre valied at cost less any gitier than tempirary diminution in vefue, d ined on a specific identification basis.

Enployee binelily

Post ersployment benefiss

Defined contribtion plan

Pravidert Fund

Adcfined ution plan isap ploy brn:ﬂﬂmummwhm«mupysmumdmhﬂmmammumwndlm
moﬂxﬂmwmnwmmmmcmmw th pHoy Fund o

administered provident mmwwuammmmm The Growp's ibution is recognised a5 an Exp in the
statement of profit and loss during the pericd in which the emplayee renders the velated servite.

Defisied demefit plan

Granaty

The Group®s gratuity berwfit scheme are defined benefit plans, The Group’s net obligation m respect of x defined benefit plan is calculated

by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have camed in retum for their service in the cusrent and prior periods: thet benefit
is distounted to determine lupmtntva!&. Anynmcmmdpasscmuwsuandﬂz &irmmdmypunmmm 'ﬁn

calculation of the Group’s obli isp Ify by an independent actuaty using the proj POTng
date, ’

The Group secogeises afl actuarisl.gains and fosses arising from defined bmemplmlmedimly in the Statement of prafit and foss. All
qu*&dmﬁtphmnmmm) loyee benefits inthe St £profitand foss: 'The Group recognises
gnins and losses on ihe curtsilment or senlement of'a defi bemfuplmmnnummtxmmm

Canpensated absences

mwmmmmmmowummMWommmmwmm;mmmmmm

recovds an.obligation for such compensated absences mumﬁdmmwwm:hmmdum this enfitlement.

The obligation is measused on the basis of an indepe I valuation using the proj d unit credit methoif s ot the reporting date,

Emplayee stock aptlsna ’ N

m(iwpiuMMWbIBmMWG«QMM&MMMWthNW:
nhcumwmm Employee Share-bosed Paypents. iswsed by the institue of Chartered Accourtants of *

india Under this method, comy mmedueofmumnisodmdxmummusmtmm

Leases

Lmuﬂuﬂﬁbbasmnﬁcmmmo‘mnmnd rEwards of oymership are retained by the lessor are classified as operiting Jeases:
mmmmwwmmmormmmmmwmhmmmmm y
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Cuess Corp Limited and sphsdiaries
oraerty knmen as IKH }IUMJ}U CAP[TAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes fo the i for the year ended 31 March 2056

Earaings per share

In determining the eamning per share, the net profit aiter tax is divided by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. .
The number of shares used incomputing diluted camings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving
busic carmings per share s also the weighted average nurvber of equity shares tiet conkd have been issved an the conversion of ell dilutive
potential equity shares. Dildive porential oquity shares are deemed converted as-of the begirming of the period uniess issved at 2 fater date, .
!ne;:mﬁmdﬂmmngpusmm potential equity shares that are difutivs ic.. which reduces eamings per share of Incrosses foss’
per shave are inchuded:

Tasstion

The income tax expense comprises curment tax {ie. amount of tax for the year determined in accordance with (he income tex faw) and defenred
tax charpe or credit (refleching the tax effacts of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year)

Deferred tax charge of credit are recopnised fwlheﬁmnxmn:eqummnwablew timing difference that result between the: profit

offered for income taxes and the profit as per the financial : The deferred 1ax charge or coedit and the coresponding deferved tax
lmbﬂumummcm@udmgﬂmmmﬂmhavcbmamd or substantively eymcied by the balance sheet date, Deferved 1ax
assets are recognised only 1o it there is mmcmcmhrdmdunmmu,mm:sahwgm

Wdlmumwmmwmmsmhm, ferred tex assets ure recognised oaly if theve is virtst cerfainty of realisation
lx:u:huutsD:feneémasdsmmieweduambﬂmdwtdﬂemGwmamuwﬁmn-npwuﬁmﬁcWMis

" sea3onably / virtually certain as the case may be to be realisaed R

The Group offset, on & year on year basis, the asvert ax assets snd Habilities, swhere it has a legally znforceable right and whete it intends to
settfe such assets and diabilities on a net basis

Provisiums, contingent Habilitles and contingest assets
A provision is recognized sfsamﬂtdammgﬂw&wphﬂpﬁm oblxpumtfulcan beemmntcd reliably, and it is probable

that an oatflow of ecanomic benetits will be sequired (o seitle the obfigation, Pr a1 the best of the expenditure
fequired to Settle the présent obligafion al the reporting date. The provisions anc d en an undt d basis,
A conlingent liability cxists when there is @ possible bul sot probable obligation, or s preseat obligation that may, but probably will not,

requn an outflow of resources. or & present obligation whose amount cannot be extimated reliably. Contingent ligbilities do not warrent
provisions: but md&h&d unjéss the possibility of oulflow of cesources is remoie; Contingent assets are peither recognised nor disclosed
in the corisolids , coptingent assets are assessed continually ard if it is virtually ceértain that wn inflow of
econmic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the disnge oceurs,

Warramniies
Wanarity costs are estimated on the basis of s technical evalustion and pastexperi Provisian is made for estimated liability in respect of
warranty costs in the year of rendering of services.

Omerony contracts
AmamﬁuﬁammthupcdedmmmcbmeﬁuwbedmvvdbyllnGmﬁmlhecmmm fower than the
unavoidable cast of merti 1. The pr for an onerous contract is measured at the lower of the expened

cost of termi uwm;'.“msm P Mmot tinting with the

Cash flow staternent

Cash flow sislement is repoted using itdirect nwethod, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the emwmmmof ] mn-cash
salureand sy deferrals or accruals of past or futute cash réceints or payments. The cash flows arising from operating, 83! 3
activities of the Group are scgregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow i e cash and bal w:lhmm('mlpmycmummhuﬁﬂthum
gftvmummummnmmuxmkynmdaeormorsmmmw m:hmtymvembhwkwmunwmoraﬂmr
equivalents.

Gaodwilt

Any excess of the cost {o the parent of its investment in a subssidiary over the parent’s portion af equity of the subsidiary, at the date on which
invesoment in the subsidiary is made, is recorded 8s goodwill atising on consotidation.

Goodwil arsing on consolidesion is ot amontised, R is tested for impairment on a perodic basss and writien off if found impaired..




Qum Corp Limited and subsidinries
(formerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes Lo the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 35 March 2016

2 Sharecapital
. Asat As st
th nlﬂn e = . N March 2016 ... 31 March 2088,

200,000,000 (3! March 2615 }13 lmaueqmrystmofpu value of Rs 10 each®

tssued, subseribed and paid-up
113,335,056 {31 March 2015 : 25,773,764) equity shares of par valae of Rs 10 cach, fully

paidup

257737600

* During the: year, the Compeny vide its Extra ordinary general meeting dated 10 August 2045 hias incressed its authorised share cxpitl from
Rs 1,131,046,310 divided into. 113,104,631 equity shares of Rs 10 each to Rs 2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000 equity shares of Rs
10 each.:

2s) Reconclintion of sumber of shares ootstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year/ period

g_n;&uhrs s

Tty v - = o - .

Al the commencemet of the year! period 25,113,764 257,737,640 18,996,807 189,968,070

Shares issucd on conversion of compaisory

convertible  preference shares Jrefer note B2 g 6,176,937 67,769,570

2anill

Shares issued duting the year/ period: !
Right issue frefer note Aa)ii))
‘Bonus issue frefer note 2aitiiil]

Attheend of e yexr/pediod

0.081% Compulsarily convertible
preference shares of par value Re m each
At the commencement of the yea/ period
Conversion 10 equity shares {refer note 2aXi],__
At the end of the year/period

2sXi) The Company had issued 0.001% sompulsory convertible prefe shares (CCPS) of Rs 100 each io Thomas Cook (indie) Limited at a
premiuma of Rs 24.38 vide Share Subscription Agreement (SSA) dated 5 February 261). During Gic previous period, as pér the terms and
condition of SSA, the Company vide iis Board meeting dated 14 October 2014 has convexted 7,717,912 CCPS into 6,776,957 equity sharcs
at a premium of Rs 131,66 per share. Out of the totat preminm of Rs 892,230,430 axising on this amingement, Rs Y38,208,800 cntlected on
the initia! issue of CCPS 83 above, was sdjustéd agalnst the share preminm end Rs 704,021,630 was recognized as premiwm an conversion
of CCPS in the provious period.

2aNiD) Right lisue
- During the year, the Company vide its Board meeting dated 6 November 2015, has offcred 2,560,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each on right

basis, in p to the roquil of Section 62 of the Companics Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share capital and Debentures)
muazouinmemioofo.m:quixym for every equity share held in the Company ds on dale to the existing sharcholders; Thoinas
Cock {India) Ltd in its Bosed g has resolved nok to subscsibe to the right issoe and has obtained the sharcholdeérs approval on 12
DembelO(ibymotpmwbledmﬂylmmofmwwwmmﬁofmmofmmm
Cook ¢Indis) L4 vide circular réSolution dated 18 December 2015 for senouncing 1,957,302 equity shaces in favour of Net Resowces
Investments Privaie Limitcd. On 21 Deoember 2015, Mr. Ajit Isaac rencunced his rights of 461,516 shares in favour of Net Resources

Investments Privale Limited. )
Accordingly, the Company in its Board mesling dated 22 Dacember 2015 has approved the allotment of ‘equity shares on right basis as
follows: *

741912 771,791,200
i . GINSE . gNInes)

m..mmi’am Number of right | Number of shares |

19,




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
(j’omnrl}' knowit as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to the d financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

s)ili} Bonus Issue
During the year, the Compasy in purseant 1o the requiremesits of Section 63(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and afier obtaining the consent
ofsbatcboldersuunmaordmmymm ing held an 23 Decemt MISandvideiasBotdminghdﬂm\Smezomﬁas
pmdnmmmu;mﬁﬁdlymdwmuyshmewfkslomﬁnwaylM{ypﬁdupequyshnrcofksl(}ud:mﬂbmg
sharcholder whose navie appears in the register of members s on 23 Decetnber 2035 byud!bjngmnuaprm-maeqmm The bonus

shares:shall rank pari passu in il respects including dividend with the existing equity shares of the Company in shareholding
withi respect t0 bonus issue is gs folfows:

T Namber of shares® |

*shareholding post right issue

2(b) Rights, preferences and resivistions attached to equity shares
The Company has a siogle class of equity shares, Accordingly, alt equity shares rank equally with regand to dividends and share in the
Company’s residusl assets, The equity sharas ate entitled o receive dividend as declared from time to tinie. The voting rights of an equity
shargholder on 2 ol {wot on show of hands) are in propostion to its share of the paid-up equity capitsl of the Company. Ou winding up of
llle(,‘ompm the hoiders of the equity sheres will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, after disiribution of alt
Pr | if any, in proporti bthenm:buofeqmtymamhcld.

2(c) Sharesheid by hohﬁng tompany

Nombar

{3y Equity shares of par vaiue Rs [¢ each
Thoras Cook (Jndia} Limited 73,823 496 788,234,966 19,705,874 197,053,740

Ad) Demsitsof !h\'eboldm holtlng more thaw 5% shares in the Con;nny

Particulars
() Equity shares of par vafue Rs 10 each

Thomas Cook {India) Limited 78,823,496 9.55% 19705374 646%
Ajit tsaze 18,585,960 16.40% 4646490 18.0%%
. T esowcss Invesiments Private 15,365,824 13.56% 1,293,100 5.02%

2(e} The Company has oot made any buy beck of shares or issued any Shares for consideration other than cash, during lhe period of five years
immediately preceeding the balance sheet daie. However, the Company has issved bonus shares in the current financial year.




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
{formerly kmeren as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes ta the consolidsted financial stxtements for the year ended 31 March 2016

3

Reserves apd surplus .
Asat Asst
-ggnlm . b .31 Maceh 2016 31 March 2018
Smmnn premiun account at ihe begiandng of the year! perlad 1258328919 353307289
on fon oF preference shaves to equity shares {refer nate 2) - 704,021,630
L&.mmu!ﬂmd ﬁwnsmgbemnshnu(mfamlcn . .. 850012920} . L s
Securitles premium sesount at the end of the year/ period WIS 1A

Share opti ﬁlg 1 the heginning of the year/ period
Less : transfer 10.genernl reserve on Rorfeiture of stock options (refer note 3.1 and 40)

s6131381 se1n381

Stock options oulstanding avcourit at the cad of fhic year/ period 43,481,399 i '56.137.38!

Foreign curreacy transiation reserve

Balance t the beginning of the year/ period 1,386,580 (319,500}

Add: Additions dusing the year/ period . {3317.587) 1,706,080

Balance at the end of the year/ perlod (1931097 1.356,580

Capitat rescrve .

Batznce at the beginning of the year/ period R =

Add: arising on acoount of scquisition (refer note 45) : 20055793 e

Balunce at the ead of the year/ pericd o 29058193 000 %

General reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year/ period s =

Add ; transfer from stock opltions sutstanding account (refer note 3.1 and 40} . 12655582 =

Balanee at the end of the year/ periocd T 12855982 - ~

Surplus in the statement of profit aad loss balance) .

At the commencement of the yéar! period 933,744,775 244,820,063

Add: Net profit Tor the yewr/ period 897316Q:Q:8,_~~_ 688.924.712
) Balanse in statement of profit and foss at the end of the year/ pericd TS R30904 813

933744775

3.1 Duwring the year, the Company has forfeited the,

4 Loag-term borrowings

 émployee stock options pertaining o .”I'?i S resTged 3 s

4 - W — — vy
JParfcnlers . . e i} 31 Mareh 2036 31 Marck 20!5.
Frorm Bank (refer note 4.1) 170,766,704 s
Finanoe tease obligstions {refer note 4.2) 182,982,569 -
Unsecured
Vehicle foan (refer oote 4.3) ) ) ad

4.1 During the grevious period, BSL had taken shor-torm borvowings Som 1CICI Bank mnmg Rs49¢9s7486 (CAD 9,995, uJL The
maximuns Jimit senctioncd toveards this Shcility by the bank was CAD 10,700,000,
Diuring the year, BSL das refinanced the aforéssid sanctioned facility into term joan aggregating Rs 204,920,000 (CAD 4,000,000) and short-
term borrowings of Rs 343,241,000 (CAD 6,700,000). The tenw foan and ihe shortterm bomowing are securcd by way of pledge of
7,300,000 sharés of BSL beld by Quess Corp (USA) e and Corporate Guisrariter given by Quess Corp Limited.
'rem:mwmmmwmmﬁnmm:mmmcmaﬁmzfmmmwmmmmxmof
204,920,000 (CAD 4,000,000} is repaysble in twelve quartorly instattments commencing | Deceraber 2016, Accordingly, the Group has
discloscd an smount aggregating Ry 70,766,701 (CAD 3333,334) as konig-teom borrowings andf s 14,153,299 (CAL) 666,666} is included
in the current maturities of long-term borrowings as disclosed in note 9.,




Quess Corp Limited and subsidisries
Yormeriy knovr a3 IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notea to the coasolidated (indncial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2016

42 MFXH buys equipment; corp ft and leaseliold impy on finance lease,. Principal payments which arc due after
twelve months from the reporting date has been classified as long-term maturities of finance lease obligations amounting to Rs 182,482,569
(31 March 2015: Nil). Principal payments which. are due within twelve months from the reporting date has been classified as curent
mairities of long-term finance lesse obligations aggregating to Re 114,507,391 (31 March 2015: NR) under other curent liabifitles. These
are secured by hypothecation of sssets 1aken on lease and carry interest sate of 5.00% to 5.30%. The leasc agrecsuent is for period of 2-5
yiears. :

4.3 Vehicle loas is taken from Mahindra and Mahindea Financial Sevvices Limited which carries interest rate of 14.50% p-a. and is repayable in
thirgy six equal monthly fmsiatments. Principal payments which are due after twelve months from the rfeporting date Zggregating Rs
1,564,609 tias been classified as fong-term borowings: Principal payments which are due within tweive months from the reporting date
Apgregating to R 795,661 has been classified as current maturities of long-term borrowings under otfier current Habilities.

5§ Other fong-ferm Jisbilities

fmount in Rs),

. ’ TAsst ©UASaf

Particwtars,. .. .. . ... .. _ .. . . . . . L3 March2016 31 erch_lqts
Payable to erstwhile minority sharcholders [refer note 5.1] [ R !36661,6_67

51 TheCompany vide its agreement dated 14 May 2013 acquized §00% sharcholding of Avon Facility Management Services Limited at 4 total

consideration of Rs 142,627,500 Owt of the tois!l consideration, in sceordance with Share Purchase A the Company hss paid Rs

120,094,167 in May 2013 and has agreed to pay Rs 29,200,000 to certain shareholders over g pcriodv;l” years. Till previous petiod, the
Company has already paid an amount aggregating Rs 22,533,333 and the remaning amount of Rs 6,666,667 (payable in 2016) i disctosed
in othes current liabifities.

6 Long-lerm provisiens

T ST —— e

e sl
31 March 2016 31 March 205

Particulary

"Provision for cmployee benellt ’“ i
Provision for gratuity (xefer wote 37) 62.538.912 61,395,081
Others
Provision for consideration payable on acquistion (refer note 38 and 46) 32239437 e
Provision for disputed claims (refer note 38) 75841379
Provision for rent escalation e 3442 . 109
7 Short-term borrawings
(Amouint in Rs}

R i —— r——— o s Ve
Particulary . 31 March 2016
Toms R G T i - o -
Secured
Cash csedit and overdrat facitities (refor note 7.1 bejow) 1,864,522 484 1,410,726,760
Bill discounting facility from bank (refer note 7.2 below) 359,238,838 228,875,979
Warking capital toan (refer note 73 befow) 840,000,000 530,000,000
Laoun from refated partics, unsecured
From Fairfix (US), loe. {cefer note 7.4 below and vefer note 35) . 265,020,000 =
From Fairfax Financiat Holdings Limited {refer note 7.5 below and refer note 35) . _.51,230,000. ... 34,663,860
‘ T30 T 04,266.599

74 Cashcredit from banks are secared primarify by way of exclusive charge on the current assets and on the movable assets of the BSL. Cesh
credit includes the working capital ficifity of R5 343,241,000 (CAD 6,700,000} {31 March 2015: Rs 494,957,486 (CAD 9,995, 143)] avaitcd
by BSL from ICICI Bank Cansda as detailed in note 4.1.

7.2 Credit availed oo bills-discounted from banks are secured primarily by way of pari passy first chatge on the entire current assets of the
Giroup on both past and fisure and additionaily by way of pan passu first charge 04 the entire movable assets of the Grosp. :

13 Working cajital m'mmnmmzywmofmi passu first charge on the entire curent assets of the Group on both
mmmvmmmwmawmﬁmmmmmm,mumom )

T4 Mng&mmmmmus.mqmmmmmmmmms)mwmmmmm:wm -
' vpto Rs 331,275,000 {USD 5,000,000) which carries an interest rats of 3-3%er annum o incresnental basis each yoar upio 3 Noventber
218
7.8  This représents interest free unsocued loan filken |

rainuter: Sysiems Lid. from Faifix Financial Hokdings Licited (R $1.230,000
{CAD 1,000,000) {35 March 2015 : Rs 34,663,860 (B85

00)}}: The loan is repayable on demand.




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
(ormesly knawn as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to the eonsolfdated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

8 | Trade paysbles
i . o e s sldmount in R}
Dues la micro, smalt mmuﬁwnenmmses(rcltrmw)
* includes payable to related padiies {refer note 35) 1.523.998 2,194,187
9 Other current lindilities . N
Asat at
. oo March 2016, 31 March 2018
Iong—mnbofmm‘ngs (le!h'me L1, 4 3 md‘) I 9. 2) 35,077,141 3t .593,698
Curtent muturities of finance fease obligations (refer nnte 4.2) 114,507,391
Interest accrued and niot due “ 35,1950 .578.966
income received in advince 105,693,479 305,137,734
Other Payables, .
Advanw recesved from customers 143,889,620 117,980,823
ik payable to go authorities 719,604,157 336,551,564
Book ovcedraft 38,565,823 60,849,571
Payzble 1o erstwhile minority sharcholders (refer note 5) 6,666,666 6,666,667
Accrued salaries and benefits (refer note 9.3) 2463,574,996 950,564,874
Provision for expenses 131,682,384 68,528,593
Uniform deposits 2,706,224 1,837,670
Provision for rent escalation 1,563,679 891,691
Other labilities 16,079, P 524 71
9.1 This includes term losn from National Skilt Development Centre {NSOC™ of Rs Nit (él March 2015 : Rs 30.000.000) which is secured
© against hypothecation of project assets ind has bren repaid during the year.
9.2  Current maturities of long lerm includes lmwlsudlngcfks 128,181 (31 March 201$ : Rs 1.593.698} towards vehicle loan taken from
HOFC Bank and is repayable in 35 cqual monthly instaiments;
9.3 Includes provision for bonus for the financial year 2013-16 agsleguing Rs 453,637,437 computed based on the circular issued by Ministry
of law and justice dated 31 December 2095 which requil Group to pay bones at the specified revised threshold. {refer note 42).
10 Short-teres provisions
- F Y G 7
Particulars . 3 M'lrz! 2086 3% Mareh 2058
Provision Tor employee ﬁmﬁzrt
Pravision f': grataity (refer note 37) 152,183,206 378,664
Pravision for compensated absenices “,‘725.352 53,005,120
Others
ansm ﬁr warranty (refer note 38)

Pr (refer note 38)




Quiesy Corp Limited and subsidiavies
Gormerly known as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Nodes to thie cumsofidated Annscisl stutements for the year ended 31 March 2056

13(m) Tuagible Asets

. ’m‘f;m’ ‘ mm‘“ VYehiclex i m‘ﬁu'ﬂl’ﬂ?ﬂll’»
CRATTAN
H 21010678 |
: TR
; 3330040
i 043,617
' 195,645 937, 2011952 3
: 16.022,23) 4 3229634
: 155,021 K 7KK ’l%:%ﬁ‘v T
i 3848611 3 48, 2
: 3TN 163 ; 15090070
- AN T6.193.008
H 21,619.008) 3
: 58969 GREEITS
: - ...m.m X e
IRETRTTR I Y %950
: 15851917 T0VEI4S
: s T2 hradr
) WYY
! RaEtat 98" 706,79
; AT Viacen a0t T196AT |
i JAsnt31 March 2018 25761032
: Note :
; . oftang! of non intergtal operatians into Indian Rupees.. .
# Includes tangible awsets hoving gross book value of Rs 631 miltion, d fation of Rs 379 milli d net’ book value of Rs 252 million taken over an acquisition of ASPL. and MFXchangz group
' with effect from 1 Apeil 2015 and 1 Janusry 2016,
i




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiavies
(formerly knovm as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Noles to the dsted finsnrint for tse year ended 31 March 2016

1(b} Infangible assets and Intingible assels under developpuent

Goodwilt

As 3 Mairch 2018

;um
Mars!

Note

* Represents translation of intangible assets of non infergrat opesptions into Indian Rupzes. -

# includes intangiblc asscty having gross book valuc of Rs 64 million, accumulated depreciation of Rs 42 miltion and net book value of Rs
22 million taken over on acquisition of ASPL and MFXchange group with effect Srom § Agril 2015 and | Jenuery 2016,

1lic) Guodwill on consolidatian
Goodwilt on mmlmwmmdwwmmmnma net assed value of scquired subsidiaries on the dute-of such

acquisition., Such goodwitl is tested for imp or mote frequently, if there are indications for impairment. An smount of Rs

2,045,547,531 (31 March 2015 : Rs 1,104,219,485) hnsbemnooyiwdascoodmnm cansolidation a3 per the reguitements of AS 2§ -

Cansolidated Financial Siatements:

The Compary has taken the view and stated in the significant accaunting policies clause L) “Basis of accounting and preparation of

Consplidated Financial §¢ that the amal, ion within the Group (& the Company and its subsidiaries) does not have any
ie sub and therelt ' ion was ignored while preparing the tidated financist




Quaess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
ormerly kaavn as fl( ¥4 HUMAN C’APITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to thae a6 for the year ended 38 March 2016

12 Non-enreeat loveatroents

Investments in q-ﬂy instruments (ufer nofe 41)

tUnquoted, Trade fovestments .
200,000 (31 March 2015 : Nil) fulty paid up equity shares of par valuc of Rs 10
each of KMG Ifotech Limited™

Other non-curreat

Unquoted, Trade (uvestreenty
Investment in Styracorp Management Services
Investment in IME Consufiancy

{refer note 41)

Aggregate of wniquoted
* Investient: aeqwedon acquis&wnofMFXclmge Hotdings Ine. (refey note 46)

13 Deferred fax nmlt {net)

16,549,575

1322449

36,549,575 -

~JLarticutsrs e . o
Deferred tax liability

Fixed assels (72,433,124) {25,607,945)
Deferred tax assets ’
Gratuity and compensated absences 82,659,755 37,485,684
Provision for douttfol debts 36,038,01% 6,644,135
Provision for bonus 163,203,854 »
Pravision for disputed claims 7,830,691 1,690,357
Provision for itwerest on service fax 12,658,990 -
Provision Rr rent escalstion 1,660,128 674219
Others L6492 2 B

e

Deferred tex assets on the earvy forward losses of certain subsidisies within and outside india have not been recognised awing to brought

forward Tosses.
14 Long-term foans sud advances
il . e s . . [Amount in
As gt Asat
- . I March 2016 ‘“3‘,,«"‘5&3’“
1.569,307 3,064,498
83,286,761 61,000,864
Advance income tax {net of provision for tax) 117,533,956 449,714,273
Minimum aliernate tax credit entidement 1,281,119 284119
Payment made under protest © 15371182 15,374,182
Advance to cmployees = 595,507
Others L2618 3304,195
534
15 Other non-current sasets
(Amourit in Rs]
T Asat T Aset

Frepndupm :
aﬂms(mmmmlzmm&mmnmm
13.)

[}
16 lavestories




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
tformerle knoven as 1K m HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)
Notes to the ' ial for the year ended 31 March 2016

17 Trade receivabley

ASHE

.31 March 2016 .
332.613.659 372,842,668
131,641,833 81,896,536
(131‘6,4L833) gsn,s%:sm
337,613 372,842 i
3,944,386,820 2,175,521427
3,108220 =
Less; pm\mion for trade receivables 3.1 =
3.9 2,175,821,427
# includes receivables from related parties (refer note 35) 29,144,270 1435487
18 Cashaad bank balances
{dmouni mRJJ
hrﬁnﬂm 8 R 31 March 2016 31 March 2018
Cash in h.lnd 1,449,144 1,198,556
Batances with banks
I current accouits 1,034972.680 742.221,863
In deposit accounts {refer note 18.1) - . 30.000.000 l6.855900 .
1066421824 .
Otkeer bank bnlancex
In deposit accounts {refer note 18.1) 27, ID?.871>:
Detalls of bank deposits )
18.1 Bank deposits with original malurity of 3 months or less incitded under ‘Cash and y
Cash equivatents’ 30,000,000 16,855,900
Bank deposits duz to mature within 12 months of reporting date included under
it buitk baldnees 22,107,871t 57,971,929
Bank deposits due lo mature after 12 moaths of reporting date included under Other
NOU-CUNERL assels” . u 7“'2’9 e 4'329‘637
TEREN 75157486

19 Short-terin inans and advances

Ptrliwl&n
Advance income tax {net of provisim for.tax) 12,106,244 272.150952
Secarity deposils 74,805.75¢ 56,759,295
Balances with government authorilies 13,571,543 610859
Advances o suppliers 43,618,087 EX 599933
Loans and advances to relsted pacty {referaote 35.3F - 13059079
CQhier loons and advences
- Employee stvances 62,085,642 41,513,645
~Travel advances 10,809,848 2,860,993
~Other sdvinces !

20 Othver curyent asiely

16,096,593
) 319,

it e e



Quess Corp Limited and subsidiacies
(formeriy knoren a2 IKYA HUHAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Notes to the corisobid, iat statemeats for thie year ended 31 March 2016
21 Salc of services
. s . [Amownt in Rs},
- For the peviod from
" For the yearended 1 January 2014 0
Plrﬂtlhn . 31 March 2016 31 March 2018
and recraitroent sErvices oo o T U2%B60,106314 T T21,420,993,305
Training services 700,968,424 201,195,750
Facility management and food services 3.718.713,809 3,008,373,391
Operation and maintenance l l37 830.3&5 874, 9!4,533
Sl 3 cnhtinn burch " 164
22 Other income
For the year endtd 1 .lmuary m4 m
Particalsrs i 31 March 2016 31 March 2018,
Interest oa termo deposits 7,085,725 8395584,
Lisbilities no longps required wrilten back 1.579,200 8417954
Provision no longer required written back 14,551,626 25,030,608
Profit on sale of fixed assets, net 95,378 395,852
Interest income on income tax refund® 56,704,274 16,049,615
Bad debts rocovered 1,417,539 -
Foreign cxchange gain, nct = 8,358,964
Miscellaneous income . 2 086 0355897

* Juterest. income on icome tax refind is based on the refund order reccived from Income tax department ducing the yssr. This
includes an amount of Rs &, 160,064 {for the period from | January 2614 to 31 March 2015 : Nil) received during eislier periods.

23 Cost of material and stores and spare parts consumed

. (Amount in
— T T T T T T T T T R er The period oot
For the yesr ended 1 Jamuary 20{4 o
Particulags.. .. ... — ! 2 31 Blarch 2018
“nventory ol mnmw - 4423262
Add: parchases during the year/ period 523,506,388
Less: Inventory at the end of the yeat/ period o 5282371
Cost of material and stores and spere parts consumed 1,403,718 522649219
24 Employee benefils expeases
i
T e e s T T i “Far the p«wdlma
For tae mrendad i January 2014 o
Particolers " ez s 3t March 7016 . . 31 March 2015 .
'*-—-mem e T T T 2008 2L, OB68A AT
Contributian Dopmvndcm and other funds 2,029,657,610 1,534,845911
Staff welfaid expenses et 42,216,445 7‘ 86,823,977
N ;&3_7}(& 873 5& w
25 Finance costs

(Amourt in.
R T T—r xomm— i+——%p“. e period

For tleynr ended 1 January 2084 t0
1 ¥ .




Quess Corp Limited and subsidisries
(formerly bmown ax (RYA HUMAN CAPFEAL SOLUTIONS LIITELD)
Notes to the consolidnted financl! statemeats for che year ended 31 March 2015

27 Capita) commitments

Partieufars

“Estimaled AMoUnt Of CODURIS Temaining 10 B¢ EECIcd tn; Capital 2CCounk 31 fiok provided F0 a5 2 the DATInGE

sheet date:

Contingent Gabilities a5d commitments

3k umnws

Bonus (refer note $2)
Ditectand fndirect 1ax matters ¥

* {nchudes balances pertaining to direct and indirect tax crses of Rs 109,093 demmdiromASﬂ.

Out of the disputed cases, service tax inclusding pepakty and §
Rs 97,234,488 has been disclosed 5 cootingent lisbility, The sime

1) pending with the C

31 M Z0ls

£,640
25.732 513 25, 732.5!3

of Service Tax

10 Rs 150,449,043 for
the period October 2007 till March 2014 Aymtbncdlspwdm ASPL had made a provision of Rs 53,214,555 filf tApnllOlS. The nkmce anount of

5 the paymient of Rs 57,234,488 riiade doring the pericd October 2007 6l March

.mlzmdcservmuxndlemdmmmdu!ypmdbyllseCmnpanytoLcheMneTu horities which has irzdy Iy not bees adered by the

Survice Tax Department.
Earnings per share
For the year eaded 3 Janiiry 2804t
 Particulars w,:SLMlEﬂﬂmﬂrf«

“Nortal value of €quity sharcs (RS por share)

688.923.7 12

Net profit aler ux for the purpose of camings per stare {Rs) 897,160,038

Weighted avermge number of shares used in rempuing basic camings per share 113215610 92,294,525
Basic exmings per share (Rs) i 292 246
Weighted average number of shares vsed in computing difited carnings per share 115.428,839 113,701 641
Diluted eamings per shase {Rs) kA 593
JComputation of weiphted averuge omuberof shares e

X Far the petiod from

Fortheyesrendtd ¢ Joupary 2624 10

 Raticatery R, i S1March 2006 3¢ “fﬁ.ms‘
Number of equily shares ding of beginning of the year/ perind e ASTIRIEA. 18
Nusther of equity shares outstanding at begivning of the previous year aRer right issuc and _‘ 20,762,088
bonus issue i

- Adjustment of opening nomber of shares prior to right issue from | Apeil 2015 10 22 20,395,438 .

- December 2019 (28,773,764%3 0942651366 v

- Adjustment of opening number of shases post right issue from 22 December 2013 to 31 .“‘nu., -
March2016 (25,773,764%1017366} piae

Add: Weighted aversge sumber of eqaity shares inued d-riag uuyurlprind

»6.776757 suimber of equity shares issued on of comp bl . 2311544

hares on 10 November 20£4 for 142 days

- lmpau of bonus shares issoed during the current year on conversion of compulsarly . 5.934.631
convertible preference shares on 10 November 2014 &r 142 days h i

- Right issue of 2,560.000 funtber of equity shares issued o 22 December 2013 for 103 206,448 .
days 3

+ Bonus issue of 85,001,292 numbes of squity shates issucd on § Jsnvary 2016 83,001 $2,286262
Ad#: Impact of potestiafly ditusive eqaity shares MIAS610°  NIMNS
6,776,957 pumher of convertible preference share $ill the date of conversion . $.111.440
ke 314 days fiom ¢ Janumry 2014 o 10 November 2014 ' Ha

~ tmpact of bonus shares issued dusing e euirent year on 6,776,957 number of

mﬂwﬁumm wmmmmanorm\mm fe. 314 days from } % 15334324

January 2014 19 10 Noverber 2014 :

-ntﬂomvf%uuhﬁmﬁmﬂm < 2961351

~ 2.729.428 oumber of ESOP inchadiny botiel a1 ftir value
Weighsed aversge number of shites outstanding & the end of yess/ period

10 Paymentts Auditors (uet of seivice tunyinciodod In logat atd professional fess)

Py

3R
Pwmmre“ul

Bartoutars [ o
Stabtosy st foes
Tax sudit foes

Ows of pockes expenses

mmymm

L3t March 3013




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
(fortmerty nown as IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED)

Notes to the didated fi el sts for the year eaded 31 March 2016
26 Otber expenses
. s PR zmumigg
For the period from
For the yeareaded | January 2014 to
Barticulers ... . L e 3 March 2016 A1 March 2018
Sub-contractor charges ' 323,767,536 29,404,117
Recruitment nd training expenses 240,849,303 60409814
Rent {refér note 36) . 287431348 193,871,002
Power and fuel 44,714,875 28,801,853
Repairs snd maintenance
- buildings 34,812,409 21277113
- plant id mathinery 7722344 1,660,805
- others 140,770.970 22,093,484
Legal and professional charges 127,909,001 83,030,876
Hates and taxes 25,052,085 . 10,452,390
Printing and stationery 54,043,620 37,219,539
Conswmables 44,542,362 41,926,054
Travelling and conveymnce 225,476,636 198206,152
Communication cxpenses . 94,040,503 55,711,805
Provision for doubtfid debts, net 24,861,242 21.391,860
Deposits and advances written off 13,698,198 1,000,000
EBiquigient ire charges 66,068,377 30,984,651
Insurance 19,402,350 11,770,772
Database scoess charpes 18.354,156 16,030,311
Bank charges 3,694378 8,031,852
Bad débts written off P 3,794,073
Business promation &nd advertisement expernses 21,564,820 7151712
Foreign exchange loss, net 864,087 -
CSR contrithitions 7564565 4,954,031
Share of loss from an investment in associate £
Misccllaneous expenses




Quess Corp Limited and suhsidiaries
{frswrly &nvown as II-'YJ ﬂ(ﬂﬂN( AI’ITJI SCHUTIONS LIARTED)
Notes o the lid; for the year ended 31 erdiulﬁ

31 Earnings in foreige carrency

,2‘ P n. -w 3 expy
. Fereign y &) account of trade receivablk mhedpdbydmmmmumsmsfdm

Trade reoeivables

qupmmn‘

For e year caded 1 Jaavary Wid to
N 3 31 March 2018
351.842568 402,158,360
. 1271074618 126426212
15D, -] N

33 FEapenditure in foreign currency

For the year ended 1 Jsnuary 0idte

Loga) e protesion o
Tnvel!'ngmlcnnnymx

34 Segrwenit reparting
Batiness Segment.

mGstmmuwmmﬁlnwsmeoﬂhmpliememm utive seanch, contingency i houseketping and
Facifity management services, food services, sioll developmeat and tesining services and sccordingly primary sey: information is d on the ing

ioe offerings.
~ People and serviees
~Global technolopy solutions
~ {ntegraed Fcility management
- tndustrial asset manageroert
B 1 information is p d in confomity wich the ing polisies adopied for preparing wnd preseating the fimancial of the Group as &
whole:
“The Group has a corporate center, which provides varivus accounting and administrative support uncion. Sepment information for this setivity has been
ghregated undee “Unallocsted” X
Reveane identifisble to business’ have been disslosed under the reapective bush . Scgment sosta include employes benefit eost
ormmlmnwd.mamnmmnunmm mmmmmeﬁmm ing Exp that ¢an be 2} d oas

ble basks fo ¢
Assets and Habiliies in relation (o segmcmm caregorized based on jlems that are individvalty idumﬁ'ab!e to that segmens, Certain amlslnd Fabilities are
not specificaly allocable 1o individual as twse are need hongsably, The Group th that it is not practi o provide segs
Xy

d&kwmmwmmmdhhlhhumd dingly th paraiely disclosed a5 ‘unalh £..

Otfer iscome 13940 3429618 146057 12324695 0707318 wwEn

Flrance charges S 2 K & {7858313) CorasRI
! w

" Segment Usbilites T20v9sse 18MEENT 2014095208

ey



Quess Corp Limited 20d subsidiscies
(rrmerly knivn ax IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTEONS LIMITED)

Wates [o & for the year ended 31 March 2016
Bissinems sepment infirmuution for the perlod from | Jsounry 2014 1a 31 Murck 301§ laau follows: — |
L Pesplzand  Glaba} teshrol . fackily dalsesel ) 1

Orter intotoe 16252.367 T morsaie 26385018 X IS
Fimance Sharges. - ws - - (212.296,777) Qi3396,777)
Peoflt before tixstion £ T T B FRETIY . TV T
Taxation

i w:‘xm;“!ﬂg.

Prafic sfier taxstion C
Seyment sssets 2, 46887820 136,561,408 861,693,108 75,783,712 7478570,022

Segiment lpbilities $63. 54T 294048498 ITHISLDET 2200715404 46571,633117

Cupitatexpesidiore 14,881.461 r}ma.oz« 13.822,266 - 149,504,760

Greographic Segment

3

. hic: 3% March 2016

-~ i tndin (doeiestic) T T39.441 008 307

- outside India {export) L . . v - 088 ...

Tonl TUTTONMIMEIES T IS.670568910 12318678615 T178,973,822

38  Reluted parly disclosares
| 351 Nameof related parties snd description of refatioaship:

- Ultimate Holding Company Faisfax Financis) Holdings Limited

- Holding Company Thomas Cook {India} Limited

~ Subsidiaries ‘Cosihicve Soluriens Privite Limitcd
MFX Infotech Privade Limited
Brainburder Systems Lid., Cenads

Mindwire Systems Ld,, Cansde {formedly known s ZYLOG SYSTEMS (OFTAWA) LTD]
Brainkunter Companies Cansda fnc,, Caasds

Brainkunier Companies LLC, USA

Quess (Phifippiness Corp(formerly known as Magna Ty Infolech inc.  Philippines)
Quess Corp (USA) Ing. (formerly kssowr us Magna Infotech fng)

Quesscorp Holdings Pre. Ltd,, Singapore
Quessglobsl {Malaysis) Sdn, Bhd. (formedy known as Brai Sdn. Bhd., Mak
Arayon Sesvicas Privaie Limited {formerly known as ARAMARK indis Private Limited}
Skys Busingss Services (Private) Limited
MFXchange Holdings Inc., Canada
MEXchange {ireland) Limbted
MFXchange US, toe.. : X
MFX Radnoke tirs, USA (nerged with MFXchasige US, Inc. éffestive 3¢ Docember 2015)
~ Feliow subsidiary Nstional Collatersl Wansgement Services Limited {wef. 19 August 2015)
Fairfax (US) Ine.,
- Entity having comiman direstors Net Resources tavestments Private Limited
~Entities in which key mansgerial Styracorp Mansgesient Services
persontsel bas significant influsixe ME Consultancy
Key 3 % L, J
Ajit bssar: o Chainman & Maragiog Direttor & CEO $
Subraa Nog Wholetima Direstor & CFO N
Rashi Cupte: * Company Secretaty (from 28 Apeit 2014 10 24 March 2013) »

N V.S Pavan Krar Company Secretary {fhtwn 26 March 2013)




Quess Carp Limited and sobsidisries
Uirmerly knowis s IIL)‘.A L4 I&HN CAPJYAL SOLAIONS LIMTTEE)
Notes to the 3 Ry the year ended 33 March 2018

382 Related party kransactions during the yesr / preiod

(s

Farthe year ended
. Taomas Cook {lodis} Limited 173248231
Net Resources Investments Private Lm‘ml >
Nationat Collateral M Services Limited 101,673,56%
Other expensey
~Travelling and conveysnce ‘Thorass Cook {Indiz) Limited 28216010
-Rent Net Resources Investments Private Limited 3).4206%2
Finance costs
- Interest expense Fairfox (US) inc. 2029459
Purchase consideration {refer note 46)
» Puschase coasiderntion paid Falrfax Financist Holdings Limited 337
- Additional consideration Fairfax Financim Holdings Limited 322,115 388
Shertderm loass and advances
-~ Loan given Styzacorp Management Secvices 15,059,079
Shost-term harvawisgs :
~ Shon-term advances received from . s . -
sltienate holding Fairfax Financial Holdings Limiled 296631597
- Short-term adviincss repaid to . " . .
whimate hokding c Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited 280065457
Right renunciation
Thomas Cook (india) Limited hod
Ajil lssac -
*~Renunsiation of ight issues

Far thepeclod from

1 Jannsry 2014 to
3f March 2005

139,948,983
194,280

30,858,570
20,332392

During the year, the Company vide its Board meeting dated 6 November 2018, has affered 2,560,000 equity sharts of Rs IOeuhmngb\b&s.mwmof
the mauirement of section 62 of \he Campanies ActZ013 sead with mCmms (Share capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 in Owe atio of 0,099 equily

Bsceibe to the sight

shares for every oquily share beid in the Company 25 on date to the-cxistii Tlmm&m([m)l ited s resoived not

issue and has obiained the sharcholders ap L'on {2 Decernber 2015 and ingly 3 of ation was approved by the Board. of Direciors of
the Thosnas Cook {India) Limited vide circulac resofation dated 18 December 2015 for rencuncing 1,957,302 equity sbares in Favour Net Resources Investments
Privaie Limiled {a compaay owncd by Mr Ajit fsasc). On 21 December 2018, Mz, Ajit Iskac renounced his rights of 461,514 shares in favour of Net Resources

Investments Private Lintited.,
353 Baslance recelvable from and puyable to relsted parties as at the bafancesheet dater

A mRtZ

- Particulars. e N L Lo o g o 1 March 2016 3 March 2018
o oo
Thomas Cook (Indiz) Limited 29,134270 14139952
Net Resources Investments Private Lifited - 214923
‘Trade paysbies
Thomas Cook {Tndia) Limited 1,523,599 2,194,187
Long-term provisioos
Faicfax Financisl Holdings Limiled 32239137 s
Short-ferm borrowings ; . .
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limived $1,230,000 34,663,860
Fairfax (US) Inc.* 265020,000 .
Short-term loans and sdvances
Styracors Managensent Services 15059079 »
* Balance acquired on scquisition of MFXcBange Holdings inc. {s¢fer note 46)
B4R ion gaid to key igeriat p ¥
. I o T e o
Forthtyearended  §Jannary 201410
Particstars.. ... : " o WP ... 3. Mereh 2016 .. 3 !‘l_rdg!é
Ajitlmc . * . WI0000 14893351
Subrats Nog 9,075,000 ° 4808,247
N.V:§Pavan Kumar {from 26 March 20(%) z

Rashmi Gupte {from 28 April 2014 1024 Maceh 2015)

’mentmcﬁmdmmimlﬁbmﬂmp\mhnﬂbwﬁumw - 4
achusrial valuation earried aut fox the Comgany as # whole, .




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
(formerly known ax IKYA HIMN CAPITAL .\7)! LTINS LINTTER)

Notes tathe Hig for the year ended 31 March 2016
35 Leases '
Opereting leases
The Group is oblipated ender d non- hlsemﬂeund idential presaises, which src bie at the option of kessor and fessee-
“Total rental expense ynder Nable and no g leascs for the year snced 31 March 2016 amouned o Rs 114,254,676 (for the period
endad!lmloli RsJI,&Zl.M)IndR;I _‘.smsrgﬁnmwwmnmzms Rs 153,050,000} respectively.
pecati mmnh paysbl lease under these leases are s follows: 5. =
— —
JParficylers 31 March 281631 March 2015
“Payable within | year ’ o ) T T T 4787 105361505
Paysble between 1.5 years 384 899,904 208,008,464
Payeble Ister thon 5 years 64,350,896 50,070,193
Fingnct Jeaser

37

The Group has purchased assets under finarice leasc, Future miniown fcase paynienss under inance lease obligations are as foffowa:

JLarticnlary

Payable between 1-5 years

Tarst B

Less : Finance charges

Present value of minimum fease payments 196989,060

Graluity Pan

The folowing table sets out the status of the gratily plan as. required under A i dacs (AS) 15 “Empioyee Benefits” presceibed hy Companies Act
W3

Reconcillation of the projecied benefit odligations

from

— - TerThe per
’ ’ Fortbeycoreaded 1 Jomuary 2014 o

Particalars 7 ::;5" - e - 31 Marcha0t6. . 3] March 2018
Change in defined owgaiau . B i v
Objigation 21 the beginning of the year/ period 106,281,244 13,102,428
Balances on acquisition 11,592,105 $2,299.380
Cument service cost 233573349 20366940
Interés! cost 9,057,230 6,164,044
Benefi seitled {3.0%4,370) (10,250,054
Acwaris] (gainy loss e BYIE0I53Y o o SISBEO3
Ofigation a? the end of the yeur/ period 275350,408 106281144
Changein plan pxrety
Plan asscts at the beginning of year/ peried, 2t fair valus . . 44007499 137582
Balances on acquisition $465350 37473260
Expected retuen on plan assets 4,204,452 2931954
Contribstions 26,058,582 (0.873,173
Benkefit seltled {17.705,608) (8.982,450)
Astuarial {loss¥ gain 13.902,028) 334,250
Pisn assets at the end of yeas/ period, 2t falr value ~61. 000459

Recontiliation of present vahue of the odligation and the fair value of \he plon nssets.

“Fair value of plan sssets at the end of the year! period

S l-'orﬂwpnlol ¢
Fanteyurende‘ $ Jinuary 2014 ¢

31 Murch 2018

T E4007899)

Present valoe of tha defived benefit cbligations i the ¢nd of the year/ period

Liability recognised in the dalance shect
Cument . 152,183,206 878,564
Non-cusrent T 52538912 61,395,081




Quess Corp Limnited 20d subsidiarics
(fornerty known ax IKYA H‘IM-U\! ( AILEAL SOLUVIONS LIABTED)

‘Notes 1o th for the year eaded 31 Marck 2816
Gratuity cost for the year/ pesiod i
For lhgyma\du 1 janwary 2014 10
Particulan 3t March 2018 31 March 2018
Interest cost . 9,032,130 T 6104048
Retum on plan assets (4204,492) {2,931,954)
Actusrial {gain) loss ) {77663 .12%) BE23353

Net gratulty cot* i
= Gratuity cost for the yesr ended 31 March 2016 includes costs zggregaling Rs 74,539,660 1cfating to previous years. The cost pertaining to billsbic employees

is cecoguized as reveaue in the current year, .

Asqueptions
For the perlod from
Feorthe yeac ended 1 Janasry 20%4.fo
Particulars. . e e i 3 Mireh 2016 3i March 2618 ..
testaate - 0 T T T T 7.08% - 7.30% T80% ~9.25%
Discount rate 7.38% - T.80% 7.80% -9.25%
Estimated rute of retum oa phin wssels 7.38% -3.00% 8.75%
Salary incresse . 6.00% - 10.00% 6.00% - 10.00%
Atrition rate . 30.00% - 70.00% B.00% - 15.00%
Retiroment 3ge 53 years 5% years
The estimate of fixwse salusy & idesed in sl vai take: scoount of inflalion, scolority, premotion and otbes refevant fictors such s

supply and demand factors ia the employment marker.

lildnry of defiaed huﬁlo&lﬁpﬁnﬁ atd nﬁeriuu (phu)ud saNes

38  Set oud below is the miovesient in p 7 In scéoniice with prrsgrsphs 66 aud 67 of A lop Standard 29, "Provisions, Conthugent
Lisbilities and Contingeal Assets' _—
i = s 'W] e T et it
cousideration for §
scquisition
.| Particulars e oo b (oefer acte46)  f Dispated clviots
BlhnwanAynl’lMS I 3 T 2263684
| Add: Provision as part of acquisition of subsidiasy 32253880 55214555
] 59w | o
: " i e
‘w:mmy pmshnnfkslz‘mowvmcmd Mo the grojects ta make good for any defects idantifind: Dum;lbeyﬂnﬂupl*umwuhw-lwym.
pr d vas d, hence .
szmmhmwmmmmw“ormm will bo raore than the economié bencfits derived by the Group, In the
cument year provision was seversed on completion of project,

39 Dyes to mlcro, imali and medines eatesprises

The Ministry of Micro, Sl ard Medioen Enterprises das issued s Official Memonsaduin dated 26 August 2008 which recosmmnends it the Micro and Steall
&mmmmwammmwnhmmm&wMmmumummmnﬂmm
Hawevwmmmmhwwmnwabk»mhmunslmmubu&mm" g and svaileble with the
Group, Also the Group has ot reccived any cliim for inteest from m&r‘mum \-and Madiien pr Jop Act, 2006




Quess Corp Limited and subsidiaries
fosrmuerhy keown s IRYA !I(IMAN € ‘.M’IJAL SO UTIONS 1IAGTED]
Noits ta the ca? Jor the year ended 3§ March 2016

40 Employee stock apliony

SMWIWM"M' 'dwOplmSebem:m i s sssuct siock options 0716 0¥n shayes to
O#w&mm

hrndimw a2 ; Hering by the Corpary. (« onmoFifs mbdd“m‘u\urdﬂnﬁbnafvohnx nght' $
mmmnnwem opuonsu Rs it Al mmmmwsmaﬂl Mmh 20!3 Frey) Mmﬂzﬂl& the Cmmy h-s&_ﬁin

Foribe yesr endéd
O e b SEMarey 2016

Diurin the yéar, 188,618 options was forfeitad and resuliuntly an amwait-of INR 12,655,982 was tignsferced from Share op stsianding sccount fo Generst
mmuumummz.mmmmmamusmm dingly bas passed @ resolutior mcxtsbcmd ecting dated 22
December 2015 that the bomis Witk be egially aplicable 10 the opiion Hokdérs at bé Gime ofexircise. Resultantly, 662,362 opticns wilt be convented intg
2.729:578 shases #t the time of excreise:

The Comgany, pursuant W resolutions passed by the Saard-and s Stareh ons dated 22 I er: 2015 and 23 { ber: 2013, rsipectively
adopeed Quicss Corp Limind; m«mmmnmzoucmmwwm 1 ESOP 2015; optioiis 16 acquirg éduity shares wity b granted 1o
eligible-employees tas defined in ESOP-2015). The agpregate numbey-of equity: shares, which:may be issucd ndes ESOP 2013, shalf oot exceed 1,500,000
equity shaices fbohus adjusted). The Conpariy has nos giented any dptions ol 31 Mirth 2016 umiér ESOP 2015 sébege:;

41 Details of nok:cuirent invesiment purchased during the years

# Investments in KMG InfoseshLid has besn asquircd through the asquisirion of MF Xchange Holdings frc (Refer note 46)

+ Styrs Corp Mamgement Services (“Siya”) and AME Corsultancy (IME™) are- sole- proprietonship establish irees d-ip Dubsi, United Arab
Emirates:

On.$ December 2013, Quesseoip HoMdi mtwf‘QRP")nMs(dimoWnCamy i ‘100-4 ficial swnership in Styfo aitd IME 55 INR 20,
nulﬁonmdmmmmmm&nmmnm culing Ficial mmmumldeds,pnmrumomswum

agroemei, deedi or docimneritalion in fevor of QHP,

The Gi ankplmmmwdﬁmmmcmmmn!mmmmxm these entities as the Management bekicve thit these entitics
writl:-conti mwemmmmd«mmmmbfarummmbwwhddby&n(mmmdmmﬁwhm
uwsorumummmmcmpanzymmcWmmmmmmmmdmmmmmmmmwuraehmuu
and does tiot dircctly ur indirectly hold any voting power in these snlitis

Bakin saper Bonis (Amendngat) AQ, 2015

21,2015 sl 4o
))'snd‘me weifiog &r

cuepitition of xéch R 3,300 e ionth b RS 7000 st or INE pidinin NRETDF :
ﬂ,uﬁxabyﬂnmpﬁmmmmnhmmm»mmwhm&mmmmmm
St BNy on) ApAL 2014, s o6 he sasie e Oroup hiks gkittionsd the bins o3 (he yeur gnded
& A3 TS RTEH9S aed B 433,607 437 respectively..

wwmma mm ummwwmﬁmm et ﬁmm»ﬁmmmmmwww&e
o the boundarics ol the relevant sistes




Quens Corp Limited and sutaidiaries
ety knuws ax IKYA Hl INAN ( APTEAL SQLUBORS RIMITEL)

Notes 1o the fid tonumrudetllﬂ:mhmls
43 Corporsie Saciel Respansibility
During the year eaded 35 March 2016, the amount required to be spent by the Group on corp ! resy ility activities to R 2.46 million in
accordaace with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, However, the Group bisd incumed expeidiluce amounting to Rs 7.55 willion during the year:
42 During the yesr, tre Group has performed the reconciliations of tax peovi e as: per hooks of with the income tax grovisions filed in its retum
. of income for the completed assessment years and written back sdditional provision sggrogating Rs 64,564,102 ;
45 Acqoisition of Aravou Services Private Limited (formerfy known 33 Arsmark fodix Private Linlted)
Daring the yexr, the Company hss entered into & Share Purchase Agneement (SPA] dated 12 February 2018, with A ek Indin Holdings L1.C, a0d 7k
Senior Notes Company for acquiting 100% stake in Aravon Services Private Limited for a consideration of Rs 100, The effective date of acquisition vas |
April 2015 Put @ the sequisition, the Company has scquired the following sssers and Hiabilities which has tesulted in 2 capital rescrve of Rs 29.055.793:
- Parfiubirs
Fited assets
Long term loans and advances
Joventodies 23".056
Trade scecivabics T3,547471
Cash and cash equivalents 19,443,899
Short-term loans 2nd advances 53,052.328
Current asscts and non-current assels s mﬁi -
Tomlsesi) -
Ndmmnd(0=MN8)
Less; purchase considemtion {D}
tal reserve {E) = D
45 . Acgulsition of MFXckange Holdings Ine.

Daring the previous period, the Company through its whoRly owned subsidiary Quess Corp (USA) Inc: eutered into ¢ Shaie Purchase Agreemnent ("SPA”) with
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited {the bolding company} to wequire MFXchaoge Holdings tne, TMFXT), As per the teres of the SPA, Quess Corp (USA)
lmaqmndd%dﬂumm&rmbdtmﬁnmmbmmmmngil%lerSDSlandanaddmwwnudemmof%oﬂhem
mﬁﬂmmheﬂﬁ&eoﬂa&waﬂmmlhm!@lsmw&uulll‘ ber 2013, 31 Decernber 2016, 31 Dece? 017,
31 Desembery 2018 and 3¢ Desember 2019 ively { )
Bndmdxmoum(:om(m)mmihewmymhuthmmdmxniusmnfmm:mkmdyMﬂmpbmwﬂwwboﬂywned
mbmlmy:ﬂmuveIlmwyzol&mnﬂnimimkaﬁmmaﬂsJD.HiJuThe of additi on will depend ga e
mmummnnthmmm-mwuismmmmmmmwxmx.mmmmnmm

T e

P T o AmoditiaBs

252459320
16.549.575

" Netassels squired (C) = (AHB) (608,960,340

Less: puschase considerstion (D) 3376 .
ies5; additional consideration (E) ... 322,015,288




Quess Carp Lintited and subsidiaries
nrerly kneensis IKYJ HU M}l J APITA! SOLETIONS LIMITED)
Motes fo-the cog : et for the year endéd 31 March 1016

&

4

Date: 17 May 2016 Mmbmhipwa - AT7610

Stalenient stivwing amount of bet isseti, nel atnets a3 8 percentage of cousclidaied dssefs, smotint of share s profivorloxs and shere in profit or o1
s ;ermupotmwnﬁu profit and Joxs

Pen'ahy

During the previows period. e Company acquired: mu% inferest in Brainhunier Systoms Lid., Carda ("BSLY) from ICIC) Bk (ndia. Prior to acquisition of'
BS1. by the Compnay, cquﬂyshu&af BSL. were onynallymed bylx!og Syshans Lu-mlcd I'ZSI.“} and were yiedpd in- &vcuf oflClCl M as security for
loans availed by Z8L Fom ICICLRR 28 defbisted o

During {bes previous period, the Company has.teceived 3 notice fiom the official Bquidator of Zylo; afleging that the acgi of the equity. shares.of BSL- by
the € was ol in dange with lsw asd therefk id-ab-initio, 25 such sale and irans the equity shazes of BSL had taken plate subsequent to an
ovder passed by thi Hordrable Madras tigh t’oun  appbiniirig e offcial liquiditor for 281, ligiidatih. Faither, the Company bas.alio receiped fetter from the
53] sﬂnng itwinutrfity to take 60 record the tmnsfer of the equity shares: of HSL wntil the- winding up proceedings of ZSE have been sompletcd and resolved.

the sale is Bonafids on the basis of thie Eilfuwing:

 Secuted mdvme;n :Mm& bis ngh&t oulside mndmgupprmdms.

; - a secured criditor snd the sile is in complince with Cinadia lawsoed
c.ﬂmﬂnnkchunyshmofﬁmmisnumutwidmtnmwxmmemmmmm:wmm:hemmmomn
[aw

mmymmmw«nmmcmkwmmm firmed ihat. the scquisition. is approprisie from 2, Canadian juctsdintion

Based on the gal opinions the mariageesent befieves jha the acquiition 57BSY, & appct

‘Subsequent eventy

On 14 Ouoberzms Quesscorp Holdings PTE-LH, endeiid into-a shate: purchase agreement © scquire 100% equity in Randsiad-Lanke (Frivate) Limited, 4
staffirg and hilinan fesairme sofutions in Sii Latha, for 2 considention of Rs 37:91 million {LXR 35, 1S millionk- The propused acquisitivn

Efrancial staterdeints for the year ended 31 Murch 2016 s not steictly © bie s ious financial ts was for fiftezn month périod ended 31
Match 2015, Forifier, the curreat year financiafs inclodes the resulls of(hemxsiuon ay mﬁd it note 45 s 46,

As-per our feport of even dafe itached
Jor BS R& Assoiistes LUP ) for aad 53 bebalf of Bosrbof Diresiors of
‘ImmuMmurmv . Quexs Corp Limtited
(oraderly nowd et IKYA HUMAN CAPITAL SOLUTIONS LIMITELY)

Sty

SubrataNag:
W&dﬂﬁm Divector &

Sm}ozzsmo




